# **Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees**

Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 2:00pm

# **Board Packet**

# Table of Contents

Agen	da Item	Page Number
2.0	Agenda	2
8.1	Meeting Minutes from September 14. 2023	6
9.1	2023-2024 First Interim Report	10
9.2	Board Warrant Listing September 2023 & October 2023	23
9.3	2023-24 Special Education Master Contract -ProCare	30
9.4	2023-24 Special Education Master Contract - Partners in Education	73
9.5	Harassment, Discrimination, Intimidation and Bullying Prevention Policy	115
9.6	Employee Handbook	122
9.7	Job description: <u>Human Resources &amp; Business Services</u> <u>Coordinator</u>	185
9.8	Job description: Business Services Assistant II	189
9.9	Job description: Office Clerk - Bilingual	193
9.10	Job description: <u>Stipend: Severely Disabled Premium Stipend for</u> <u>Special Education Instructional Aide</u>	196
9.11	Job descriptions: <u>Administrative Assistant,Office Clerk</u> & <u>Business</u> <u>Services Assistant I</u>	198
9.12	SBAC Prep Course Outline	205



A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, CA 92056 Phone # (760) 757-0161 22695 Alessandro Blvd., Moreno Valley, CA 92533 Phone # (951) 697-1990

# Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees Agenda

Tuesday, December 5, 2023 at 3:00pm

- 1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call
- 2.0 Approval of Agenda Action <u>Recommended Action:</u> That the Board approves the agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of December 5, 2023, as presented.
- 3.0 Call to Order/Roll Call
- 4.0 Pledge of Allegiance
- 5.0 Public Comment

Members of the public will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be for six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board Meeting.

- 6.0 Introductions
- 7.0 <u>Marketing Update</u>
- 8.0 Consent Calendar

These agenda items are considered routine and will be approved in one action without discussion. If a Board Trustee requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar or a citizen wishes to speak to an item, the item will be considered under Action Items.

8.1 <u>Meeting Minutes from September 14. 2023</u>

9.0 Action/Discussion Items

#### Business and Financial

 9.1 2023-2024 First Interim Report Action <u>Information Summary</u> All LEAs are required to file two reports during a fiscal year (interim reports) on the status of the LEA's financial health. The first interim report is due December 15 for the period ending October 31. <u>Responsible Party</u> Stephanie Whitehouse will discuss the first interim report <u>Recommended Action:</u> That the Board approve the 2023-2024 first interim report
 <u>9.2 Board Warrant Listing September 2023 & October 2023</u> Action
 Information Summary



## Action

	Warrants and Automated Clearing House (ACH) payments are issued in accor approved budgets and/or contracts.	dance with
	<u>Responsible Party</u> Fiscal and Operations Coordinator Chang will discuss the Board Warrant Listing.	
	Recommended Action: That the Board approves the warrants and Automated Clearing House (ACH)	) payments
0.0	issued from September 1-30 and October 1-31, 2023.	A
9.3	2023-24 Special Education Master Contract -ProCare	Action
	<u>Information Summary</u> Master Contract for Special Education Services provided by ProCare <u>Responsible Party</u>	
	Fiscal and Operations Coordinator Chang will discuss the master contract Recommended Action:	
	That the Board approve the Master Agreement for ProCare	
9.4	2023-24 Special Education Master Contract - Partners in Education	Action
5.4	Information Summary	Action
	Master Contract for Special Education Services provided by Partners in Education	
	<u>Responsible Party</u>	
	Fiscal and Operations Coordinator Chang will discuss the master contract <u>Recommended Action:</u> That the Board approve the Master Agreement for Partners in Education	
A due in interesti		
Administrati		4 1
9.5	Harassment, Discrimination, Intimidation and Bullying Prevention Policy	Action
	Information Summary	11
	Policy detailing appropriate conduct among all persons at Pacific View is revised	a with a one
	sentence addition. <u>Responsible Party</u>	
	Executive Director Gorence will discuss the policy	
	Recommended Action:	
	That the Board approve the revised Student Policy #24	
Personnel		
<u>9.6</u>	Employee Handbook	Action
2.0	Information Summary	netion
	Changes to the Employee Handbook work schedule section	
	Responsible Party	
	HR and Business Services Coordinator will discuss legal updates to the	2023-24
	Employee Handbook	
	Recommended Action:	
	That the Board approve the changes to the employee handbook	
9.7	Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator Job Description	Action
	Information/Summary	
	Update to essential duties and responsibilities and supervisor for this position	
	Responsible Party	
	Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator Bentley will discuss the	changes to
	this job description.	
	Recommended Action:	
	That the Board approve the job description as presented	
9.8	Business Services Assistant II	Action
	Information/Summary	
	Update to essential duties and responsibilities and supervisor for this position	
	Responsible Party	1 .
	Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator Bentley will discuss the	cnanges to
	this job description.	
	Recommended Action:	
9.9	That the Board approve the job description as presented Office Clerk - Bilingual	Action
7.7	Information/Summary	ACCION

	Update to essential duties and responsibilities and supervisor for this position <u>Responsible Party</u>
	Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator Bentley will discuss the changes to this job description. Recommended Action:
	That the Board approve the job description as presented
9.10	Stipend: Severely Disabled Premium Stipend for Special Education
	Instructional Aide Action
	Information/Summary
	Additional clarifying language regarding part-time work stipend pay Responsible Party
	Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator Bentley will discuss the changes to this job description.
	Recommended Action:
	That the Board approve the job description as presented
9.11	Job descriptions: <u>Administrative Assistant</u> , <u>Office Clerk</u> & <u>Business Services</u>
	Assistant I Action
	Information/Summary
	Update to supervisor for these positions
	Responsible Party
	Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator Bentley will discuss the changes to
	this job description.
	Recommended Action:
	That the Board approve the job descriptions as presented
<u>Curriculum</u>	
9.12	SBAC Prep Course Outline Action
	Information/Summary
	New course for the school
	Responsible Party
	Director of Curriculum and Instruction Gibson will discuss the new Courses
	Recommended Action:
	That the Board approve the SBAC Prep Course Outline, as presented.

4

#### 10.0 Board/Staff Discussion

#### 11.0 Adjournment/Next Meeting The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be January 16 at 3:00 pm

Access to Board Materials: A copy of the written materials which will be submitted to the Board may be reviewed by any interested persons on The Pacific View Charter School's website along with this agenda following the posting of the agenda at least 72 hours in advance of this meeting.

Disability Access: Requests for disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this public meeting should be made 24 hours prior to the meeting by calling (760) 757-0161x105. All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations. The agenda and public documents can be modified upon request as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

# 8.1



A California Public School and Nonprofit 501 (c) (3) Corporation

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, CA 92056 Phone # (760) 757-0161 22695 Alessandro Blvd., Moreno Valley, CA 92533 Phone # (951) 697-1990

# Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees Minutes

Thursday, September 14, 2023 at 3:00pm

- 1.0 Call to Order/Roll Call Meeting Called to order at 3:02 Present: Ricardo Sanchez, Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley Absent: Jon Walters
- 2.0 Approval of Agenda

Recommended Action: That the Board approve the agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of September 14, 2023, as presented. <u>Motion to approve the agenda was made by</u>: Ricardo Sanchez <u>Seconded Motion</u>: Julie Walley <u>Ayes</u>: Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez <u>Noes</u>: <u>Abstain</u>: Absent:

- 3.0 Pledge of Allegiance
- 4.0 Public Comment

Members of the public will be given the opportunity to address the Board during the meeting. Individual comments will be limited to three (3) minutes. If an interpreter is needed for comments, they will be translated to English and the time limit shall be for six (6) minutes. The Board may limit the total time for public comment to a reasonable time. The Board reserves the right to mute or remove a participant from the meeting if the participant unreasonably disrupts the Board Meeting.

5.0 Introductions

Introductions were made and those present included: Erin Gorence, Jill Chang, Lori Bentley, Gayl Johnson, Dr. Richard Lawrence

#### 6.0 <u>Executive Director's Report</u>

#### 7.0 Consent Calendar

These agenda items are considered routine and will be approved in one action without discussion. If a Board Trustee requests that an item be removed from the consent calendar or a citizen wishes to speak to an item, the item will be considered under Action Items.

Meeting Minutes from August 15, 2023

 Motion to approve the Consent Calendar was made by: Julie Walley
 Seconded Motion: Ricardo Sanchez
 Ayes: Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez
 Noes:
 Abstain:
 Absent: Jon Walters

## Information

Action

Action

#### 6

8.0 Action/Discussion Items

Business	and	Finan	cial
Dubinebb	unu	1 man	Ciui

Dusines	<u>55 anu</u>	<u>I'llianciai</u>	
	8.1	2022-23 Unaudited Actuals	Action
		Motion to approve the 2022-23 Unaudited Actuals was made by: Julie Walley	
		<u>Seconded Motion:</u> Ricardo Sanchez	
		<u>Ayes:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	
		Noes:	
		<u>Abstain:</u>	
		<u>Absent:</u> Jon Walters	
	8.2	Board Warrant Listing August 1-31	Action
		Motion to approve the Board Warrant Listing was made by: Julie Walley	
		<u>Seconded Motion:</u> Ricardo Sanchez	
		<u>Ayes:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	
		Noes:	
		Abstain:	
		<u>Absent:</u> Jon Walters	
	8.3	2023-24 Special Education Master Contract	Action
		<u>Total Education Solutions (TES Therapy)</u>	
		Motion to approve the TES Therapy Master Contract was made by: Julie Walley	
		Seconded Motion: Ricardo Sanchez	
		<u>Aves:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	
		Noes:	
		Abstain:	
		Absent: Jon Walters	
Admini	istrativ	<u>7e</u>	
	8.4	Applications for Authorization of Student Clubs	
		Lunchtime Social Club	
		Music Club	
		Drama Club	
		Middle School History Club	
		Motion to approve the Applications for Authorization of Student Clubs was made by:	Julie
		Walley	
		Seconded Motion: Ricardo Sanchez	
		<u>Ayes:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	
		<u>Noes:</u>	
		<u>Abstain:</u>	
		<u>Absent:</u> Jon Walters	
Dorson	nol		

<u>Personnel</u>
0 5

8.5	Health and Welfare 2024	Action
	Motion to approve Health and Welfare 2024 was made by: Ricardo Sanchez	
	<u>Seconded Motion:</u> Julie Walley	
	<u>Ayes:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	
	<u>Noes:</u>	
	<u>Abstain:</u>	
	<u>Absent:</u> Jon Walters	
8.6	Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator Job Description	
	Motion to approve the Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator Job De	<u>escription</u>
	was made by: Ricardo Sanchez	
	Seconded Motion: Julie Walley	
	<u>Ayes:</u> Kathi Cohen, Julie Walley, Ricardo Sanchez	

## Noes: Abstain: Absent: Jon Walters

None

9.0 Board/Staff Discussion

<u>Curriculum</u>

10.0

Adjournment/Next Meeting The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be held October 17, 2023 at 3:00 p.m.

# 9.1

### PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL

# BOARD OF TRUSTEES' MEETING DECEMBER 5, 2023

2023/2024 FIRST INTERIM REPORT

#### Pacific View Charter School 2023/24 First Interim Budget Financial Summary – October 31, 2023

Legislation outlined in Education Code Section 47604.33 requires Charter Schools to report their financial statements four times a year to their Sponsoring District, County Office of Education, and the California Department of Education. The financial reporting includes Budget Adoption, First Interim, Second Interim and Unaudited Actuals. The enclosed financial reports provide an update and detail of the School's 2023/24 financial status, First interim 2023/24 Budget and projections for two subsequent fiscal years. The 2023/24 Budget will require the Board's review and action.

The First Interim 2023/24 Budget includes the following items:

- ✓ 2023/24 Multi-year Projection and Assumptions
- ✓ 2023/24 Local Control Funding Formula Summary
- ✓ 2023/24 School Services Dartboard
- ✓ 2023/24First Interim Certification Form

California Department of Education created the LCFF calculator. LCFF base funding, supplemental and concentration grants are calculated using CDE's First Interim model. SSC Dartboard reflect the per student formula. PVCS continues to project conservative enrollment for the current and two following school years. Enrollment and other financial data will be updated at Second Interim.

	K-3	4-6	7-8	9-12
LCFF Base Grant	\$9,166	\$9,304	\$9,580	\$11,102
Supplemental Grants	20%	20%	20%	20%
Concentration Grants	50%	50%	50%	50%

#### First Interim Budget Enrollment and Average Daily Attendance (A.D.A)

	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26
Enrollment	633	633	633
A.D.A	762.52	762.52	762.52
A.D.A. Ratio	1.20%	1.20%	1.20%

#### Pacific View Charter School 2023/24 First Interim Budget Financial Summary – October 31, 2023

The enclosed reports provide updated, detailed financial information for our 2023/24 budget and projections for the subsequent two fiscal years. Following are the major highlights of the 2023/24 budget which form the foundation for the Executive Director's Goals and the School's Mission.

- 1. Identify and support unduplicated count students
- 2. Provide Chromebooks and hotspots for homeless and students that do not have internet access
- 3. ELD Curriculum for onsite and virtual students
- 4. Growth holding for 4 teachers
- 5. Palomar Counseling- Student Counseling
- 6. Placement in Interventions
- 7. Staffing and curriculum to improve reading schoolwide
- 8. Special Education teacher and 2 Classified Support
- 9. Translations/services
- 10. Expand College & Career Presentations
- 11. Increase in Mental Health Supports for Moreno Valley through Telehealth and Care Solace
- 12. Support for Credit Deficient Students
- 13. Increase College & Career Readiness for Graduates
- 14. Mandated compliance with AB1871- Nutritionally Adequate Meals for students- Hot Meal Service
- 15. Equipment to accommodate Hot Meals

#### Pacific View Charter School 2023/24 First Interim Budget Financial Summary – October 31, 2023

# First Interim Budget Revisions

Object		Adopted	F	irst Interim		
Code	Category	Budget		Budget	Difference	Comments
8XXX	Revenue	\$ 13,529,506	\$	12,635,210	\$ (894,296)	Learning Block Recovery Grant
1XXX	Certificated Salaries	4,807,700		4,553,523	254,177	Savings on late starts
2XXX	<b>Classified Salaries</b>	1,523,819		1,452,677	71,142	Savings on late starts
3XXX	Employee Benefits	2,821,247		2,699,536	121,711	Directly correlates with salaries
4XXX	Supplies	665,046		670,440	(5,394)	
5XXX	Services	2,203,211		1,885,956	317,255	А
6XXX	Depreciation	-		226,000	(226,000)	A
7XXX	Debt Service	-		69,555	(69,555)	А
Budget Surplus (Deficit)		\$ 1,508,483	\$	1,077,523	\$ (430,960)	

Enrollment of 633 and ADA of 762.52 based on P2 for FY22-23 No changes to initial budget COLA and step and column increases

ENTERPRISE FUND		2023-2024 Working Adopted Budget	2023-2024 First Interim Budget	2024-2025 Projected Budget	2025-2026 Projected Budget
A. REVENUES	-				
1) Revenue Limit Sources	8010-8099	11,484,863	11,442,101	11,881,838	12,272,244
2) Other Federal Revenues	8100-8299		90,678	90,678	90,678
3) Other State Revenues	8300-8599	2,034,643	952,431	952,431	952,431
4) Other Local Revenues	8600-8799	10,000	150,000	150,000	150,000
5) TOTAL REVENUES		13,529,506	12,635,210	13,074,947	13,465,353
B. EXPENDITURES					
1) Certificated Salaries	1000-1999	4,807,700	4,553,523	4,732,932	4,888,645
2) Classified Salaries	2000-2999	1,523,819	1,452,677	1,509,913	1,559,589
3) Employee Fringes	3000-3999	2,821,247	2,699,537	2,805,897	2,898,211
<ol><li>Books, Supplies, Non-Capital Equip</li></ol>	4000-4999	665,046	670,440	690,688	708,922
5) Services, Other Operating Exp	5000-5999	2,203,211	1,885,956	1,942,912	1,994,205
7) Capital Outlay	6000-6999	0	226,000	226,000	226,000
8) Debt Service	7400-7499	0	69,555	69,555	69,555
9) TOTAL EXPENDITURES		12,021,023	11,557,688	11,977,897	12,345,127
C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES		1,508,483	1,077,522	1,097,050	1,120,226
<ul> <li>D. Other Financing Sources/Uses</li> <li>1) Interfund Transfers In - 8919</li> <li>2) Interfund Transfers Out - 7619</li> </ul>					
E. Net Increase(Decrease) in Fund Balance		1,508,483	1,077,522	1,097,050	1,120,226
F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES					
1) Fund 62/62-01 Beginning Balance/July 1		13,448,939	13,448,939	14,526,461	15,623,511
2) Ending Balance		14,957,422	14,526,461	15,623,511	16,743,737
Components of Fund Balance					
Restricted for Econ Uncert.		448,723	435,794	468,705	502,312
Restricted for Special Purposes		9,447,466	9,447,466	10,621,824	11,630,681
Undesignated		5,061,233	4,643,201	4,532,982	4,610,744
Total Components of Fund Balance	=	14,957,422	14,526,461	15,623,511	16,743,737

- -

-

-

		2023-2024 Working Adopted	2023-2024 First Interim	2024-2025 Projected Budget	2025-2026 Projected Budget
Designated for Economic Uncertainty	9770-000	448,723	435,794	468,705	502,312
•	TOTAL	448,723	435,794	468,705	502,312
	=				
Revolving Cash Reserve	9711-000	700	700	700	700
Deferred Maintenance Reserve	9780-009	50,000	50,000	50,000	50,000
Facilities/Architect	9780-008	50,000	50,000	50,000	50,000
Facilities Reserve	9780-007	217,000	217,000	217,000	217,000
Land/Bldg/Deprec/Growth	9780-000	8,803,733	8,803,733	9,978,091	10,986,948
Long Term Debt Reserve (Building)	eserve (Building) 9780-012 217,571 217,571		217,571	217,571	217,571
Long Term Debt Reserve (Automobile)	9780-013	8,462	8,462	8,462	8,462
STRS/PERS Unfunded Liability		100,000	100,000	100,000	100,000
	TOTAL =	9,447,466	9,447,466	10,621,824	11,630,681
Undesignated	9790-000	5,061,233	4,643,201	4,532,982	4,610,744
	TOTAL =	5,061,233	4,643,201	4,532,982	4,610,744
TOTAL RES	ERVES	14,957,422	14,526,461	15,623,511	16,743,737
	_				

-

-

- -

	2023-2024 PROJECTED		2025-2026 PROJECTED
REVENUE			
1. COLA	8.22%	3.94%	3.29%
2. LOTTERY	\$249.00	\$249.00	\$249.00
3. ENROLLMENT ESTIMATES Totals	633	633	633
4. ENROLLMENT INCREASE(DECREASE)	0	0	0
5. REVENUE LIMIT ADA	762.52	762.52	762.52
<u>EXPENDITURES</u>			
<ol> <li>FRINGE BENEFIT RATES         STRS State Teachers Retirement System         PERS Public Employee Retirement System             Social Security             Medicare             SUI State Unemployment Insurance/ 09/10 .30%             Workers Compensation/09/10 1.80%     </li> </ol>	19.10% 26.680% 6.20% 1.45% 0.85% 2.06%	27.700% 6.20% 1.45%	19.10% 28.300% 6.20% 1.45% 0.85% 2.06%
Health Insurance cost per year	\$ 1,087,917	\$ 1,130,781	\$ 1,167,984
Books and Supplies/Other Operating Services	5.00%	3.02%	2.64%

REVENUES	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Total Student Enrollment	633	633	633
Total Student ADA	762.52	762.52	762.52
Student ADA - MS - Grade K-3	28.44	28.44	28.44
Student ADA - MS - Grade 4-6	32.66	32.66	32.66
Student ADA - MS - Grade 7-8	90.29	90.29	90.29
Student ADA - HS - Grade 9-12	611.13	611.13	611.13
Revenue Limit Sources			
0000-000 8011 LCFF Entitlement	3,202,920	3,454,574	3,672,461
0000-000-8011-001 LCFF Base Funding Prior Year	0	0	0
0000-500-8011 Supplemental & Concentration Grants	2,332,365	2,413,030	2,492,317
1400-000-8012 Education Protection Account	2,726,322	2,833,740	2,926,972
0000-000-8096 In lieu of Property Taxes-Included in Prin Appor	3,180,494	3,180,494	3,180,494
0000-000-8096 PY In lieu Property Tax	0	0	0
TOTALS	11,442,101	11,881,838	12,272,244
Other Federal Revenues			
3310-5001-8181 IDEA	82,290	82,290	82,290
3327-5001-8181001 Sped Ed Mental Health	8,388	8,388	8,388
TOTALS	90,678	90,678	90,678
Other State Revenues			
6500-5001-8792 Special Education	667,129	667,129	667,129
6546-5001-8792 Sped ERHMS	58,714	58,714	58,714
1100-000-8560 State Lottery - CY Unrestricted	134,966	134,966	134,966
6300-000-8560 State Lottery - CY Restricted	54,901	54,901	54,901
0000-000-8550 Mandated Block Grant	36,721	36,721	36,721
TOTALS	952,431	952,431	952,431
Other Local Revenues			
0000-000-8660 Interest	140,000	140,000	140,000
0000-000-8699 All other local revenue	10,000	10,000	10,000
TOTALS	150,000	150,000	150,000
TOTAL REVENUE	\$12,635,210	\$13,074,947	\$13,465,353

EXPENDITURES	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Certificated Salaries			
		( =00.000	
1000-1999	4,553,523	4,732,932	4,888,645
Classified Salaries			
2000-2999	1,452,677	1,509,913	1,559,589
Employee Fringes			
3111/3211 STRS	834,802	867,693	896,240
3212 PERS	416,683		447,349
3311/3312 Social Security	98,264		105,495
3321/3322 Medicare	87,090	90,522	93,499
3401/3402 Health & Welfare Benefits	1,087,917	1,130,781	1,167,984
3501/3502 Unemployment Insurance	51,053	53,064	54,810
3601/3602 Workman's Compensation Ins.	123,728	128,602	132,834
TOTALS	2,699,537	2,805,897	2,898,211
Books and Supplies			
4000-4999	670,440	690,688	708,922
Services, Other Operating Expense			
5000-5999	1,885,956	1,942,912	1,994,205
conferences, mileage, dues & memberships, insuran			, ,
cleaning services, leases, maintenance agreements,			
contracted services, bottled water, employment servi			
print shop services, SDCOE systems, oversight fee,			
cell phones, postage, internet costs			
Capital Outlay	226,000	226,000	226,000
Debt Service	69,555	69,555	69,555
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$11,557,688	\$11,977,897	\$12,345,127



Pacific View Charter (3731221) - Pacific Vew	9/19/2023						
		2020-21	2021-22	2022-23	2023-24	2024-25	2025-26
SUMMARY OF FUNDING							
General Assumptions							
COLA & Augmentation		0.00%	5.07%	13.26%	8.22%	3.94%	3.29%
Base Grant Proration Factor		-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Add-on, ERT & MSA Proration Factor		-	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
LCFF Entitlement							
Base Grant		\$6,522,718	\$6,630,539	\$8,214,293	\$8,889,713	\$9,239,702	\$9,543,716
Grade Span Adjustment		142,718	166,130	203,720	220,023	229,106	236,211
Supplemental Grant		819,049	862,769	1,201,755	1,315,081	1,364,265	1,409,092
Concentration Grant		214,627	374,190	896,265	1,017,284	1,048,765	1,083,225
Add-ons: Targeted Instructional Improvement Block Grant		-	-	-	-	-	-
Add-ons: Home-to-School Transportation		-	-	-	-	-	-
Add-ons: Small School District Bus Replacement Program		-	-	-	-	-	-
Add-ons: Transitional Kindergarten		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total LCFF Entitlement Before Adjustments, ERT & Additional State Aid		\$7,699,112	\$8,033,628	\$10,516,033	\$11,442,101	\$11,881,838	\$12,272,244
Miscellaneous Adjustments		-	-	-	-	-	-
Economic Recovery Target		-	-	-	-	-	-
Additional State Aid		-	-	-	-	-	-
Total LCFF Entitlement		7,699,112	8,033,628	10,516,033	11,442,101	11,881,838	12,272,244
LCFF Entitlement Per ADA	\$	10,647 \$	11,476	\$ 13,791 \$	15,006 \$	15,582 \$	16,094
Components of LCFF By Object Code							
State Aid (Object Code 8011)	\$	3,360,540 \$	3,162,952	. , , .	5,535,285 \$	5,867,604 \$	6,164,778
EPA (for LCFF Calculation - Resource 1400 / Object Code 8012) Local Revenue Sources:	\$	1,712,323 \$	2,236,956	\$ 720,711 \$	2,726,322 \$	2,833,740 \$	2,926,972
Property Taxes (Object 8021 to 8089)	\$	- \$	- 9	\$-\$	- \$	- \$	-
In-Lieu of Property Taxes (Object Code 8096)		2,626,249	2,633,720	3,180,494	3,180,494	3,180,494	3,180,494
Property Taxes net of In-Lieu	\$	- \$	- ;	\$-\$	- \$	- \$	-
TOTAL FUNDING		7,699,112	8,033,628	10,516,033	11,442,101	11,881,838	12,272,244
Basic Aid Status	\$	- \$	-	\$-\$	- \$	- \$	-
Excess Taxes	\$	(1,712,323) \$	(2,236,956)		(2,726,322) \$	(2,833,740) \$	(2,926,972
EPA in Excess to LCFF Funding	\$	1,712,323 \$	2,236,956		2,726,322 \$	2,833,740 \$	2,926,972
Total LCFF Entitlement		7,699,112	8,033,628	10,516,033	11,442,101	11,881,838	12,272,244

# SSC School District and Charter School Financial Projection Dartboard 2023-24 Enacted State Budget

This version of the School Services of California Inc. (SSC) Financial Projection Dartboard is based on the 2023–24 Enacted State Budget. We have updated the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA), Consumer Price Index (CPI), and tenyear T-bill planning factors per the latest economic forecasts. We have also updated the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) factors. We rely on various state agencies and outside sources in developing these factors, but we assume responsibility for them with the understanding that they are general guidelines.

LCFF PLANNING FACTORS									
Factor	2022-23	2023-24 <sup>1</sup>	2024-25	2025-26	2026-27				
Department of Finance Statutory COLA	6.56%	8.22%	3.94%	3.29%	3.19%				
Planning COLA	6.56%	8.22%	3.94%	3.29%	3.19%				

LCFF GRADE SPAN FACTORS FOR 2023-24									
Entitlement Factors per ADA*	TK-3	4-6	7-8	9-12					
2022-23 Base Grants	\$9,166	\$9,304	\$9,580	\$11,102					
Statutory COLA of 8.22%	\$753	\$765	\$787	\$913					
2023-24 Base Grants	\$9,919	\$10,069	\$10,367	\$12,015					
Grade Span Adjustment Factors	10.4%	-	_	2.6%					
Grade Span Adjustment Amounts	\$1,032	-	_	\$312					
2023-24 Adjusted Base Grants <sup>2</sup>	\$10,951	\$10,069	\$10,367	\$12,327					
Transitional Kindergarten (TK) Add-On <sup>3</sup>	\$3,044	_	_	_					

\*Average daily attendance (ADA)

	OTHER PLANNING FACTORS											
Factors	5	2022-23	2023-24	2024-25	2025-26	2026-27						
California CPI		5.69%	3.55%	3.03%	2.64%	2.90%						
California Lottery	Unrestricted per ADA	\$204	\$177	\$177	\$177	\$177						
Camorina Lottery	Restricted per ADA	\$100	\$72	\$72	\$72	\$72						
Mandate Block Grant (District)	Grades K-8 per ADA	\$34.94	\$37.81	\$39.30	\$40.59	\$41.88						
Mandate Block Grant (District)	Grades 9-12 per ADA	\$67.31	\$72.84	\$75.71	\$78.20	\$80.69						
Mandate Block Grant (Charter)	Grades K-8 per ADA	\$18.34	\$19.85	\$20.63	\$21.31	\$21.99						
Mandale Block Grant (Charter)	Grades 9-12 per ADA	\$50.98	\$55.17	\$57.34	\$59.23	\$61.12						
Interest Rate for Ten-Year Treasu	ries	3.72%	3.60%	2.98%	2.90%	3.00%						
CalSTRS Employer Rate <sup>4</sup>		19.10%	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%	19.10%						
CalPERS Employer Rate <sup>4</sup>		25.37%	26.68%	27.70%	28.30%	28.70%						
Unemployment Insurance Rate <sup>5</sup>		0.50%	0.05%	0.05%	0.05%	0.05%						
Minimum Wage <sup>6</sup>		\$15.50	\$16.00	\$16.50	\$16.90	\$17.30						

STATE MIN	STATE MINIMUM RESERVE REQUIREMENTS FOR 2023-24							
Reserve Requirement	District ADA Range							
The greater of 5% or \$80,000	0 to 300							
The greater of 4% or \$80,000	301 to 1,000							
3%	1,001 to 30,000							
2%	30,001 to 400,000							
1%	400,001 and higher							

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Applies to Special Education, Child Nutrition, State Preschool, Foster Youth, Mandate Block Grant, Adult Education, Adults in Correctional Facilities Program, Charter School Facility Grant Program, American Indian Education Centers, and the American Indian Early Childhood Education.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Unemployment rate in 2023-24 is final based on determination by the Employment Development Department and the subsequent years' rates are subject to actual experience of the pool and will be calculated in accordance with California Unemployment Insurance Code Section 823(b)(2). <sup>6</sup>Minimum wage rates are effective January 1 of the respective year.



 $<sup>^{2}</sup>$ Additional funding is provided for students who are designated as eligible for free or reduced-price meals, foster youth, and English language learners. A 20% augmentation is provided for each eligible student with an additional 65% for each eligible student beyond the 55% identification rate threshold.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>Funding is based on TK ADA only and is in addition to the adjusted base grant amount. Further, the funding is adjusted by statutory COLA each year.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) and California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) rates in 2023-24 are final, and the subsequent years' rates are subject to change based on determination by the respective governing boards.

Pacific View Charter School First Interim Report Charter Number 247 CDE Number 37-73569 Fiscal Year 2023/24 **Charter School Certification** 

2023/24 First Interim is hereby submitted to the chartering authority and the county superintendent of schools.

Signed: \_\_\_\_\_ Charter School Official

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Printed Name: Erin Gorence, Executive Director

For additional information on the First Interim Report, please contact:

Jill Chang, Fiscal & Operations Coordinator 760-757-0161x105 jchang@pacificview.org

# 9.2

#### Pacific View Charter School October 2023 Board Meeting September 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
014553	JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO	9/11/2023	3,799.00	Janitorial Services- Oceanside	6200	3,799.00	0000001844
014554	MV MEDICAL CTR MASTER ASSOC	9/11/2023	1,343.00	Property Association Fees - MV	6200	1,343.00	000001848
014555	NANPOR SECURITY SERVICES	9/11/2023	2,544.75	Security Guard - Oceanside	6200	2,544.75	0000001849
014556	OFFICE DEPOT	9/11/2023		Student Supplies	6200	173.17	000001853
014556	OFFICE DEPOT	9/11/2023		Oceanside- Admin Office Suppli	6200	46.45	000001894
014556	OFFICE DEPOT	9/11/2023	322.11	SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	43.31	000001932
014556	OFFICE DEPOT	9/11/2023		Student Supplies	6200	47.34	000001853
014556	OFFICE DEPOT	9/11/2023		SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	11.84	000001932
014557	WASTE MANAGEMENT	9/11/2023	225.62	Trash Service- MV	6200	225.62	000001843
014775	Reliable Translations Inc.	9/18/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
014775	Reliable Translations Inc.	9/18/2023	513.00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
014775	Reliable Translations Inc.	9/18/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
014776	JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO	9/18/2023	1,680.00	Janitorial Services- Oceanside	6200	1,680.00	000001844
014777	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	9/18/2023	18,130.94	Mortgage Payment- Oceanside	6200	2,719.64	000001852
014777	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	9/18/2023	18,130.94	Mortgage Payment- Oceanside	6200	15,411.30	000001852
014984	Total Education Solutions	9/25/2023	250.00	TOTAL EDUCATION SOLUTIONS	6200	250.00	000001918
014985	Reliable Translations Inc.	9/25/2023	171.00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
014986	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	9/25/2023	12,355.89	Mortgage Payment- MV	6200	9,884.71	000001851
014986	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	9/25/2023	12,555.69	Mortgage Payment- MV	6200	2,471.18	000001851
015257	Intersection R & M Services, Inc	10/2/2023	1,355.00	Handyman Services- Oceanside	6200	815.00	000001922
015257	Intersection R & M Services, Inc	10/2/2023	1,555.00	Handyman Services- Oceanside	6200	540.00	000001922
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023	855.00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
14058222	WorkPartners OHS	9/5/2023	74.00	Employee TB Test- Work Partner	6200	74.00	000001936
14058223	Specialized Therapy Services, Inc	9/5/2023		Nursing Services	6200	3,165.40	000001916
14058223	Specialized Therapy Services, Inc	9/5/2023	5,700.45	Contracted Speech Services	6200	1,221.30	000001916
14058223	Specialized Therapy Services, Inc	9/5/2023	5,700.45	Audiology, DHH, APE, OT Vision	6200	1,290.00	0000001916
14058223	Specialized Therapy Services, Inc	9/5/2023		SPED Therapy Services	6200	23.75	0000001916
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Student Nutrition	6200	2,163.33	000001855
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		SPED Student Nutrition	6200	540.91	000001855
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		YMC Trainings	6200	75.00	000001867
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	28.12	000001873

#### Pacific View Charter School October 2023 Board Meeting September 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Auto Expenses: Gas, Maintenanc	6200	129.61	000001874
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside- Costco Admin Suppli	6200	20.45	000001875
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		MV- Costco Admin Supplies	6200	41.67	0000001875
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside Postage Supplies	6200	58.34	000001876
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Costco Supplies	6200	215.78	000001854
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Instructional Supplies GE	6200	2,027.61	000001847
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	53.98	0000001872
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023	8,962.51	MV Janitorial Supplies	6200	196.03	0000001914
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023	8,902.51	Oceanside Postage	6200	29.99	000001876
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside Bldg. & Maintenance	6200	54.10	0000001927
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		TK Curriculum MBtP Workbooks	6200	186.14	0000001919
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Website	6200	88.52	0000001915
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside Janitorial Supplies	6200	740.70	0000001914
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside- Student Postage	6200	280.00	000001876
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside- Admin Postage	6200	165.00	000001876
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Oceanside- SPED Postage	6200	55.00	000001876
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		TK Curriculum MBTP	6200	493.57	0000001908
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		TK Curriculum Starfall	6200	451.43	0000001909
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Business Cards / Calendar Pro	6200	318.23	0000001910
14058224	U.S. Bank	9/5/2023		Mascot Digital Design Work	6200	549.00	0000001911
14058225	LORI BENTLEY	9/5/2023	56.99	Mileage Reimbursement	6200	56.99	
14058226	RONALD LARRY HOLDEN	9/5/2023	2,600.00	Janitorial Services - MV	6200	2,600.00	0000001839
14059291	YOUNG, MINNEY & CORR, LLP	9/7/2023	728.00	Legal Counsel	6200	728.00	0000001868
14059292	NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVICES, LLC	9/7/2023	79.00	Admin Fees for Cafe 125	6200	79.00	0000001929
14059293	SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC	9/7/2023	5,484.14	Electricity Utilities- Oceanside	6200	5,484.14	0000001842
14060223	Teachers on Reserve	9/11/2023	238.68	Sub Teachers	6200	238.68	0000001947
14060224	Generation Genius, Inc.	9/11/2023	299.00	Curriculum Software	6200	299.00	0000001937
14060225	TeachBoost	9/11/2023	3,750.00	Professional Development	6200	3,750.00	0000001944
14060226	Top Notch Catering	9/11/2023	4,065.00	Gen-Ed Student Nutrition	6200	3,252.00	0000001945
14060226	Top Notch Catering	9/11/2023	4,065.00	SPED- Student Nutrition	6200	813.00	000001945
14060227	ACCREDITING COMMISSION FOR	9/11/2023	1,190.00	WASC Annual Membership	6200	1,190.00	000001948
14060228	AT&T MOBILITY	9/11/2023	494.23	Cell Phone Service	6200	494.23	000001869
14060229	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	9/11/2023		Oceanside Copier	6200	98.69	000001862
14060229	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	9/11/2023	796.51	Oceanside Copier	6200	559.24	000001862
14060229	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	9/11/2023	/90.51	Oceanside Copier	6200	34.65	000001862

#### Pacific View Charter School October 2023 Board Meeting September 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
14060229	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	9/11/2023		Oceanside Copier	6200	103.93	0000001862
14060230	MORENO VALLEY UTILITY	9/11/2023	207.57	Electricity Utility- MV	6200	207.57	0000001841
14061869	Teachers on Reserve	9/14/2023	351.00	Sub Teachers	6200	351.00	0000001947
14061870	ADT SECURITY SERVICES	9/14/2023	71.63	MV Security Alarm	6200	71.63	0000001880
14064476	Cordata Shredding	9/21/2023	139.19	Oceanside Shred	6200	83.32	0000001893
14064476	Cordata Shredding	9/21/2023	139.19	Moreno Valley Shred	6200	55.87	0000001893
14064477	Cordata Shredding	9/21/2023	294.81	Off-Site Secure Storage	6200	294.81	0000001893
14064478	HopSkipDrive, INC	9/21/2023	175.35	SPED Student Transportation	6200	175.35	0000001953
14064479	Charterwise	9/21/2023	21,500.00	CPA Back Office Service	6200	21,500.00	0000001952
14064480	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	9/21/2023	281.16	Oceanside Video Security	6200	281.16	0000001886
14064481	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	9/21/2023		Admin- Internet & Phone Servic	6200	71.06	000001878
14064481	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	9/21/2023	473.79	Student- Internet & Phone Serv	6200	251.10	0000001878
14064481	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	9/21/2023		SPED- Student Internet & Phone	6200	151.63	0000001878
14064482	SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS	9/21/2023	238.12	Bottled Water Service - Oceanside	6200	220.81	0000001845
14064482	SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS	9/21/2023	238.12	Bottled Water Service - MV	6200	17.31	000001845
14064483	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	9/21/2023	3.50	Cume Copier	6200	3.50	0000001862
14065686	Via Heart Project	9/25/2023	350.00	MV AED Annual Fee	6200	350.00	0000001958
14065687	AMERICAN LOCKS AND KEYS	9/25/2023	175.00	Locksmith - Moreno Valley	6200	175.00	0000001951
14065688	DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES	9/25/2023	651.00	Suburban DMV Registration Fee	6200	651.00	0000001957
14065689	OCEANSIDE UNIFIED SCHOOL DIST	9/25/2023	462.00	CUM Dividers, Folders, etc	6200	462.00	0000001949
14067461	Amplify Education	9/28/2023	11,614.99	ELA Middle Curriculum	6200	11,614.99	0000001870
14067462	Kajeet, Inc	9/28/2023	2,583.15	Student Hotspots	6200	2,583.15	0000001871
14067463	Dennis Sever	9/28/2023	650.20	MV Monument Sign Panels	6200	650.20	0000001950
14067464	Lexia Learning Systems, LLC	9/28/2023	2,640.00	Lexia ELD Curriculum	6200	2,640.00	0000001946
14067465	EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DIST	9/28/2023	294.68	Water Utility- MV	6200	294.68	0000001840
14067466	VCC OCEAN RANCH CONDO. ASSOC.	9/28/2023	6,164.00	Property Association Fees - Oc	6200	6,164.00	000001846
14068395	Vortex Industries, Inc	10/2/2023	1,555.54	MV EntryDoor Closer Replacmt	6200	1,555.54	000001966
14068396	Francisco J. Mendoza	10/2/2023	84.00	Fingerprint Reimbursement	6200	84.00	
14068397	PALOMAR FAMILY COUNSELING	10/2/2023	10,202.50	Student Counseling	6200	10,202.50	000001890
			139,227.00			139,227.00	

#### Pacific View Charter December Board Meeting October 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
015257	Intersection R & M Services, Inc	10/2/2023	1,355.00	Handyman Services- Oceanside	6200	815.00	0000001922
015257	Intersection R & M Services, Inc	10/2/2023	1,555.00	Handyman Services- Oceanside	6200	540.00	0000001922
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023	855.00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015334	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/4/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015470	JAN-PRO OF SAN DIEGO	10/10/2023	3,799.00	Janitorial Services- Oceanside	6200	3,799.00	000001844
015471	MV MEDICAL CTR MASTER ASSOC	10/10/2023	1,343.00	Property Association Fees - Mo	6200	1,343.00	000001848
015472	WASTE MANAGEMENT	10/10/2023	225.62	Trash Service- MV	6200	225.62	000001843
015566	NANPOR SECURITY SERVICES	10/12/2023	2,457.00	Security Guard - Oceanside	6200	2,457.00	000001849
015567	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	10/12/2023	18,130.94	Mortgage Payment- Oceanside- 1	6200	2,719.64	000001852
015567	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	10/12/2023	16,150.94	Mortgage Payment- Oceanside- 8	6200	15,411.30	000001852
015568	SCHOOL PATHWAYS HOLDINGS, LLC	10/12/2023		Pathways LMS	6200	520.00	000001856
015568	SCHOOL PATHWAYS HOLDINGS, LLC	10/12/2023	905.05	Pathways LMS	6200	216.42	000001856
015568	SCHOOL PATHWAYS HOLDINGS, LLC	10/12/2023		Pathways CalPads, Online Registration	6200	168.63	000001879
015699	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/16/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015699	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/16/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015699	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/16/2023	855.00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015699	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/16/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	0000001905
015699	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/16/2023		SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
015700	OFFICE DEPOT	10/16/2023		Student Supplies	6200	78.68	000001853
015700	OFFICE DEPOT	10/16/2023	309.80	Oceanside- Admin Office Suppli	6200	211.44	000001894
015700	OFFICE DEPOT	10/16/2023		SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	19.68	000001932
016002	AIR CRAFTS HEATING & AC INC.	10/25/2023	2,100.00	HVAC PM Services Oceanside	6200	2,100.00	000001921
016003	CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.	10/25/2023	543.85	Headphones and Headsets	6200	543.85	000001961
016004	NANPOR SECURITY SERVICES	10/25/2023	2,730.00	Security Guard - Oceanside	6200	2,730.00	000001849
016005	OFFICE DEPOT	10/25/2023		Student Supplies	6200	32.24	000001853
016005	OFFICE DEPOT	10/25/2023	270 44	Oceanside- Admin Office Suppli	6200	20.61	000001894
016005	OFFICE DEPOT	10/25/2023	278.44	SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	15.13	000001932
016005	OFFICE DEPOT	10/25/2023		SPED Instructional Supplies	6200	210.46	000001932
016006	SCHOOL PATHWAYS HOLDINGS, LLC	10/25/2023	11 051 34	Pathways LMS	6200	8,216.71	000001856
016006	SCHOOL PATHWAYS HOLDINGS, LLC	10/25/2023	11,851.24	CalPads, Online Registration,	6200	3,634.53	000001879
016138	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/30/2023	F04 00	SPED Translations	6200	171.00	000001905
016138	Reliable Translations Inc.	10/30/2023	504.90	SPED Translations	6200	333.90	000001905

#### Pacific View Charter December Board Meeting October 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
016139	NANPOR SECURITY SERVICES	10/30/2023	2,457.00	Security Guard - Oceanside	6200	2,457.00	0000001849
14068395	Vortex Industries, Inc	10/2/2023	1,555.54	MV EntryDoor Closer Replacmt	6200	1,555.54	000001966
14068396	Francisco J. Mendoza	10/2/2023	84.00	New Employee Reimbursement	6200	84.00	
14068397	PALOMAR FAMILY COUNSELING	10/2/2023	10,202.50	Student Counseling	6200	10,202.50	000001890
14070031	Kajeet, Inc	10/5/2023	2,583.15	Student Hotspots	6200	2,583.15	000001871
14070032	CCSA - CONFERENCE	10/5/2023	900.00	CCSA Conference Registration F	6200	900.00	000001941
14070033	CHARTER SCHOOLS DEVELOPMENT	10/5/2023	2,895.00	CSDC Leadership Conf Reg.Fees	6200	2,895.00	0000001942
14070034	ONE STOP TONER & INKJET	10/5/2023	2,913.84	Printer Toner and Ink	6200	2,913.84	000001912
14070035	SECURITY SIGNAL DEVICES, INC.	10/5/2023	626.91	MV Fire System	6200	626.91	000001882
14070036	VCC OCEAN RANCH CONDO. ASSOC.	10/5/2023	6,164.00	Property Association Fees - Oc	6200	6,164.00	0000001846
14071238	Emcor Services Mesa Energy	10/9/2023	3,221.75	HVAC PM & Repairs Moreno Valle	6200	3,221.75	000001891
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside Postage	6200	228.39	000001876
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside Postage	6200	66.00	000001876
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		MV Stamps.com Service Fee	6200	29.99	000001877
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside Janitorial Supplies	6200	781.24	0000001914
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		MV Janitorial Supplies	6200	55.47	0000001914
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Leaseweb	6200	88.52	000001915
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Laminating Rolls	6200	120.06	0000001926
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside Bldg. & Maintenance	6200	76.63	0000001927
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Food for BTS PD	6200	713.65	000001930
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		TK Student Materials	6200	902.86	000001934
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside- Student Postage 56%	6200	336.00	000001876
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023	6,689.96	Oceanside Stamps.com Service F	6200	29.99	000001876
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023	0,089.90	MV- Costco Admin Supplies	6200	13.57	000001875
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Oceanside- Costco Admin Suppli	6200	27.27	000001875
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Auto Expenses: Gas, Maintenanc	6200	137.43	000001874
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES	6200	170.70	000001873
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		SPED Student Nutrition	6200	246.38	000001855
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Student Nutrition	6200	985.27	000001855
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Costco Supplies	6200	185.16	000001854
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Instructional Supplies GE	6200	1,021.00	0000001847
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		First Aid Training	6200	51.80	000001939
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		MV Phones-GoTo	6200	312.08	0000001971
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Email Services Constant Contac	6200	71.50	0000001970
14071239	U.S. Bank	10/9/2023		Classified Staff Trainings	6200	39.00	0000001940

#### Pacific View Charter December Board Meeting October 2023 Warrant Listing

Warrant ID	Name	Payment Date	Total Warrant Amount	Description	Fund	Invoice Amount	Purchase Order #
14071240	NATIONAL BENEFIT SERVICES, LLC	10/9/2023	82.95	Admin Fees for Cafe 125	6200	82.95	0000001929
14071241	RONALD LARRY HOLDEN	10/9/2023	2,600.00	Janitorial Services	6200	2,600.00	000001839
14071242	SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC	10/9/2023	5,410.13	Electricity Utilities- Oceansi	6200	5,410.13	000001842
14072776	HopSkipDrive, INC	10/12/2023	100.20	TRANSPORTATION	6200	100.20	000001953
14072777	Charterwise	10/12/2023	10,750.00	Back Office Service	6200	10,750.00	0000001952
14072778	GoTo Technologies USA, Inc	10/12/2023	343.06	PHONES FOR MORENO VALLEY	6200	343.06	000001938
14072779	Top Notch Catering	10/12/2023	6,288.75	Gen-Ed Student Nutrition Food	6200	5,031.00	000001945
14072779	Top Notch Catering	10/12/2023	0,288.75	SPED- Student Nutrition Food S	6200	1,257.75	000001945
14072780	Sandy Howie	10/12/2023	77.00	New Employee Reimbursement	6200	77.00	
14072781	Sarah Martinez	10/12/2023	77.00	New Employee Reimbursement	6200	77.00	
14072782	CHUCK'S FIRE EXTINGUISHERS	10/12/2023	1,044.66	MV Fire Extinguishers	6200	1,044.66	000001969
14076755	Cordata Shredding	10/23/2023	197.27	Off-Site Secure Storage	6200	197.27	000001893
14076756	ADT SECURITY SERVICES	10/23/2023	71.63	MV Security Alarm	6200	71.63	000001880
14076757	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	10/23/2023	281.16	Oceanside Video Security	6200	281.16	000001886
14076758	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	10/23/2023		Student- Internet & Phone Serv	6200	254.00	000001878
14076758	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	10/23/2023	479.26	Admin- Internet & Phone Servic	6200	71.88	000001878
14076758	COX BUSINESS SERVICES	10/23/2023		SPED- Student Internet & Phone	6200	153.38	000001878
14076759	EASTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DIST	10/23/2023	255.65	Water Utility- MV	6200	255.65	000001840
14076760	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	10/23/2023	232.87	Moreno Valley Copier	6200	174.65	000001863
14076760	KONICA MINOLTA BUS. SOLUTIONS	10/23/2023	232.87	Moreno Valley Copier	6200	58.22	000001863
14076761	MORENO VALLEY UTILITY	10/23/2023	208.60	Electricity Utility- MV	6200	208.60	0000001841
14076762	Cintas Fire Protection	10/23/2023	315.62	MV Fire Sprinkler	6200	315.62	000001883
14078307	Energo Electric LLC	10/26/2023	750.00	MV Emergency egress light repl	6200	750.00	000001982
14078308	Active Internet Technologies, LLC	10/26/2023	16,500.00	Website Redesign	6200	16,500.00	0000001965
14078309	BAY ALARM	10/26/2023		Bay Alarm Security/ Fire Syste	6200	688.05	000001881
14078309	BAY ALARM	10/26/2023	1,421.10	Bay Alarm Security/ Fire Syste	6200	22.50	000001881
14078309	BAY ALARM	10/26/2023		Bay Alarm Security/ Fire Syste	6200	710.55	000001881
14078310	AT&T MOBILITY	10/26/2023	494.23	Cell Phone Service	6200	494.23	000001869
14078311	SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS	10/26/2023		Bottled Water Service	6200	24.89	000001845
14078311	SPARKLETTS & SIERRA SPRINGS	10/26/2023	345.45	Bottled Water Service	6200	320.56	000001845
14078312	V TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION	10/26/2023	3,247.50	Chromebook Chargers	6200	3,247.50	000001977
14079835	Interquest Group, Inc	10/30/2023	350.00	Campus Search Dogs	6200	350.00	000001959
14079836	PS Kosher Food Works Inc.	10/30/2023	294.58	Museum Of Tolerance_Student lunches	6200	294.58	0000001984
			140,756.16			140,756.16	

# 9.3

# NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES

# MASTER CONTRACT

# 2023-2024

	MASTER CONTRACT
	GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,
	NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES
	LEA PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL
	Contract Year 2023-2024
	Nonpublic School
	X Nonpublic Agency
Type of (	<u>Contract:</u>
XPAC	Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the - term of this contract.
	Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.
	Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpos of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:
	When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

### I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

	MASTER CONTRACT	1
2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	
	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	3
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
7.	DEFINITIONS	4

#### II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8.	NOTICES	5
9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
	CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
14.	TERMINATION	6
15.	INSURANCE	6
16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
18.	SUBCONTRACTING	9
19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	10
20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	10

#### III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION 1
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 1
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES 12
24.	CLASS SIZE
25.	CALENDARS 1.
26.	DATA REPORTING
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT
28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING
29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS 13
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE 10
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS
33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 1'
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS 1'
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 1'
36.	STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS
37.	TRANSCRIPTS 11
38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM 19
40.	PARENT ACCESS 19

#### Page 1

41.	ICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	
	ND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS	19
42.	TATE MEAL MANDATE	20
43.	IONITORING	20

### IV. <u>PERSONNEL</u>

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	21
45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	21
46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
47. STAFF ABSENCE	23
48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR	23

#### V. <u>HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES</u>

49. HEALTH AND SAFETY	23
50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	24
51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	24
52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	24
53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	24
54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT	25
55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	25

#### VI. FINANCIAL

56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,	
ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	25
<b>57.</b> RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	26
58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	27
<b>59.</b> PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	27
60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	28
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT	28
62. RATE SCHEDULE	29
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	29
EXHIBIT A: RATES	32
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	34

#### **CONTRACT NUMBER:**

#### LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: <u>PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL</u> NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: <u>PROCARE THERAPY</u>

#### NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT

#### AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on November 13, 2023, between <u>PACIFIC VIEW</u> <u>CHARTER SCHOOL</u>, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the <u>EL DORADO CHARTER SELPA</u> and <u>PROCARE THERAPY</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit the LEA to pay for special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for the development of the ISA and invoices.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification, and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

#### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from November 13, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2024. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30<sup>th</sup>, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

# 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

#### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT ("ISA")

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP or by written agreement between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.
Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

# 7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and related services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the individual is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

- e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(1).
- f. "Parent" means:
  - i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
  - ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
  - iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,

- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Contract" and is referred to as such in this document.

# **ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT**

# 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of this Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

# 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications bylaws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; evidence of electronic payments; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record, and a description of the record(s) provided. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the student's parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER's, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### 10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

#### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

# 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

# 14. **TERMINATION**

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

# **15. INSURANCE**

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR'S sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

# PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence
\$500,000 fire damage
\$5,000 medical expenses
\$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
\$3,000,000 general aggregate
\$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. **Commercial Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by

endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by

CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

#### PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a **residential treatment center** (**NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. **Commercial General Liability** including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- *C.* **Commercial Auto Liability** coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. **Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage**, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

#### 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers the LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

# 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principal, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

# 18. SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

# **19.** CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

The LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty-five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

#### 20. NON-DISCRIMINATION

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

# **EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM**

# 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each student within the NPS/A consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

# 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq...* 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;

and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by an LEA, that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The NPA providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. Schoolbased services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children's Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

# 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

# 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a

ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

#### 25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the IEP team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

# 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), the Alternative English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

# 30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, *et seq.*, 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR's pupil population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a BIP, an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:

- 1.any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock;
- 2.an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual;
- 3.an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities;
- 4. an intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma;
- 5.restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention;
- 6.locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room;
- 7.an intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual;

8.an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with Education Code section 49005.8. Specifically, Contractor shall not do any of the following:

- 1. Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- 2. Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room.
- 3. Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs the pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's torso or back.
- 4. Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited to, using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face.
- 5. Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained behind the pupil's back.
- 6. Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others.

CONTRACTOR shall keep constant, direct observation of a pupil who is in seclusion, which may be through observation of the pupil through a window, or another barrier, through which the educational provider is able to make direct eye contact with the pupil. This observation shall not be through indirect means, including through a security camera or a closed-circuit television.

CONTRACTOR shall afford pupils who are restrained the least restrictive alternative and the maximum freedom of movement, and shall use the least number of restraint points, while ensuring the physical safety of the pupil and others.

If prone restraint techniques are used by CONTRACTOR, a staff member shall observe the pupil for any signs of physical distress throughout the use of prone restraint. Whenever possible, the staff member monitoring the pupil shall not be involved in restraining the pupil.

In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the IEP team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or

mechanical restraint or seclusions of an LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### 31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension.

#### **32**. **IEP TEAM MEETINGS**

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In

the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

# 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the child's parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

# 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR's staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

# **35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES**

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

# 36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

# **37. TRANSCRIPTS**

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

# **38.** STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student's change of residence. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student's change of residence.

# **39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM**

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including

student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and parent/guardian withdrawal of student against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters, when applicable. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. When requested, CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergencies. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, to the LEA.

# 41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1 and any other applicable laws and/or regulations, including LEA guidelines or procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq. including the federal regulations 34 C.F.R section 300 et seq. and Education Code section 56000 et seq. including Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all monitoring requirements set forth in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

# 42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49005 et seq.; 49501.5, the universal meal mandate enacted by AB 130 (2021-2022); 49530 et seq; and 49550 et seq.

# 43. MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, the LEA or SELPA shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA or SELPA shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.

The LEA or SELPA shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

# PERSONNEL

# 44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Upon request, clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

In accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(a)(5), when CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a

clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master's degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)). CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to the LEA upon request, documentation of its administrator's qualifications in accordance with the above.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

# 46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

# 47. STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school and CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to the LEA documentation of substitute coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time.

The LEA shall not be responsible for any payment for instruction and/or services when an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher is not provided in accordance with California Education Code section 56061.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

#### 48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

# HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

# 49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.* and 49406, regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

# 50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49422 et seq. when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provide to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for storing medication in a secure location and ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

# 52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

# FINANCIAL

# 56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the portion of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to

60

be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by the LEA for withholding payment is unfounded. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: The LEA or CONTRACTOR may appeal to the County Superintendent of Schools so long as the County Superintendent of Schools is not participating in the Local Plan involved in the NPS/A contract, or a mutually agreed upon mediator. Both parties agree to pay for their own costs and expenses arising out of such mediation. Each party agrees to act in good faith in participating in any mediation process agreed to by the parties.

#### 58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students' public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually.

# **59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES**

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

# NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth (5<sup>th</sup>) consecutive service day of the student's absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

# 60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs in accordance with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- In the event of a NPS School Closure for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 41422, if the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, as though the student were continuing his/her regular attendance, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- In the event of the LEA and NPS School Closures, on days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance with CONTRACTOR due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for

make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as set forth in paragraph 23, above, and in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

# **63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION**

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 13 day of November, 2023 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

#### CONTRACTOR

# LEA

PROCARE THERAPY	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL			
Nonpublic School/Agency	LEA Name			
By: Date	By:			
<i>Signature</i> Date	Signature Date			
<i>William Tomlinson</i> 11/20/2023	ERIN GORENCE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR			
William Tomlinson, Account Executive	Authorized Representative			
Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to:	Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:			
Name and Title	Name and Title			
William Tomlinson, Account Executive	ERIN GORENCE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR			
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related Service Provider	LEA			
PROCARE THERAPY	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL			
Address	Address			
9000 Southside Blvd Building 700 Suite 7400	3670 OCEAN RANCH BLVD			
CityStateZipJacksonville,FL32256	CityStateZipOCEANSIDECA92056			
Phone 770-325-0570 Fax	Phone         Fax           760-757-0161         Fax			
Email	Email			
will.tomlinson@procaretherapy.com	egorence@pacificview.org			

Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)

Name and Title LINDA MOORE, SI	PECIAL ED CO	ORDINATOR
Address 3670 OCEAN RAN	NCH BLVD	
City	State	Zip
OCEANSDIE	CA	92056
Phone	Fax	
760-757-0161 ext 1	35	
Email		
lmoore@pacificvie	ew.org	

#### 4.1 RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR

The CONTRACTOR:	
The CONTRACTOR CDS NUMBER:	
-	

PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:\_\_\_\_\_

Maximum Contract Amount:

Education service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charges for such service(s) during the term of this contract shall be as follows:

- 1) Daily Basic Education Rate:
- 2) Inclusive Education Program

(Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:

#### 3) <u>Related Services</u>

<u>SERVICE</u>	<u>RATE</u>	PERIOD
Intensive Individual Services (340)		
Language and Speech (415)		
Adapted Physical Education (425)		
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)		
Health and Nursing: Other Services (436)		
Assistive Technology Services (445)		
Occupational Therapy (450)		
Physical Therapy (460)		
Individual Counseling (510)		
Counseling and Guidance (515)		
Parent Counseling (520)		
Social Work Services (525)		
Psychological Services (530)		
Behavior Intervention Services (535)		
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)		
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)		
Interpreter Services (715)		
Audiological Services (720)		

66

Specialized Vision Services (725)	 
Orientation and Mobility (730)	 
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)	 
Reader Services (745)	 
Transcription Services (755)	 
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)	 
College Awareness (820)	 
Work Experience Education (850)	 
Job Coaching (855)	 
Mentoring (860)	
Travel Training (870)	 
Other Transition Services (890)	
Other (900)	
Other (no code)	

# INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES (Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)

This agreement is effective on <u>November 13, 2023</u> or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by applicable law.

Loca	al Education Agency				Nonpublic School			
LEA	Case Manager: Name				Phone N	umber		
Pup	il Name					Sex:	🗆 M 🗌 F	Grade:
Add	(Last)			(First) C	ity	(M.I.)	State/Zip	
DO	B Residential Setting:	Home	e 🗌 Foster	LCI #		0	THER	
Pare	ent/Guardian			Phone (	)	(	)	
Add	ent/Guardian			c	(	Residence)	State/Zip	(Business)
	(If different from stude	ent)						
AGF 1.	REEMENT TERMS: Nonpublic School: The average number	r of minutes	in the instr	uctional day will				ular school year ended school year
2.	Nonpublic School: The number of school	ol days in th	e calendar	of the school ye				ular school year ended school year
3.	Educational services as specified in the A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC ED Estimated Number of Days	UCATION F	PROGRAM	RATE: (Applies	s to nonpublic schools on	<i>ly):</i> Daily R	ate:	
ſ	B. RELATED SERVICES:		Provid	er				
	SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
	Intensive Individual Services (340)							
	Language/Speech Therapy (415) a. Individual b. Group							
	Adapted Physical Ed. (425)							
	Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)							
	Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)							
	Assistive Technology Services (445)							
	Occupational Therapy (450)							
	Physical Therapy (460)							
	Individual Counseling (510)							
	Counseling and guidance (515).							
	Parent Counseling (520)							
	Social Work Services (525)							

# 69

0501/05	L	Provid			•		<b>_</b>
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Psychological Services (530)							
Behavior Intervention Services (535)							
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)							
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (710)							
Interpreter Services (715)							
Audiological Services (720)							
Specialized Vision Services (725)							
Orientation and Mobility (730)							
Braille Transcription (735)							
Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)							
Reader Services (745)							
Note Taking Services (750)							
Transcription Services (755)							
Recreation Services (760)							
College Awareness Preparation (820)							
Vocational Assessment, Counseling, Guidance and Career Assessment (830)							
Career Awareness (840)							
Work Experience Education (850)							
Mentoring (860)							
Agency Linkages (865)							
Travel Training (870)							
Other Transition Services (890)							
Other (900)							
Other (no code)							
Transportation-Emergency b. Transportation-Parent							
Bus Passes							
Other							

ESTIMATED MAXIMUM RELATED SERVICES COST\$\_\_\_\_\_

e parties hereto have executed this ow.	Individual Services Agreement by an	l through their duly authorized agents	or representatives as set forth
-CONTRA	ACTOR-	-LEA/S	SELPA-
ame of Nonpublic School/Agency)		(Name of LEA/SELPA)	

SERVICE	RATE	PERIOD	71
Speech Language Pathologist (415)	\$95 - \$165	Hourly	
Occupational Therapist (450)	\$90 - \$140	Hourly	
Physical Therapist (460)	\$110 - \$165	Hourly	
Physical Therapist Assistant	\$85 - \$105	Hourly	
School Psychologist (530)	\$98 - \$160	Hourly	
Teacher of the Visually Impaired	\$105 - \$120	Hourly	32
Certified Occupational Therapy Assistant	\$85 - \$105	Hourly	
Speech Language Pathologist Assistant	\$85 - \$105	Hourly	_
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Teacher	\$105 - \$130	Hourly	
Paraprofessional	_\$55 - \$75	Hourly	
Sign Language Interpreter	<mark>\$85 - \$115</mark>	Hourly	
Special Education Teacher/RSP	\$87 - \$105	Hourly	
Board Certified Behavior Analyst	\$100 - \$165	Hourly	
Registered Nurse	\$90 - \$120	Hourty	
Audiologist	\$115 - \$140	Hourly	
Social Worker	\$75 - \$130	Hourly	
Behavior Specialist	\$90 - \$115	Hourly	

Licensed Vocational Nurse	_\$85 - \$100	Hourly	
Counselor	\$110 - \$130	Hourly	_
Adaptive PE Teacher	\$105 - \$120	Hourly	
Music Therapist	\$85 - \$100	Hourly	

# 9.4
# NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES

# MASTER CONTRACT

# 2023-2024

<section-header></section-header>		
GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES     LEA		
GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES     LEA		MASTER CONTRACT
LEA       PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL         Contract Year       2023-2024          Nonpublic School         X       Nonpublic Agency         Type of Contract:       Nonpublic Agency         XPAC       Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract.         Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.         Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:		GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN,
Contract Year _2023-2024		
		LEA PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL
Image: Section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above		Contract Year 2023-2024
X       Nonpublic Agency         Type of Contract:       XPAC         Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract.         Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.         Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:		
Type of Contract:         XPAC       Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract.         Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.         Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:         When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above		Nonpublic School
XPAC       Master Contract for fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be approved throughout the term of this contract.         Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.         Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:         When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above		Nonpublic Agency
term of this contract.         Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student.         Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date:         When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above	Type of (	Contract:
into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above	XPAC	
into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single student. Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above		Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service Agreement (ISA)
of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole discretion of the LEA. Expiration Date: <i>When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above</i>		
		of this Interim Contract is to provide for ongoing funding at the prior year's rates for 90 days at the sole

-

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

#### I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.	MASTER CONTRACT	1
2.	CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES	1
3.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS	2
4.	TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT	2
5.	INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT	
	FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION	3
6.	INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	3
7.	DEFINITIONS	4

#### II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT

8.	NOTICES	5
9.	MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS	5
10.	SEVERABILITY CLAUSE	6
11.	SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST	6
12.	VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW	6
13.	MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO	
	CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES	6
14.	TERMINATION	6
15.	INSURANCE	6
16.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS	9
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	9
18.	SUBCONTRACTING	9
19.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	10
20.	NON-DISCRIMINATION	10
16. 17. 18. 19.	INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	

#### III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

21.	FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION 1
22.	GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 1
23.	INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES 12
24.	CLASS SIZE
25.	CALENDARS 1.
26.	DATA REPORTING
27.	LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT
28.	STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING
29.	MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS
30.	POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS 13
31.	STUDENT DISCIPLINE 10
32.	IEP TEAM MEETINGS
33.	SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 1'
34.	DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS 1'
35.	COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 1'
36.	STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS 12
37.	TRANSCRIPTS 12
38.	STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE 19
39.	WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM 19
40.	PARENT ACCESS 19

#### Page

41.	LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS	
	AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS	19
42.	STATE MEAL MANDATE	20
43.	MONITORING	20

76

#### IV. <u>PERSONNEL</u>

44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS	21
45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS	21
46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	22
47. STAFF ABSENCE	23
48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR	23

#### V. <u>HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES</u>

<b>49.</b> HEALTH AND SAFETY	23
<b>50.</b> FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS	24
51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION	24
52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING	24
53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING	24
54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT	25
55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN	25

#### VI. FINANCIAL

56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING,	
ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES	25
<b>57.</b> RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT	26
58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES	27
59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES	27
60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY	28
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT	28
62. RATE SCHEDULE	29
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION	29
EXHIBIT A: RATES	32
EXHIBIT B: INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT	34

#### LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY: <u>PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL</u> NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: <u>PARTNERS IN SPECIAL EDUCATION</u>

#### <u>NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES</u> <u>MASTER CONTRACT</u>

#### AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

#### 1. MASTER CONTRACT

This Master Contract (or "Contract") is entered into on November 13, 2023, between <u>PACIFIC VIEW</u> <u>CHARTER SCHOOL</u>, hereinafter referred to as the local educational agency ("LEA"), a member of the <u>EL DORADO CHARTER SELPA</u> and <u>PARTNERS IN SPECIAL EDUCATION</u> (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or "CONTRACTOR" for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 *et seq.* and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 *et seq.*, AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit the LEA to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR.

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as "ISA"). Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR's obligation to provide all relevant services specified in the student's Individualized Education Program (hereinafter referred to as "IEP"). The ISA shall be executed within ninety (90) days of a student's enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for the development of the ISA and invoices.

Unless placement and/or services is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as "OAH") order, a lawfully executed settlement agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement or NPS/A services until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent.

#### 2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as "CDE") as a NPS/A. All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification and licensure specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code, section 56366 *et seq* and within the professional scope of practice of each provider's license, certification, and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR's NPS/A certification or a waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to LEA on or before the date this Agreement is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE certification and in Section 24 of the Master Contract.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified and all staff persons providing services to pupils shall be certified and/or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children's institution (hereinafter referred to as "LCI"), CONTRACTOR shall be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, to provide nonmedical care room and board to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both California and in the state where the LCI is located.

With respect to CONTRACTOR's certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE in writing of any changes in: (1) credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS

During the term of this Master Contract, unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to; the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive behavior interventions).

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a).

#### 4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT

The term of this Master Contract shall be from November 13, 2023 to June 30, 2024 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this Master Contract in subsequent contract years. The parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to June 30, 2024. In the event the contract negotiations are not agreed to by June 30<sup>th</sup>, the most recently executed Master Contract will remain in effect for 90 days. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA.

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR's ownership or authorized representative shall be provided in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.

### 5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION

This Master Contract includes each ISA and they are incorporated herein by this reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties.

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or a renewal.

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of current teacher credentials and clearance, insurance documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract's effective date. If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the new Master Contract within such ninety-day period, all payments shall cease until such time as the new Master Contract for the current school year is signed and returned to LEA by CONTRACTOR. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students at the discretion of the LEA.

#### 6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT ("ISA")

This Agreement shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized students.

Any and all changes to a student's educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student's IEP or by written agreement between the parent and LEA. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, a student's parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student's IEP subject to all procedural safeguards required by law.

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within five (5) business days of the last date a service was provided. CONTRACTOR shall provide any and all subsequent compensatory service hours awarded to student as a result of lack of provision of services while student was served by the NPS/A.

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, CONTRACTOR shall abide by the "stay-put" requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning changes in placement.

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is located, or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code section 56366(c) (2).

#### 7. **DEFINITIONS**

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract:

- a. The term "CONTRACTOR" means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California Department of Education and its officers, agents, and employees.
- b. The term "authorized LEA representative" means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for NPS/A. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA maintains sole responsibility for this Contract, unless otherwise specified in this Contract.
- c. The term "credential" means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(g).
- d. The term "qualified" means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and related services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements which apply to the area in which the individual is providing special education or related services, including those requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards contained in the California Business and Professions Code.

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 3001 (r)).

- e The term "license" means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3001(1).
- f. "Parent" means:
  - i. a biological or adoptive parent; unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal authority to make educational decisions for the child,
  - ii. a guardian generally authorized to act as the child's parent or authorized to make educational decisions for the child,
  - iii. an individual acting in the place of a biological or adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual who is legally responsible for the child's welfare,

- iv. a surrogate parent,
- v. a foster parent if the authority of the biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child's behalf has been specifically limited by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2).

Parent does not include the state or any political subdivision of government or the NPS/A under contract with the LEA for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education Code section 56028).

- g. The term "days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- h. The phrase "billable day" means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs.
- i. The phrase "billable day of attendance" means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA.
- j. It is understood that the term "Master Contract" also means "Contract" and is referred to as such in this document.

#### **ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT**

#### 8. NOTICES

All notices provided for by this Contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee.

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of this Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master Contract.

#### 9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, "records" shall include, but not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior intervention aides, and bus aides; behavior emergency reports (BER); incident reports; notification of injuries; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications bylaws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; evidence of electronic payments; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of CONTRACTOR's employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an access log for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, date/time of access for each individual requesting or receiving information from the student's record, and a description of the record(s) provided. Such log needs to record access to the student's records by: (a) the student's parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student's parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, "employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR" do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant the following access to student records, (a) the student's parent; (b) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or receiving information from the record, and comply with parents' requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, BER's, incident reports, notification of injuries and all other relevant reports. LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) business days.

#### **10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE**

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect.

#### 11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST

This contract binds CONTRACTOR's successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any change of ownership or corporate control.

#### 12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the County where the LEA is located.

## 13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' notice of any such changes or modifications made to conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the modification or changes are based.

#### 14. **TERMINATION**

This Master Contract or ISA may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall give twenty (20) days prior written notice.

#### **15. INSURANCE**

CONTRACTOR shall, at CONTRACTOR'S sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term of this Contract, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof:

#### PART I - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AND AGENCIES

A. **Commercial General Liability Insurance**, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$2,000,000 per occurrence
\$500,000 fire damage
\$5,000 medical expenses
\$1,000,000 personal & adv. Injury
\$3,000,000 general aggregate
\$2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR's policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such coverage.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- C. **Commercial Auto Liability Insurance** for all owned, non-owned or hired automobiles with a \$1 million combined single limit.

If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required.

If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students' homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with State of California auto insurance requirements.

D. Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits:

\$1,000,000 per occurrence \$2,000,000 general aggregate

E. CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this Contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured's premiums on all insurance policies and shall be paid by

CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR's obligations under this contract at no additional charge.

- F. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above \$100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's sole cost, to: (a) cause its insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation.
- G. For any claims related to the services performed in connection with this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage shall be the primary insurance with respect to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it.
- H. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate.

#### PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY ("RTC")

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS affiliated with a **residential treatment center** (**NPS/RTC**), the following insurance policies are required:

A. **Commercial General Liability** including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as follows:

\$3,000,000 per occurrence \$6,000,000 in General Aggregate.

The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as *named* additional insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC's insurance primary despite any conflicting provisions in the RTC's policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above \$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA.

- B. Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act (Statutory Coverage). The Workers' Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers Liability coverage with limits of \$1,000,000/\$1,000,000.
- *C.* **Commercial Auto Liability** coverage with limits of \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required coverage limit is \$5,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence.
- D. Fidelity Bond or Crime Coverage shall be maintained by the RTC to cover all employees who process or otherwise have responsibility for RTC funds, supplies, equipment or other assets. Minimum amount of coverage shall be \$250,000 per occurrence, with no self-insured retention.
- E. **Professional Liability/Errors & Omissions/Malpractice** coverage with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

F. Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of \$3,000,000 per occurrence and \$6,000,000 general aggregate.

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations.

#### 16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors ("LEA Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or the applicable insurance carrier.

To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors ("CONTRACTOR Indemnities") harmless against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys' fees) resulting from or arising out of this Master Contract or its performance thereof, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was proximately caused by the negligent, intentional act or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or any CONTRACTOR Indemnities).

LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the State of California, that the selfinsurance covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance covers the LEA's indemnification obligations under this Master Contract.

#### 17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Contract as an independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of the other. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform any services for the LEA.

If the LEA is determined to be a partner, joint venture, co-principal, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, liability, or damages arising from that determination, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding.

#### **18. SUBCONTRACTING**

CONTRACTOR shall provide written notification to LEA before subcontracting for special education and/or related services pursuant to this Master Contract. In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to provide such service(s). If LEA elects to provide such service(s), LEA shall provide written notification to CONTRACTOR within five (5) days of receipt of CONTRACTOR's original notice and CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract for said service(s).

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of special education and/or related services (including, but not limited to, transportation) for any student, CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each subcontract. Such subcontractor's insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and approved by the LEA before the subcontractor's work commences. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional insured.

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All Certificates of Insurance must reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract.

#### **19.** CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and Government Code Section 1090 including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student's advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR's facility if the attorney or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest.

The LEA shall neither execute an ISA with CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e., before or after the student is enrolled in CONTRACTOR's school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as "IEE") and its recommendations, the LEA may not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the LEA may not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR may provide an IEE.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided by an individual who is or was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty-five (365) days prior to executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of the school year by LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private pay or tuition free "scholarship" basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings.

CONTRACTOR shall not, in employment or operation of its programs, unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, national origin, ancestry, race, color, ethnicity, ethnic group affiliation, religion,

87

age, marital status, pregnancy or parental status, sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity or expression, physical or mental disability, genetic information or any other classification protected by federal or state law or the perception of one or more of such characteristics or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

#### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM

#### 21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE)

The LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan (hereinafter referred to as "ITP") of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services (including transition services) to each student within the NPS/A consistent with the student's IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined in the student's IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease.

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities, as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student's enrollment under the terms of this Master Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the student is no longer enrolled in the NPS. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. CONTRACTOR may charge a student's parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a written acknowledgment signed by the student's parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial responsibility.

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education shall not interfere with the student's receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing.

#### 22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION

All NPS/A services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 *et seq...* 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE's standards regarding the particular course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. Students shall have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards ("CCSS") for curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive;

and provide standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by an LEA, that contracts with the NPS: (b) college preparation courses; (c) extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling.

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades 9 through 12 inclusive, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward graduation or completion of LEA's diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA's graduation requirements.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR's general program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and be consistent with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student's IEP and ISA. The NPA providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the nature of their NPA service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be provided in writing to the LEA. Schoolbased services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a Licensed Children's Institution (LCI), all services not provided in the school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize emergency services as requested. LCI CONTRACTORS shall ensure that appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing.

#### 23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP and ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and passing time shall be at the same level that Ed. Code prescribes for the LEA.

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified in the student's IEP.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student's ISA developed in accordance with the student's IEP.

#### 24. CLASS SIZE

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that class size shall not exceed a ratio of one teacher per twelve (12) students, unless CONTRACTOR and LEA agree otherwise in writing. Upon prior written approval by an authorized LEA representative, class size may be temporarily increased by a

ratio of 1 teacher to fourteen (14) students when necessary during the regular or extended school year to provide services to students with disabilities.

In the event a NPS is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the CDE Certification of that school, the NPS shall develop a plan to ensure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing existing certificated staff. The NPS and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract year where class size may be increased to ensure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a NPA.

CONTRACTOR providing special education instruction for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three and five years, inclusive, shall also comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child ratios pursuant to California Education Code sections 56440 et seq.

#### 25. CALENDARS

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA's extended school year calendar. Billable days shall include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes.

Unless otherwise specified by the student's IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student shall only be eligible for extended school year services as determined by the IEP team and the provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of twenty (20) instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended school year in excess of twenty (20) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of the extended school year.

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year and received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPS service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Day, President's Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA-developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student's IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise specified in the LEA student's ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only those days that the LEA student's school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any NPA service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.

#### 26. DATA REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide data related to all sections of this contract, including student discipline as noted below, and requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all NPS/A shall utilize the LEA approved electronic IEP system for all IEP development, service tracking documentation, and progress reporting, unless otherwise agreed to by the LEA. Additional progress reporting may be required by the LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet permissions to allow adequate access.

Using forms developed by the CDE or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Code sections 48900 and 48915. CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code sections 48900 and 48915.

The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA may approve use of CONTRACTOR'S provided forms at their discretion.

#### 27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive Environment ("LRE") options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to enable students to transition to less restrictive settings.

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team's recommended activities to support the transition.

#### 28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall administer all statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress ("CAASPP"), Desired Results Developmental Profile ("DRDP"), California Alternative Assessment ("CAA"), achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("ELPAC"), the Alternative English Language Proficiency Assessments for California ("Alternative ELPAC"), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal guidelines.

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR'S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA.

#### 29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, data collection, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does not constitute a billable service hour(s).

#### 30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 49005, *et seq.*, 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it's implementing regulations. If the IEP team determines that a student's behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan ("BIP"), the IEP team may conclude it is sufficient to address the student's behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and behavioral interventions to support those goals.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all of its staff members are trained in crisis intervention, emergency procedures, and evidenced-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the CONTRACTOR's pupil population. The training shall be provided within 30 days of employment to new staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day, and annually to all staff who have any contact or interaction with pupils during the school day. The CONTRACTOR shall select and conduct the training in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1. CONTRACTOR shall maintain written records of the training and provide written verification of the training annually and upon request.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law enforcement agency.

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. Emergencies *require* a behavior emergency report form be completed and submitted to the LEA within twenty-four (24) hours for administrative action. CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours via telephone. If the student's IEP does not contain a BIP, an IEP team shall schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral interventions have proven to be ineffective. CONTRACTOR shall schedule with LEA an IEP meeting within two (2) days.

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following:

- 1.any intervention that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock;
- 2.an intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the face of the individual;
- 3.an intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities;
- 4. an intervention that is designed to subject, used to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected to cause excessive emotional trauma;
- 5.restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency intervention;
- 6.locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room;
- 7.an intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual;

8.an intervention that deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with Education Code section 49005.8. Specifically, Contractor shall not do any of the following:

- 1. Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation.
- 2. Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a locked room.
- 3. Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs the pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's torso or back.
- 4. Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited to, using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face.
- 5. Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained behind the pupil's back.
- 6. Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses a clear and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others.

CONTRACTOR shall keep constant, direct observation of a pupil who is in seclusion, which may be through observation of the pupil through a window, or another barrier, through which the educational provider is able to make direct eye contact with the pupil. This observation shall not be through indirect means, including through a security camera or a closed-circuit television.

CONTRACTOR shall afford pupils who are restrained the least restrictive alternative and the maximum freedom of movement, and shall use the least number of restraint points, while ensuring the physical safety of the pupil and others.

If prone restraint techniques are used by CONTRACTOR, a staff member shall observe the pupil for any signs of physical distress throughout the use of prone restraint. Whenever possible, the staff member monitoring the pupil shall not be involved in restraining the pupil.

In the case of a child whose behavior impedes the child's learning or that of others, the IEP team shall consider the use of positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations.

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student's parent/guardian when any type of physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or

mechanical restraint or seclusions of an LEA student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification requirements listed above.

#### **31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE**

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state and federal law and regulations. Using forms developed by the California Department of Education or as otherwise mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall provide LEA, on a monthly basis, a written report of all incidents in which a statutory offense is committed by any LEA student, regardless if it results in a disciplinary action of suspension or expulsion. This includes all statutory offenses as described in Education Codes 48900 and 48915.CONTRACTOR shall also include incidents resulting in the use of a behavioral restraint and/or seclusion even if they were not a result of a violation of Education Code Sections 48900 and 48915.

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student's name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student's behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at an IEP meeting no later than the tenth (10<sup>th</sup>) day of suspension.

#### **32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS**

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the NPS; and (3) whether changes to the student's IEP are necessary, including whether the student may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and (ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).)

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any part of the school day, the IEP team shall document a description of activities provided to integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student's IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR'S professional responsibility and is not a billable service under this Master Contract.

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP planning and progress reporting at the LEA's discretion. The LEA or SELPA may provide training for any CONTRACTOR to ensure access to the approved system. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain confidentiality of all IEP data on the approved system and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a student dis-enrolls from the NPS/NPA, the NPS/NPA and LEA shall discontinue use of the approved system for that student.

Changes in any student's educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student's IEP. In

the event that the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a review of the student's IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student's placement. Student is entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.

#### 33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. Surrogate parents shall serve as the child's parent and have all the rights relative to the student's education that a parent has under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 1414-1482 and 34 CFR 300.1-300.756. A pupil in foster care shall be defined pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled in a NPS by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil's second year of high school, the CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1.

#### 34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and hearings, as requested by LEA. Participation further includes the willingness to make CONTRACTOR's staff available for witness preparation and testimony as is necessary to facilitate a due process hearing. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR's program and/or the implementation of a particular student's IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan ("IFSP").

#### **35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES**

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information (including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4600 *et seq.*; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 (a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA"). CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA of any complaints filed against it related to LEA students and provide LEA with all documentation related to the complaints and/or its investigation of complaints, including any and all reports generated as a result of an investigation.

#### 36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS

Unless LEA requests in writing that progress reports be provided on a monthly basis, CONTRACTOR shall provide to parents at least four (4) written progress reports/report cards. At a minimum, progress reports shall include progress over time towards IEP goals and objectives. A copy of the progress reports/report cards shall be maintained at the CONTRACTOR's place of business and shall be submitted to the LEA and LEA student's parent(s) quarterly.

The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data

sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA.

CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student's annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student's present levels of performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient copies of its reports, documents, and projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request.

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or approved separately by the LEA at the LEA's sole discretion.

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For NPA services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each professional's license, certification, or credential.

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student's parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil's record and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request.

#### **37. TRANSCRIPTS**

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them on LEA approved forms to the student's school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### **38.** STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE

Within five (5) school days from the date CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student's change of residence, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA, in writing, of the student's change of residence. Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify CONTRACTOR of the student's change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents.

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student's change of residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall not be responsible for the costs of services delivered following the student's change of residence.

#### **39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM**

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including

student's change of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and parent/guardian withdrawal of student against professional advice from a NPS/RTC.

#### 40. PARENT ACCESS

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters, when applicable. CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students.

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent's reasonable request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least thirty (30) days in advance. When requested, CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses shall be made directly through the LEA consistent with LEA Procedures.

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student's home as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergencies. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider.

All problems and/or concerns reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided, in writing, to the LEA.

### 41. LICENSED CHILDREN'S INSTITUTION ("LCI") CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER ("RTC") CONTRACTORS

If CONTRACTOR is a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1 and any other applicable laws and/or regulations, including LEA guidelines or procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its NPS as a condition of being placed in its residential facility.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS/RTC, CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq. including the federal regulations 34 C.F.R section 300 et seq. and Education Code section 56000 et seq. including Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq.. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all monitoring requirements set forth in Section 43 below.

If CONTRACTOR is a NPS that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as eligible for special education. For those identified as special education students, the list shall include: 1) special education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each student's IEP at the time of enrollment. A copy of the current IEP shall be provided to the LEA.

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with NPS placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a NPS placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student's parent or another adult with educational decision-making rights.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 42. STATE MEAL MANDATE

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate under California Education Code sections 49005 et seq.; 49501.5, the universal meal mandate enacted by AB 130 (2021-2022); 49530 et seq; and 49550 et seq.

#### 43. MONITORING

When CONTRACTOR is an NPS, the LEA or SELPA shall conduct at least one onsite monitoring visit during each school year to the NPS at which the LEA has a pupil attending and with which it maintains a master contract. The monitoring visit shall include, but is not limited to, a review of services provided to the pupil through the ISA between the LEA and the NPS, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's individualized education program, a review of progress the pupil is making toward the goals set forth in the pupil's behavioral intervention plan, if applicable, an observation of the pupil during instruction, and a walkthrough of the facility. The LEA or SELPA shall report the findings resulting from the monitoring visit to the California Department of Education within 60 calendar days of the onsite visit.

The LEA or SELPA shall conduct an onsite visit to the NPS before placement of a pupil if the LEA does not have any pupils enrolled at the school at the time of placement.

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for additional periodic monitoring of each student's instructional program. LEA shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, and review each student's records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR shall be invited to participate in the review of each student's progress.

If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or NPS/RTC, the CDE shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b).

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction ("Superintendent") shall monitor CONTRACTOR'S facilities, the educational environment, and the quality of the educational program, including the teaching staff, the credentials authorizing service, the standards-based core curriculum being employed, and the standard focused instructional materials used on a three-year cycle, as follows: (1) CONTRACTOR shall complete a self-review in year one; (2) the Superintendent shall conduct an onsite review in year two; and (3) the Superintendent shall conduct a follow-up visit in year three.

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA or CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the NPS, compliance with relevant state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or corrective action procedures related to review findings.

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California Education Code Section 33126.

#### PERSONNEL

#### 44. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1, 35021.2, and 56366.1 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as "CDOJ") and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee's conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). Upon request, clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall make a request for subsequent arrest service from CDOJ as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2. Contractor shall certify to LEA that they have successful background checks and enrolled in subsequent arrest notification service for all employees who may come into contact with students.

Notwithstanding the restrictions on sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the NPS/A. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall be provided to the LEA upon request.

#### 45. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations sections 3001(r), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher's scope of practice.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)).

In accordance with California Education Code section 56366.1(a)(5), when CONTRACTOR is a NPS, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. The administrator of the NPS holds or is in the process of obtaining one of the following: (A) An administrative credential granted by an accredited postsecondary educational institution and two years of experience with pupils with disabilities. (B) A pupil personnel services credential that authorizes school counseling or psychology. (C) A license as a

clinical social worker issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (D) A license in psychology regulated by the Board of Psychology. (E) A master's degree issued by an accredited postsecondary institution in education, special education, psychology, counseling, behavioral analysis, social work, behavioral science, or rehabilitation. (F) A credential authorizing special education instruction and at least two years of experience teaching in special education before becoming an administrator. (G) A license as a marriage and family therapist certified by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (H) A license as an educational psychologist issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (I) A license as a professional clinical counselor

issued by the Board of Behavioral Sciences. (California Education Code Section 56366.1 (a)(5)). CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to the LEA upon request, documentation of its administrator's qualifications in accordance with the above.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 *et seq.* and 45350 *et seq.* Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate's (or higher) degree; or (c) met a rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision.

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.).

#### 46. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list, and copies of all current licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any student.

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA and CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within forty-five (45) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 47. STAFF ABSENCE

99

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school and CONTRACTOR's classroom teacher is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to the LEA documentation of substitute coverage. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time.

The LEA shall not be responsible for any payment for instruction and/or services when an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher is not provided in accordance with California Education Code section 56061.

When CONTRACTOR is a NPA and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative.

### 48. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified NPS/A shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when made available to the CONTRACTOR.

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by NPS/A providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR upon request. It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional program.

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student's school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home-based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.

#### HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES

#### 49. HEALTH AND SAFETY

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 *et. seq.* and 49406, regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR's employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code.

#### 50. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR's facilities as required complying with applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA.

#### 51. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49422 et seq. when CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such medication after the student's parent(s) provide to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; and (b) a written statement from the student's parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer medication(s) as specified in the physician's statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student's name; the type of medication; the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR's employee who administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for storing medication in a secure location and ensuring appropriate staff training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician's written orders. Any change in medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician and parent.

#### 52. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING

CONTRACTOR shall submit within 24 hours, electronically, any accident or incident report to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures specified in LEA Procedures.

#### 53. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e., reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA.

#### 54. SEXUAL HARASSMENT

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR's policy, as well as federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1.

#### 55. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by the LEA.

#### FINANCIAL

## 56. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, AND BILLING PROCEDURES

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the nonpublic school or nonpublic agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement the IEP and ISA for each and every student.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA Procedures, as well as provide all such records requested by LEA concerning the same. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services specified in the student's IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program, each related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides. Original attendance forms (i.e., roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices and related documents to LEA for payment, for each calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by LEA. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when the service was provided.

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included.

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR at no additional charge for such training.

### 103

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of LEA's receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected re-billing invoice is received by LEA.

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond December 31<sup>st</sup> after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract fiscal year (July through June) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re-billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee.

#### 57. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR's educational program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student's change of residence to another district or confirms the change of residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or (h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year.

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain uncorrected.

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of overpayment; (c) the portion of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided to the student.

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA's withholding payment and the amount to

be withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA's withholding payment or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies or submit to LEA written documentation demonstrating that the basis or bases cited by the LEA for withholding payment is unfounded. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR's time to correct deficiencies (usually an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied.

If after subsequent request for payment has been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to CONTRACTOR's notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA's response to CONTRACTOR's notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy.

<u>After forty-five (45) business days</u>: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA's Representative of the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing within fifteen (15) business days.

<u>After sixty (60) business days</u>: The LEA or CONTRACTOR may appeal to the County Superintendent of Schools so long as the County Superintendent of Schools is not participating in the Local Plan involved in the NPS/A contract, or a mutually agreed upon mediator. Both parties agree to pay for their own costs and expenses arising out of such mediation. Each party agrees to act in good faith in participating in any mediation process agreed to by the parties.

#### 58. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. CONTRACTOR shall provide prior written notice of the rights and protections required by Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 300.154(d) whenever it seeks to use the LEA students' public benefits to pay for special education and related services. Such notice shall be provided before seeking payment from Medi-Cal for the first time and annually.

#### **59. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES**

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE

Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher's classroom in accordance with California Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher.

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided unless otherwise agreed in student's IEP.

#### NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth  $(10^{th})$  cumulative day of a student's unexcused absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence.

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. *Per Diem* rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible for payment of related services for days on which a student's attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR's service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR's service providers. LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of "make-up" services by a qualified service provider within thirty (30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not "bank" or "carry over" make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not provided shall be included.

#### NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth  $(5^{th})$  consecutive service day of the student's absence. LEA shall not be responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent.

#### 60. LEA and/or NONPUBLIC SCHOOL CLOSURE DUE TO EMERGENCY

The following shall apply in the event of a LEA or NPS school closure due to an emergency consistent with guidelines followed by LEAs in accordance with Education Code sections 41422 and 46392:

- a. If CONTRACTOR remains open, if allowed, during an emergency and serves students appropriately as delineated in the ISA, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment, regardless of whether a sending LEA is open or closed.
- b. NPS School Closure- In the event of a NPS School Closure for the reasons set forth in Education Code section 41422, if the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure. If the LEA is unable to obtain an alternative placement, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, as though the student were continuing his/her regular attendance, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions.
- c. LEA and NPS School Closure- In the event of the LEA and NPS School Closures, on days the LEA is funded, CONTRACTOR shall receive payment consistent with the student's approved ISA, until an alternative placement can be found and implement LEA student IEP in accordance with Education Code section 56345(a)(9) pertaining to emergency conditions. If the LEA is able to obtain alternative placement for the student, CONTRACTOR shall not receive payment for days the student is not in attendance with CONTRACTOR due to CONTRACTOR'S school closure.

When the emergency school closure is lifted, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEAs it serves of any lost instructional minutes. CONTRACTOR and LEAs shall work collaboratively to determine the need for

make-up days or service changes, and shall work together to amend IEP and ISA paperwork as appropriate.

#### 61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker's compensation insurance policies; state NPS/A certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited.

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR's offices (to be specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five (5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance for such examination or audit. LEA's rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR's offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR's employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the electronic format.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA.

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR's over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA's written notice demanding payment.

#### 62. RATE SCHEDULE

The attached rate schedule (Exhibit A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required minimum number of minutes per grade level as set forth in paragraph 23, above, and in California Education Code Section 46200-46208.

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A.

#### 63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:

- (a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are <u>not</u> presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, and
- (b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity with, commission of any of these offenses.

The parties hereto have executed this Contract by and through their duly authorized agents or representatives. This contract is effective on the 13 day of November, 2023 and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

#### CONTRACTOR

#### LEA

PARTNERS IN SPECIAL EDUCATION Nonpublic School/Agency		PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL LEA Name	
By:	11/16/2023	By:	
Signature	Date	Signature Date	
John Hall Jr		ERIN GORENCE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR	
Name and Title of Autho Representative	rized	Authorized Representative	
Notices to CONTRACTOR shal		Notices to LEA shall be addressed to:	
Carol Mispagel, Senior Director of Opera	itions		
Name and Title		Name and Title	
		ERIN GORENCE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR	
Nonpublic School/Agency/Related	Service Provider	r LEA	
PARTNERS IN SPECIAL EDUC	ATION	PACIFIC VIEW CHARTER SCHOOL	
Address 320 N Halstead St Suite 110		Address 3670 OCEAN RANCH BLVD	
City State	Zip	City State Zip	
Pasadena, CA	91107	OCEANSIDE CA 92056	
Phone         Fax           626-921-8241		Phone Fax 760-757-0161	
Email		Email egorence@pacificview.org	

Additional LEA Notification (Required if completed)

Name and Title LINDA MOORE, SPECIAL ED COORDINATOR		
Address 3670 OCEAN RANCH BLVD		
City OCEANSDIE	State CA	Zip 92056
Phone 760-757-0161 ext 1	Fax 35	
Email lmoore@pacificvie	ew.org	
#### EXHIBIT A: 2023-2024 RATES

### 109

4.1	RATE SCHEDULE FOR CONTRACT YEAR								
	NTRACTOR:								
PER ED CODE 56366 – TEACHER-TO-PUPIL RATIO:									
Maximur	n Contract Amount:								
Educatio	on service(s) offered by the CONTRACTOR and the charge	s for such service(s) d	luring th	e term of this contract	shall be as follows:				
1)	Daily Basic Education Rate:								
2)	Inclusive Education Program (Includes Educational Counseling (not ed related mental health) services, Speech & Language services, Behavior Intervention Planning, and Occupational Therapy as specified on the student's IEP.) DAILY RATE:								
3)	Related Services								
<u>SERVIC</u>	<u>E</u>	RATE		PERIOD					
Intensive	e Individual Services (340)		-						
Languag	e and Speech (415)								
Adapted	Physical Education (425)		-						
<u>Health a</u>	nd Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)		-						
<u>Health a</u>	nd Nursing: Other Services (436)								
<u>Assistive</u>	e Technology Services (445)		-						
Occupational Therapy (450)									
Physical Therapy (460)			-						
<u>Individua</u>	al Counseling (510)		-						
Counseling and Guidance (515)									
Parent C	Counseling (520)		_						

\_\_\_\_\_

\_

\_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_

Social Work Services (525)

Psychological Services (530)

Behavior Intervention Services (535)

Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)

Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing (710)

Interpreter Services (715)

Audiological Services (720)

Specialized Vision Services (725)	 
Orientation and Mobility (730)	 
Specialized Orthopedic Services (740)	 
Reader Services (745)	
Transcription Services (755)	
Recreation Services, Including Therapeutic (760)	
College Awareness (820)	 
Work Experience Education (850)	 
Job Coaching (855)	 
Mentoring (860)	 
Travel Training (870)	 
Other Transition Services (890)	 
Other (900)	 -
Other (no code)	 

#### EXHIBIT B: 2023-2024 ISA

## INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (ISA) FOR NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL SERVICES (Education Code Sections 56365 et seq.)

This agreement is effective on <u>November 13, 2023</u> or the date student begins attending a nonpublic school or receiving services from a nonpublic agency, if after the date identified, and terminates at 5:00 P.M. on June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated as provided in the Master Contract and by applicable law.

Local Education Agency	Nonpublic Schoo	l
LEA Case Manager: Name	F	Phone Number
Pupil Name(Last) Address	(First) City	Sex:  M  F Grade: (M.I.) State/Zip
DOB Residential Setting: Hom	ne 🗌 Foster 🔲 LCI #	
Parent/Guardian Address (If different from student)		( ) (Business) (Residence) State/Zip
AGREEMENT TERMS: 1. <i>Nonpublic School</i> : The average number of minute	· · · · ·	during the regular school year during the extended school year
2. Nonpublic School: The number of school days in t	the calendar of the school year are:	during the regular school year during the extended school year
3. Educational services as specified in the IEP shall	be provided by the CONTRACTOR and paid	at the rates specified below.
A. INCLUSIVE AND/OR BASIC EDUCATION	PROGRAM RATE: (Applies to nonpublic sci	hools only): Daily Rate:
Estimated Number of Days x Dail	y Rate = PROJECTED BAS	IC EDUCATION COSTS
B. RELATED SERVICES:		

	Provider						
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Intensive Individual Services (340)							
Language/Speech Therapy (415) a. Individual b. Group							
Adapted Physical Ed. (425)							
Health and Nursing: Specialized Physical Health Care (435)							
Health and Nursing Services: Other (436)							
Assistive Technology Services (445)							
Occupational Therapy (450)							
Physical Therapy (460)							
Individual Counseling (510)							
Counseling and guidance (515).							
Parent Counseling (520)							

## 

		Provid	er				
SERVICE	LEA	NPS	OTHER Specify	# of Times per wk/mo/yr., Duration; or per IEP; or as needed	Cost per session	Maximum Number of Sessions	Estimated Maximum Total Cost for Contracted Period
Social Work Services (525)							
Psychological Services (530)							
Behavior Intervention Services (535)							
Specialized Services for Low Incidence Disabilities (610)							
Specialized Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (710)							
Interpreter Services (715)							
Audiological Services (720)							
Specialized Vision Services (725)							
Orientation and Mobility (730)							
Braille Transcription (735)							
Specialized Orthopedic Service (740)							
Reader Services (745)							
Note Taking Services (750)							
Transcription Services (755)							
Recreation Services (760)							
College Awareness Preparation (820)							
Vocational Assessment, Counseling, Guidance and Career Assessment (830)							
Career Awareness (840)							
Work Experience Education (850)							
Mentoring (860)							
Agency Linkages (865)							
Travel Training (870)							
Other Transition Services (890)							
Other (900)							
Other (no code)							
Transportation-Emergency b. Transportation-Parent							
Bus Passes							
Other							

<b>TOTAL ESTIMATED MAXIMUM BAS</b> 4. Other Provisions/Attachments:	IC EDUCATION AND F	RELATED SERV	ICES COSTS \$	
5. MASTER CONTRACT APPROVED	BY THE GOVERNING	BOARD ON		
6.Progress Reporting Requirements:	Quarterly	Monthly	Other (Specify)	
e parties hereto have executed this Income ow. -CONTRAC	-	greement by ar		nts or representatives as set forth
ame of Nonpublic School/Agency)			(Name of LEA/SELPA)	
ignature)		(Date)	(Signature)	(Date)
ame and Title)			(Name of Superintendent or Author	orized Designee)

113

# 9.5

## **Pacific View Charter School**

#### Students

Student Policy #24

#### Harassment, Discrimination, Intimidation and Bullying Prevention Policy

It is the policy of Pacific View Charter School to create and maintain a learning environment where students and employees are treated with dignity, decency and respect. It is also the policy of Pacific View Charter School to maintain an environment that encourages and fosters appropriate conduct among all persons and respect for individual values. Accordingly, the School is committed to enforcing this Harassment, Discrimination, Intimidation and Bullying Prevention Policy at all levels in order to create an environment free from all forms of discrimination, harassment, intimidation and bullying. Discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying based on the following characteristics, whether actual or perceived: race, religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (including language use restrictions), immigration status, citizenship status, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy or childbirth), gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military and veteran status, or association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned characteristics or any other legally protected category is unlawful and undermines the character and purpose of the School. Such discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying violates School policy and will not be tolerated. This policy applies to anyone on campus at the School or those attending School sponsored activities. This policy also applies to all acts of the governing board in enacting policies and procedures that govern Pacific View Charter School.

Any form of retaliation against anyone who has complained or formally reported discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying or against anyone who has participated in an investigation of such a complaint, regardless of whether the complaint relates to the complaining person or someone else, will not be tolerated and violates this policy and the law.

If the School possesses information that could indicate immigration status, citizenship status or national origin information, the School shall not use the acquired information to discriminate against any students or families or bar children from enrolling in or attending school. If parents or guardians choose not to provide information that could indicate their or their children's immigration status, citizenship status or national origin information, the School shall not use such actions as a basis to discriminate against any students or families or bar children from enrolling or attending school.

Each year, the School shall educate students about the negative impact of bullying other students based on their actual or perceived immigration status or their religious beliefs or customs. The School shall also train teachers, staff and personnel to ensure that they are aware

of their legal duty to take reasonable steps to eliminate a hostile environment and respond to any incidents of harassment based on the actual or perceived characteristics noted above. Such training shall provide School personnel with the skills to do the following:

- Discuss the varying immigration experiences among members of the student body and school community;
- Discuss bullying-prevention strategies with students, and teach students to recognize the behavior and characteristics of bullying perpetrators and victims;
- Identify the signs of bullying or harassing behavior;
- Take immediate corrective action when bullying is observed; and
- Report incidents to the appropriate authorities, including law enforcement in instances of criminal behavior.

### **Definitions**

**Discrimination:** Discrimination is adverse treatment of any person based on the protected class or category of persons to whom he/she belongs and such treatment limits students from participating or benefiting from school activities or services.

**Harassment:** Harassment is unwelcome verbal or physical conduct prohibited by law directed toward, or differential treatment of, a student because of his/her membership (or perceived membership) in any protected group or on any other prohibited basis. The harasser can be a student, a School official or employee, or someone who is not an employee of the School, such as a vendor or parent.

Examples of such conduct include, but are not limited to:

- Offensive or degrading remarks, verbal abuse, or other hostile behavior such as insulting, teasing, mocking, name calling, degrading or ridiculing another person or group
- Racial slurs, derogatory remarks about a person's accent, or display of racially offensive symbols
- Unwelcome or inappropriate physical contact, comments, questions, advances, jokes epithets or demands
- Physical assault or stalking
- Displays or electronic transmission of derogatory, demeaning or hostile materials
- Graphic and written statements, which may include use of cell phones or the Internet

Harassment does not have to include intent to harm, be directed at a specific target or involve repeated incidents. Harassment creates a hostile environment when the conduct is sufficiently severe, pervasive or persistent so as to interfere with or limit a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities or opportunities offered by the School.

**Sexual Harassment:** Sexual harassment is a form of harassment based on sex, including sexual harassment, gender harassment and harassment based on pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions. It generally involves unwanted sexual advances, or visual, verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. This definition includes many forms of offensive behavior and includes gender-based harassment of a person of the same sex as the harasser. The following is a partial list of violations:

- Unwanted sexual advances
- Offering educational benefits in exchange for sexual favors
- Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances
- Visual conduct: leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of suggestive objects or pictures, cartoons or posters
- Verbal conduct: making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs and jokes
- Verbal sexual advances or propositions
- Verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic verbal commentaries about an individual's body, sexually degrading words used to describe an individual, suggestive or obscene letters, notes or invitations
- Physical conduct: touching, assault, impeding or blocking movements

**Intimidation:** Intimidation includes adverse actions intended to fill another with fear, to overawe or cow, as through force of personality or by superior display of wealth, talent, etc., or to force another into or deter from some action by inducing fear.

**Bullying:** Bullying may take place in a variety of hostile acts that are carried out repeatedly over time. The acts involve a real or perceived imbalance of power, with the more powerful child or group attacking those who are less powerful. It may be physical (hitting, kicking, spitting, pushing), verbal (taunting, malicious teasing, name calling, threatening), or psychological (spreading rumors, manipulating social relationships, or promoting social exclusion, extortion or intimidation). Bullying is any severe or pervasive action or conduct directed toward one or more students that have the effect of one or more of the following: 1) places a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or her physical or mental health; 3) causes a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with is or her academic performance; 4) causes a reasonable student to experience interference with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities or privileges provided by the School.

Other types of bullying:

- Sexual bullying includes many of the actions typical of bullying behavior with the added actions of exhibitionism, voyeurism, sexual propositioning, sexual harassment and sexual abuse (touching, physical contact, sexual assault).
- Bias or hate-motivated bullying is a basic bias against or hate for a person or group. Examples include taunting one's race, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, or physical or mental disabilities. The bullying behavior may also be aggressive, antagonistic, and assaultive.

- Hazing is a form of aggressive behavior that usually involves intimidation and humiliation during an initiation for a student organization or body, club, group or sports team. It may involve conduct that is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current or prospective pupil. Hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.
- Cyberbullying involves bullying conduct that is created or transmitted by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone or other wireless communication device, computer or pager communicating any of the following:

   a message, text, sound or image; 2) a post on a social network Internet Web site, including a "Burn Page," an impersonation of another student, and a false profile.
- Cyber sexual bullying involves dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more effects described in (1) (4) above. A photograph or other visual recording shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording or other electronic act.
- Social media bullying involves bullying through forums for social media, such as internet websites with free registration and ease of registration, internet websites offering peer-to-peer instant messaging (such as Snapchat, Tox, FireChat, Orbit, Bleep), internet websites offering comment forums (such as FaceBook, Twitter, Reddit) and internet websites offering image or video posting platforms (such as YouTube, Instagram, Twitch, Imgur).

**Retaliation:** Retaliation is any adverse action taken against a student because he or she filed a charge of harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying complaint to the School or another agency or participated in an investigation about the same (such as an internal investigation or lawsuit), including as a witness. Retaliation also includes adverse action taken against someone who is associated with the individual opposing the perceived harassment, discrimination, intimidation or bullying.

### Reporting Discrimination, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying or Retaliation

Any student who believes that he or she has been the victim of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying or retaliation prohibited by this policy, or any student who has witnessed such discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying or retaliation, should immediate report the circumstances in accordance with the procedure set forth below. The School will investigate any conduct that violates this policy, even in the absence of a complaint, and take remedial action where appropriate.

A student may make a complaint, written or oral, to any of the individuals listed below:

- Their teacher, school counselor or other school personnel
- The Executive Director or Designee

Complaints may be submitted to the Executive Director or Designee Executive Director or Designee by phone, email, by filling out a complaint form, or in person.

Any teacher, school counselor or other school employee that receives any complaints of misconduct, or personally observes, learns about from others, or reasonably suspects has occurred, shall report the same to the Executive Director or Designee, so that the School may attempt to resolve the claim internally. Any School personnel that witness an act of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying or retaliation shall take immediate steps to intervene when it is safe to do so.

#### **Investigation and Disposition of Complaints**

The School will conduct a prompt, thorough and impartial investigation that provides all parties appropriate due process and reaches reasonable conclusions based on the evidence collected. The investigation, conducted by a qualified investigator(s) (who may be a School employee), will include an interview with the alleged student-victim and his/her parent(s)/guardian(s). It may also include interviews with the person who made the initial report, the complainant (if not the alleged victim), the alleged wrongdoer and/or any other person who may have information regarding the incident, each of whom are encouraged to cooperate with any investigation. The investigator may also review any relevant documents.

The School will endeavor to complete its investigation within thirty (30) days of a report of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, bullying or retaliation.

Confidentiality of the complaint and investigation will be kept by the School to the extent possible, but note that the investigation will not be completely confidential. The School shall ensure confidentiality with respect to a student's or family's immigration status.

The investigator (if a third party) will report his/her findings to the Executive Director or Designee and/or Board of Directors. Where the investigator concludes that a violation of this policy has occurred, the Executive Director or Designee and/or Board of Directors will take prompt and appropriate remedial action, including disciplinary action. Depending upon the circumstances, disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to suspension, alternative to suspension, recommendation for transfer to home study, and/or expulsion. Discipline for a violation of this policy is not progressive, so a first violation of this policy may warrant suspension or a recommendation for expulsion.

Every complaint will trigger the creation of an investigatory file. The investigatory file will consist of the initial complaint, the final investigative report, including a record of the remedial action to be taken, if any, and all documents created, used or reviewed during the investigation.

At the conclusion of the investigation, the Executive Director or Designee shall notify the complainant of the manner in which it has resolved the matter. If, within 30 days after

notification of resolution, the complainant does not agree with the resolution, the complainant may appeal the matter to the Board of Directors of the School by filing a notice of appeal stating the reasons for the appeal and specific disagreement with the School's resolution of the complaint. The Board of Directors will provide the student with a final decision of the School's resolution 5 days after the Board of Directors' next regularly scheduled board meeting. If the student does not agree with the final determination of the Board of Directors, the student may appeal to the California Department of Education using the appeal process adopted in the School's Uniform Complaint Procedures.

### **Parental Notification:**

Each year, the School shall notify parents and guardians of their children's right to a free public education, regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs. This information shall include information related to the "Know Your Rights" immigration enforcement established by the California Attorney General. The School shall also inform students who are the victims of hate crimes of their right to report such crimes.

#### **Sexual Harassment Poster**

The School shall create a poster that notifies pupils of the applicable written policy on sexual harassment. The poster shall display, at a minimum, all of the following: 1) The rules and procedures for reporting a charge of sexual harassment; 2) The name, phone number and email address of an appropriate school official to contact to report a charge of sexual harassment; 3) The rights of the reporting pupil, the complainant, and the respondent and the responsibilities of the School in accordance with the School's written policy on sexual harassment.

This poster will be prominently and conspicuously displayed in each bathroom and locker room at the schoolsite. It may be prominently and conspicuously displayed in public areas at the schoolsite that are accessible to, and commonly frequented by students, including, but not limited to classrooms, classroom hallways, gymnasiums, auditoriums and cafeterias. The governing board of the School shall have full discretion to select the appropriate public areas to display the poster at the schoolsite.

Adopted: 6/20/23

## 9.6



## **EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK**

**2023-24** BOARD APPROVED: April 19, 2022 Board Amended: January 17, 2023 Board Amended: August 15, 2023 Board Amended: December xx, 2023

Formatted: Font color: Red

3670 Ocean Ranch Blvd., Oceanside, CA 92056 Phone: 760.757.0161 • Website: www.pacificview.org

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

PLEASE READ THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND SUBMIT A SIGNED COPY OF THIS STATEMENT TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.

EMPLOYEE NAME:

I ACKNOWLEDGE that I have received a copy of the Employee Handbook. I have read and understood the contents of the Handbook, and I agree to abide by its directions and procedures. I have been given the opportunity to ask any questions I might have about the policies in the Handbook. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the policies and procedures contained in the Handbook. I also understand that if I am ever unclear on any language, or policies and procedures in this Handbook, it is my responsibility to seek clarification from the School.

I understand that the statements contained in the Handbook are guidelines for employees concerning some of the School's policies and benefits, and are not intended to create any contractual or other legal obligations or to alter the at-will nature of my employment with the School. In the event I do have an employment contract which expressly alters the at-will relationship, I agree to the foregoing except with reference to an at-will employment status.

I understand that except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices can be changed at any time by the School.

I understand that other than the Board of the School, no person has authority to enter into any agreement, express or implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or to make any agreement for employment other than at-will; only the Board has the authority to make any such agreement and then only in writing signed by the Board President.

Employee's Signature: Date:

Please sign/date, tear out, and return to the School, and retain this Handbook for your reference.

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
WELCOME STATEMENT	1
INTRODUCTION TO HANDBOOK	2
CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	
Equal Employment Opportunity Is Our Policy	3
Employment At-Will	
Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting	4
Criminal Background Checks	5
Tuberculosis Testing	5
Immigration Compliance	5
Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy	6
Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation	9
Policy Prohibiting Workplace Violence	11
Whistleblower Policy	
Drug and AlcoholFree Workplace	14
Confidential Information	14
Conflict of Interest	14
Hiring Relatives	
Smoking	15
THE WORKPLACE	15
Employment Status	
Job Duties	
Operation of Vehicles	16
Use of Equipment	
Use of Stationery & Mail Services	
Employee Property	
Solicitation & Distribution of Literature	
Employee Parking	
Bulletin Boards	
Work Schedule	18
Meal and Rest Periods	19
Lactation Accommodation	
Attendance and Tardiness	
Time <u>c-C</u> ards/Records	
Use of Email, Voicemail and Internet Access	
Personal Business	
Social Media	
Personal Appearance/Standards of Dress	
Telework Policy	
Health and Safety Policy	
Security Protocols	
Occupational Safety Accident/Incident Reporting	
Reporting Fires and Emergencies	
Reporting rates and Emergencies	∠ /

I

EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HEALTH BENEFITS	27
Payroll Withholdings	
Overtime Pay	28
Payment of Wages / Payday	
Wage Attachments and Garnishments	28
Professional Growth	
Medical Benefits	
COBRA Benefits	
PERSONNEL EVALUATION AND RECORD KEEPING	
Employee Reviews and Evaluations	
Personnel Files and Record Keeping Protocols	
HOLIDAYS, VACATION AND LEAVES	31
Holidays	
Vacation	
Unpaid Leave of Absence	
Sick Leave	
Catastrophic Illness Leave	
General Information Regarding Leaves of Absence	
Family Care and Medical Leave	
Pregnancy Disability Leave	
Industrial Injury Leave (Workers' Compensation)	45
Military and Military Spousal Leave of Absence	
Bereavement Leave	
Reproductive Loss Leave	
Jury Duty or Witness Leave	
Voting Time Off	
School Appearance and Activities Leave	
Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave	
Victims of Abuse Leave	
Returning from Leave of Absence	
DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT	49
Rules of Conduct	
Off-Duty Conduct	
Termination of Employment	
1 0	
INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW	52
Internal Complaints	52
Policy for Complaints Against Employees	
General Requirements	
-	
AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK	53
APPENDIX A - HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION/RETALIATION COMPLAINT	FORM

1

APPENDIX B - INTERNAL COMPLAINT FORM

#### WELCOME STATEMENT

Congratulations and thank you for accepting Pacific View Charter School's offer of employment. One of the keys to our success as a School is hiring effective employees. We have hired you because we believe you have the skills and the potential to help the School succeed. We expect and depend upon you to perform the tasks assigned to you to the best of your abilities. We believe that hard work and commitment will not only help us succeed, but will help give you a sense of pride and accomplishment.

We are glad to have you as a member of our team. We hope that your employment proves mutually satisfying and that you will make an important contribution to our future. Every employee has an important role in our operations and we value the abilities, experience and background that you bring with you to our School. It is our staff who provides the services that our students rely upon and enable us to grow and create new opportunities in the years to come.

Our management team intends to provide you with all of the support and the resources you will need to perform your job effectively. If, at any time, you need assistance or guidance, please do not hesitate to ask any of the members of our management team. They are here to help you perform to the best of your abilities.

Once again, welcome to Pacific View Charter School. We are glad to have you with us.

Erin Gorence Executive Director

#### INTRODUCTION TO HANDBOOK

This Handbook is designed to help employees get acquainted with Pacific View Charter School (hereinafter referred to as "Pacific View" or the "School"). It explains some of our philosophies and beliefs, and describes some of our employment guidelines in general terms. Although this Handbook is not intended to be an exclusive or comprehensive policies and procedures manual, we hope that it will serve as a useful reference document for employees throughout their employment at the School. Employees should understand, however, that this Handbook is not intended to be a contract (express or implied), nor is it intended to otherwise create any legally enforceable obligations on the part of the School or its employees. In no way does the Handbook replace any official plan documents (e.g., health insurance, retirement plan, etc.) or insurance contracts, which will govern in all cases. This Handbook supersedes and replaces all previous personnel policies, practices, and guidelines.

Due to the fact that the School is a growing and changing organization, it reserves full discretion to add to, modify, or delete provisions of this Handbook, or the policies and procedures on which they may be based, at any time without advance notice. The School also reserves the right to interpret any of the provisions set forth in this Handbook in any manner it deems appropriate.

No individual other than the Board of Trustees has the authority to enter into any employment or other agreement that modifies School policy. Any such modification *must* be in writing.

This Handbook is the property of the School, and it is intended for personal use and reference by employees of the School. Circulation of this Handbook outside of the School requires the prior written approval of the Executive Director.

Employees must sign the acknowledgment form at the beginning of this Handbook, tear it out, and return it to the Executive Director/Designee. This will provide the School with a record that each employee has received this Handbook.

#### CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

#### **Equal Employment Opportunity Is Our Policy**

The School is an equal opportunity employer. It is the policy of the School to afford equal employment and advancement opportunity to all qualified individuals without regard to:

- Race (including traits historically associated with race, such as hair texture and hairstyle, including but not limited to braids, locks, and twists);
- Color;
- Gender (including gender identity, gender expression, and transgender identity, whether or not the employee is transitioning or has transitioned);
- Sex (including <u>reproductive health decision-making</u>, pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and medical conditions related to such);
- Sex stereotype (including an assumption about a person's appearance or behavior, gender roles, gender expression, or gender identity, or about an individual's ability or inability to perform certain kinds of work based on a myth, social expectation, or generalization about the individual's sex);
- Religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices);
- Marital/registered domestic partner status;
- Age (forty (40) and over);
- National origin or ancestry (including native language spoken-or and possession of a driver's license issued to persons unable to prove their presence in the U.S. is authorized by federal law);
- Physical or mental disability (including HIV and AIDS);
- Medical condition (including cancer and genetic characteristics);
- Taking of a leave of absence pursuant to the Family Medical Leave Act ("FMLA"), Pregnancy Disability Leave ("PDL") law, Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), California Family Rights Act ("CFRA"), the Fair Employment and Housing Act ("FEHA"), or laws related to domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking;
- Genetic information;
- Sexual orientation;
- Military and veteran status; or
- Any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws.

This policy extends to all job applicants and employees and to all aspects of the employment relationship, including the hiring of new employees and the training, transfer, promotion, discipline, termination, compensation and benefits of existing employees.

To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with a disability, the School will make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an employee unless undue hardship would result.

Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential functions of the job should contact a School representative with day-to-day personnel responsibilities and request such an accommodation. The individual with the disability should specify what

accommodation he or she needs to perform the job, or if unknown, what job duties the disability impairs. The School will then conduct an investigation to identify the barriers that interfere with the equal opportunity of the applicant or employee to perform the job. The School will identify possible accommodations, if any, that will help eliminate the limitation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an undue hardship, the School will make the accommodation.

#### **Employment At-Will**

Except if stated expressly otherwise by employment contract, it is the policy of the School that all employees are considered "at-will" employees of the School. Accordingly, either the School or the employee can terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, and with or without advance notice.

Nothing contained in this Handbook, employment applications, School memoranda or other materials provided to employees in connection with their employment shall require the School to have "cause" to terminate an employee or otherwise restrict the School's right to release an employee from their at-will employment with the School. Statements of specific grounds for termination set forth in this Handbook or elsewhere are not all-inclusive and are not intended to restrict the School's right to terminate at-will. No School representative, other than the Board of Trustees or its designee, is authorized to modify this policy for any employee or to make any representations to employees or applicants concerning the terms or conditions of employment with the School that are not consistent with the School's policy regarding "at-will" employment.

This policy shall not be modified by any statements contained in this Handbook or employee applications, School memoranda, or any other materials provided to employees in connection with their employment. Further, none of those documents whether singly or combined, or any employment practices shall create an express or implied contract of employment for a definite period, nor an express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of employment.

#### Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting

California Penal Code section 11166 requires any child care custodian who has knowledge of, or observes, a child in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse to report the known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately, or as soon as practically possible, by telephone and to prepare and send a written report thereof within thirty-six (36) hours of receiving the information concerning the incident.

The School will provide annual training on the mandated reporting requirements, using the online training module provided by the State Department of Social Services, to employees who are mandated reporters. Mandated reporter training will also be provided to employees hired during the course of the school year. This training will include information that failure to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect, as required by Penal Code section 11166, is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six (6) months confinement in a county jail, or by a fine of one-thousand dollars (\$1,000), or by both that imprisonment and fine.

130

All employees required to receive mandated reporter training must provide proof of completing the training within the first six (6) weeks of each school year or within the first six (6) weeks of that employee's employment.

By acknowledging receipt of this Handbook, employees acknowledge they are child care custodians and are certifying that they have knowledge of California Penal Code section 11166 and will comply with its provisions.

#### **Criminal Background Checks**

As required by law, all individuals working or volunteering at the School will be required to submit to a criminal background investigation. No condition or activity will be permitted that may compromise the School's commitment to the safety and the well-being of students taking precedence over all other considerations. Conditions that preclude working at the School include conviction of a controlled substance or sex offense, or a serious or violent felony. <u>Similarly, convictions involving</u> crimes of moral turpitude (e.g., fraud), child abuse or neglect, violence, or any offense which may make the employee unsuitable/undesirable to work around students may also serve as a bar to employment at the School. Additionally, should an employee, during his/her employment with the School, be arrested for, charged with, or convicted of any offense\_during his/her employment with the School, the employee must immediately report as much to the Executive Director.

#### **Tuberculosis Testing**

I

All employees of the School must submit written proof from a <u>health care providerphysician</u> of a risk assessment examination for tuberculosis (TB) within the last sixty (60) days. If TB risk factors are identified, a physician must conduct an examination to determine whether the employee is free of infectious TB. The examination for TB consists of an approved TB test, which, if positive, will be followed by an x-ray of the lungs, or in the absence of skin testing, an x-ray of the lungs. All employees will be required to undergo TB risk assessments and, if risk factors are found, the examination at least once every four (4) years. Volunteers may be required to undergo a TB examination as necessary. The TB risk assessment and, if indicated, the examination is a condition of initial employment with the School and the cost of the exam will be borne by the applicant.

Food handlers may be required to have annual TB exams. Documentation of employee and volunteer compliance with TB risk assessments and examinations will be kept on file in the office. This requirement also includes contract food handlers, substitute teachers, and student teachers serving under the supervision of an educator. Any entity providing student services to the School will be contractually required to ensure that all contract workers have had TB testing that shows them to be free of active TB prior to conducting work with School students.

#### **Immigration Compliance**

Pacific View will comply with applicable immigration law, including the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Immigration Act of 1990. As a condition of employment, every individual must provide satisfactory evidence of his or her identity and legal authority to work in the United States. However, Pacific View will not check the employment authorization status of current employees or applicants who were not offered positions with the School unless required to do so by law.

The School shall not discharge an employee or in any manner discriminate, retaliate, or take any adverse action (*e.g.*, threatening to report the suspected citizenship or immigration status of an employee or a member of the employee's family) against any employee or applicant for employment because the employee or applicant exercised a right protected under applicable law. Further, the School shall not discriminate against any individual because he or she holds or presents a driver's license issued per Vehicle Code § 12801.9 to persons who have not established their federally-authorized presence in the United States. Finally, in compliance with the Immigrant Worker Protection Act, the School shall not allow a federal immigration enforcement agent to enter any nonpublic areas of the School without a judicial warrant, or voluntarily give consent to an agent to access, review or obtain employee records without a subpoena or judicial warrant. If a search of employee records is authorized by a valid subpoena or judicial warrant, the School will give employees notice of the inspection both before and after it has occurred as required by law.

#### Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy

The School recognizes its responsibility to make and enforce all rules and regulations governing student and employee behavior to bring about the safest and most learning-conducive environment possible.

#### Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain on a student.

For purposes of this policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to property.

For clarification purposes, the following examples are offered for direction and guidance of School personnel:

- A. Examples of PERMITTED actions (NOT corporal punishment)
  - 1. Stopping a student from fighting with another student;
  - 2. Preventing a pupil from committing an act of vandalism;
  - 3. Defending yourself from physical injury or assault by a student;
  - 4. Forcing a pupil to give up a weapon or dangerous object;
  - Requiring an athletic team to participate in strenuous physical training activities designed to strengthen or condition team members or improve their coordination, agility, or physical skills;
  - 6. Engaging in group calisthenics, team drills, or other physical education or voluntary recreational activities.
- B. Examples of PROHIBITED actions (corporal punishment)

- 1. Hitting, shoving, pushing, or physically restraining a student as a means of control;
- 2. Making unruly students do push-ups, run laps, or perform other physical acts that cause pain or discomfort as a form of punishment;
- 3. Paddling, swatting slapping, grabbing, pinching, kicking, or otherwise causing physical pain.

#### Acceptable and Unacceptable Staff/Student Behavior

This policy is intended to guide all School faculty and staff in conducting themselves in a way that reflects the high standards of behavior and professionalism required of school employees and to specify the boundaries between students and staff.

Although this policy gives specific, clear direction, it is each staff member's obligation to avoid situations that could prompt suspicion by parents, students, colleagues, or school leaders. One viable standard that can be quickly applied, when you are unsure if certain conduct is acceptable, is to ask yourself, "Would I be engaged in this conduct if my family or colleagues were standing next to me?"

For the purposes of this policy, the term "boundaries" is defined as acceptable professional behavior by staff members while interacting with a student. Trespassing the boundaries of a student/teacher relationship is deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust.

Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member's perspective, but can be perceived as flirtation or sexual insinuation from a student or parent point of view. The objective of the following lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors is not to restrain innocent, positive relationships between staff and students, but to prevent relationships that could lead to, or may be perceived as, sexual misconduct.

Staff must understand their own responsibility for ensuring that they do not cross the boundaries as written in this policy. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of the established boundaries will be considered irrelevant for disciplinary purposes. Thus, it is crucial that all employees learn this policy thoroughly and apply the lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors to their daily activities. Although sincere, competent interaction with students certainly fosters learning, student/staff interactions must have boundaries surrounding potential activities, locations and intentions.

#### Duty to Report Suspected Misconduct

When any employee reasonably suspects or believes that another staff member may have crossed the boundaries specified in this policy, he or she must immediately report the matter to a school administrator. All reports shall be as confidential as possible under the circumstances. It is the duty of the administrator to investigate and thoroughly report the situation. Employees must also report to the administration any awareness or concern of student behavior that crosses boundaries or where a student appears to be at risk for sexual abuse.

Examples of Specific Behaviors

The following examples are not an exhaustive list:

#### Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors (Violations of this Policy)

- (a) Giving gifts to an individual student that are of a personal and intimate nature.
- (b) Kissing of any kind.
- (c) Any type of unnecessary physical contact with a student in a private situation.
- (d) Intentionally being alone with a student away from the school.
- (e) Making or participating in sexually inappropriate comments.
- (f) Sexual jokes.
- (g) Seeking emotional involvement with a student for your benefit.
- (h) Listening to or telling stories that are sexually oriented.
- (i) Discussing inappropriate personal troubles or intimate issues with a student in an attempt to gain their support and understanding.
- (j) Becoming involved with a student so that a reasonable person may suspect inappropriate behavior.

#### Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors without Parent and Supervisor Permission

## (These behaviors should only be exercised when a staff member has parent and supervisor permission.)

- (a) Giving students a ride to/from school or school activities.
- (b) Being alone in a room with a student at school with the door closed.
- (c) Allowing students in your home.

#### Cautionary Staff/Student Behaviors

(These behaviors should only be exercised when a reasonable and prudent person, acting as an educator, is prevented from using a better practice or behavior. Staff members should inform their supervisor of the circumstance and occurrence prior to or immediately after the occurrence)

- (a) Remarks about the physical attributes or development of anyone.
- (b) Excessive attention toward a particular student.
- (c) Sending emails, text messages or letters to students if the content is not about school activities.

#### Acceptable and Recommended Staff/Student Behaviors

- (a) Getting parents' written consent for any after-school activity.
- (b) Obtaining formal approval to take students off school property for activities such as field trips or competitions.
- (c) Emails, text, phone and instant messages to students must be very professional and pertaining to school activities or classes (Communication should be limited to school technology).
- (d) Keeping the door open when alone with a student.
- (e) Keeping reasonable space between you and your students.
- (f) Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries.
- (g) Keeping parents informed when a significant issue develops about a student.

- (h) Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief.
- (i) Asking for advice from fellow staff or administrators if you find yourself in a difficult situation related to boundaries.
- (j) Involving your supervisor if conflict arises with the student.
- (k) Informing the Executive Director about situations that have the potential to become more severe.
- (1) Making detailed notes about an incident that could evolve into a more serious situation later.
- (m) Recognizing the responsibility to stop unacceptable behavior of students or coworkers.
- (n) Asking another staff member to be present if you will be alone with any type of special needs student.
- (o) Asking another staff member to be present when you must be alone with a student after regular school hours.
- (p) Giving students praise and recognition without touching them.
- (q) Pats on the back, high fives and handshakes are acceptable.
- (r) Keeping your professional conduct a high priority.
- (s) Asking yourself if your actions are worth your job and career.

#### Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation

Pacific View is committed to providing a work and educational atmosphere that is free of unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. Pacific View's policy prohibits unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation based upon: race (including traits historically associated with race, such as hair texture and hairstyle, including but not limited to braids, locks, and twists); color; gender (including gender identity, gender expression, and transgender identity, whether or not the employee is transitioning or has transitioned); sex (including reproductive health decision-making, pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and related medical conditions); sex stereotype (including an assumption about a person's appearance or behavior, gender roles, gender expression, or gender identity, or about an individual's ability or inability to perform certain kinds of work based on a myth, social expectation , or generalization about the individual's sex); religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices); marital/registered domestic partner status; age (forty (40) and over); national origin or ancestry (including native language spoken and possession of a driver's license issued to persons unable to prove their presence in the U.S. is authorized by federal law); physical or mental disability (including HIV and AIDS); medical condition (including cancer and genetic characteristics); taking a leave of absence authorized by law; genetic information; sexual orientation; military and veteran status; or any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws.

Employees, volunteers, unpaid interns, individuals in apprenticeship programs, and independent contractors shall not be harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against, based upon the characteristics noted above.

Pacific View does not condone and will not tolerate unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation on the part of any employee (including supervisors and managers) or third party (including independent contractors or other person with which the School does business). Supervisors and managers are to report any complaints of unlawful harassment to the Executive Director or designee. When Pacific View receives allegations of unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation, the Board (if a complaint is about the Executive Director) or the Executive Director or designee will conduct a fair, timely and thorough investigation that provides all parties an appropriate process and

reaches reasonable conclusions based on the evidence collected. The investigation will be handled in as confidential a manner as possible, although complete confidentiality cannot be guaranteed. Complainants and witnesses shall not be subject to retaliation for making complaints in good faith or participating in an investigation. Pacific View is committed to remediating any instances where investigation findings demonstrate unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation has occurred.

#### Prohibited Unlawful Harassment

- Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments or slurs;
- Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal movement, or interfering with work because of sex, race or any other protected basis;
- Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment; or
- Disparate treatment based on any of the protected classes above.

#### Prohibited Unlawful Sexual Harassment

Pacific View is committed to providing a workplace free of sexual harassment and considers such harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action, up to, and including dismissal, of the offending employee.

Sexual harassment consists of sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by sexual desire, when: (1) submission to the conduct is either made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's employment; (2) an employment decision is based upon an individual's acceptance or rejection of that conduct; and/or (3) that conduct interferes with an individual's work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith concern about sexual harassment against him or her or against another individual.

All supervisors of staff will receive two (2) hours of sexual harassment prevention training within six (6) months of hire or their assumption of a supervisory position and every two (2) years thereafter. All other employees will receive one (1) hour of sexual harassment prevention training within six (6) months of hire and every two (2) years thereafter. Such training will address all legally required topics, including information about the negative effects that abusive conduct has on both the victim of the conduct and others in the workplace, as well as methods to prevent abusive conduct undertaken with malice a reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an employer's legitimate business interests. Abusive conduct includes but is not limited to repeated infliction of verbal abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks, insults, and epithets, verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, or the gratuitous sabotage or undermining of a person's work performance. Supervisors shall also be trained on how to appropriately respond when the supervisor becomes aware that an employee is the target of unlawful harassment. Other staff will receive sexual harassment prevention training as required by law.

Each employee has the responsibility to maintain a workplace free from any form of sexual harassment. Consequently, should any individual, in particular those with supervisory responsibilities, become aware of any conduct that may constitute sexual harassment or other

prohibited behavior, immediate action should be taken to address such conduct. Any employee who believes they have been sexually harassed or has witnessed sexual harassment is encouraged to immediately report such harassment to the Executive Director. See **Appendix A** for the "Harassment/Discrimination/Retaliation Complaint Form." See **Appendix B** for the general "Internal Complaint Form."

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:

- Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:
  - o Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults and
  - Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching, patting, grabbing, brushing against another's body, or poking another's body.
- Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as:
  - Sexually oriented gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person's sexuality or sexual experience.
  - Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an employee for submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any employee to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or disparate treatment for rejecting sexual conduct.
  - Subjecting or threats of subjecting an employee to unwelcome sexual attention or conduct or intentionally making performance of the employee's job more difficult because of the employee's sex.
- Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere at the workplace by employees, such as:
  - Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic or bringing to work or possessing any such material to read, display or view at work;
  - Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the work environment materials that are in any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or pornographic; and
  - Displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an employee by sex in an area of the workplace (other than restrooms or similar rooms).

The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an all-inclusive list of prohibited acts under this policy. Moreover, please note that while in most situations a personal relationship is a private matter, these relationships are not appropriate in a professional setting, particularly where one of the parties has management or supervisory responsibilities. As such,

consensual relationships in the workplace may violate Pacific View policy.

#### **Policy Prohibiting Workplace Violence**

#### Statement of Policy

Pacific View recognizes that violence in the workplace is a growing nationwide problem necessitating a firm response by employers. The costs of workplace violence are great, both in human and financial terms. We believe that the safety and security of Pacific View employees are paramount. Therefore, Pacific View has adopted this policy regarding workplace violence.

Acts or threats of physical violence, including intimidation, harassment, and/or coercion, that involve or affect Pacific View or that occur on Pacific View property or in the conduct of Pacific View business off Pacific View property, will not be tolerated. This prohibition against threats and acts of violence applies to all persons involved in Pacific View operations, including, but not limited to, Pacific View personnel, contract workers, temporary employees, and anyone else on Pacific View property or conducting Pacific View business off Pacific View property. Violations of this policy, by any individual, will lead to disciplinary and/or legal action as appropriate.

This policy is intended to bring Pacific View into compliance with existing legal provisions requiring employers to provide a safe workplace; it is not intended to create any obligations beyond those required by existing law.

#### Definitions

Workplace violence is any intentional conduct that is sufficiently severe, offensive, or intimidating to cause an individual to reasonably fear for his or her personal safety or the safety of his or her family, friends, and/or property such that employment conditions are altered or a hostile, abusive, or intimidating work environment is created for one or several Pacific View employees. Workplace violence may involve any threats or acts of violence occurring on Pacific View premises, regardless of the relationship between Pacific View and the parties involved in the incident. It also includes threats or acts of violence on Pacific View premises. Threats or acts of violence occurring off Pacific View premises that involve employees, agents, or individuals acting as a representative of Pacific View, whether as victims of or active participants in the conduct, may also constitute workplace violence. Specific examples of conduct that may constitute threats or acts of violence under this policy include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a. Threats or acts of physical or aggressive contact directed toward another individual;
- b. Threats or acts of physical harm directed toward an individual or his/her family, friends, associates, or property;
- c. The intentional destruction or threat of destruction of Pacific View property or another employee's property;
- d. Harassing or threatening phone calls;

- e. Surveillance;
- f. Stalking;
- g. Veiled threats of physical harm or similar intimidation; and
- h. Any conduct resulting in the conviction under any criminal code provision relating to violence or threats of violence that adversely affects Pacific View's legitimate business interests. Workplace violence does not refer to occasional comments of a socially acceptable nature. These comments may include references to legitimate sporting activities, popular entertainment, or current events. Rather, it refers to behavior that is personally offensive, threatening, or intimidating.

#### Enforcement

Any person who engages in a threat or violent action on Pacific View property may be removed from the premises as quickly as safety permits and may be required, at Pacific View's discretion, to remain off Pacific View premises pending the outcome of an investigation of the incident.

When threats are made or acts of violence are committed by employee(s), a judgment will be made by Pacific View as to what actions are appropriate, including possible medical evaluation and/or possible disciplinary action.

Once a threat has been substantiated, it is Pacific View's policy to put the threat-maker on notice that he/she will be held accountable for his/her actions and then implement a decisive and appropriate response.

Under this policy, decisions may be needed to prevent a threat from being carried out, a violent act from occurring, or a life-threatening situation from developing. No existing policy or procedure of Pacific View should be interpreted in a manner that prevents the making of these necessary decisions.

<u>Important Note:</u> Pacific View will make the sole determination of whether, and to what extent, threats or acts of violence will be acted upon by Pacific View. In making this determination, Pacific View may undertake a case-by-case analysis in order to ascertain whether there is a reasonable basis to believe that workplace violence has occurred. No provision of this policy shall alter the at-will nature of employment at Pacific View.

#### Whistleblower Policy

The School requires its directors, officers, employees, and volunteers to observe high standards of ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities within the School. As representatives of the School, such individuals must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling all responsibilities and must comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of this policy is to create an ethical and open work environment, to ensure that the School has a governance and accountability structure that supports its mission, and to encourage and enable directors, officers, employees, and volunteers of the School to raise serious concerns about the occurrence of illegal or unethical actions within the School before turning to outside parties for resolution.

All directors, officers, employees, and volunteers of the School have a responsibility to report any action or suspected action taken within the School that is illegal, unethical or violates any adopted policy of the School, or local rule or regulation. Anyone reporting a violation must act in good faith, without malice to the School or any individual at the School and have reasonable grounds for believing that the information shared in the report indicates that a violation has occurred. A person who makes a report does not have to prove that a violation has occurred. However, any report which the reporter has made maliciously or any report which the reporter has good reason to believe is false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense. No one who in good faith reports a violation, or who, in good faith, cooperates in the investigation of a violation shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action. Further, no one who in good faith discloses, who may disclose, or who the School believes disclosed or may disclose, information regarding alleged violations to a person with authority over the employee or another employee who had responsibility for investigating, discovering or correcting the purported violation shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action.

#### Drug and Alcohol\_Free Workplace

Pacific View is committed to providing a drug and alcohol\_-free workplace and to promoting safety in the workplace, employee health and well-being, stakeholder confidence and a work environment that is conducive to attaining high work standards. The use of drugs and alcohol by employees, whether on or off the job, jeopardizes these goals, since it adversely affects health and safety, security, productivity, and public confidence and trust. Drug or alcohol use in the workplace or during the performance of job duties is extremely harmful to employees and to other Pacific View stakeholders.

The bringing to the workplace, possession or use of intoxicating beverages or drugs on any School premises or during the performance of work duties is prohibited and will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

#### **Confidential Information**

All information relating to students, personal information, schools attended, addresses, contact numbers and progress information is confidential in nature, and may not be shared with or distributed to unauthorized parties. All records concerning special education pupils shall be kept strictly confidential and maintained in separate files. Failure to maintain confidentiality may result in disciplinary action, up to and including release from at-will employment.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

All employees must avoid situations involving actual or potential conflicts of interest. An employee involved in any relationships or situations which may constitute a conflict of interest should immediately and fully disclose the relevant circumstances to the Executive Director, or the Board of Trustees, for a determination about whether a potential or actual conflict exists. If an actual or potential conflict is determined, the School may take whatever corrective action appears appropriate according to the circumstances. Failure to disclose facts shall constitute grounds for disciplinary action.

#### **Hiring Relatives**

A familial relationship among employees can create an actual or at least a potential conflict of interest in the employment setting, especially where one relative supervises another relative. To avoid this problem, Pacific View may refuse to hire or place a relative in a position where the potential for favoritism or conflict exists.

In other cases, where a conflict or the potential for conflict arises, even if there is no supervisory relationship involved, the parties may be separated by reassignment or terminated from employment, or Pacific View will make this determination in consultation with the parties involved at the discretion of Pacific View.

If two (2) employees marry, become related, or enter into an intimate relationship, they may not remain in a reporting relationship or in positions where one individual may affect the compensation or other terms or conditions of employment of the other individual. Pacific View will attempt to identify other available positions, and the employees will have thirty (30) days to decide which individual will remain in his/her current position. If no alternate position is available, the employees will have thirty (30) days to decide which employee will remain with Pacific View. If this decision is not made in the time allowed, Pacific View will make the decision.

For the purposes of this policy, a relative is any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage.

#### Smoking

All Pacific View facilities are no smoking facilities.

#### THE WORKPLACE

#### **Employment Status**

Employees at Pacific View are classified into the following categories:

#### Full-Time Nonexempt Employees

Full-time, nonexempt employees are those who are normally scheduled to work and who do work a schedule of forty (40) or more hours per week.

#### Part-Time Nonexempt Employees

Part-time nonexempt employees are those who are scheduled to and do work less than forty (40) hours per week. Part-time nonexempt employees may be assigned a work schedule in advance or may work on an as-needed basis.

#### Temporary Employees

Temporary employees are those who are employed for short-term assignments. Short-term assignments will generally be periods of one year or less. Temporary employees are not eligible for

Employee Handbook

Formatted: Font: Bold

benefits. Temporary employees may be classified as exempt or nonexempt on the basis of job duties.

#### Exempt Employees

Exempt employees are those employees, whose job assignments and compensation meet the applicable legal requirements to be considered exempt from certain wage and hour laws, including overtime and meal/rest periods. Exempt employees are compensated on a salary basis and are not eligible for overtime pay. Generally, executive, administrative, professional (teachers), and certain outside sales employees are exempt. The Human Resources Representative will inform you if your status is exempt.

#### Nonexempt Employees

Nonexempt employees are those employees whose job assignments and compensation do not meet the legal requirements to be considered exempt from certain wage and hour laws. Nonexempt employees are thus eligible for overtime and must be provided applicable meal and rest periods. All overtime work must be previously authorized by the Executive Director/Designee.

#### Job Duties

As part of initial orientation, employees will learn the various duties and responsibilities of the job. Employees will be provided with a copy of the written job description for their individual position. Pacific View maintains certain expectations and standards applicable to each job position. The Executive Director/Designee should review these job expectations with employees.

It is expected that employees will perform additional duties and assume additional responsibilities as needed by the Executive Director for the efficient operation of Pacific View.

In order to adjust to changes in our operations, it may become necessary to modify job descriptions, add to or remove certain duties and responsibilities, or reassign employees to an alternate job position.

#### **Operation of Vehicles**

The use of Pacific View-owned or Pacific View-leased vehicles and rental of vehicles for Pacific View business are limited to authorized employees. These vehicles must only be used in work-related activities and may not be used for personal business or activities without the express prior approval of the Board of Trustees.

All employees authorized to drive Pacific View-owned or Pacific View-leased vehicles or to rent vehicles for use in conducting Pacific View business must possess a current, valid California Driver License and an acceptable driving record. Any change in license status or driving record must be reported to management immediately. From time to time, Pacific View or its insurance carrier will request reports from the Department of Motor Vehicles regarding the license status and driving record of employees whose job responsibilities include driving.

A valid California Driver License must be in an employee's possession while operating a vehicle off or on Pacific View property. It is the responsibility of every employee to drive safely and obey all traffic, vehicle safety, and parking laws or regulations. Drivers should demonstrate safe driving

habits. Certain employees may drive their own personal vehicles while conducting Pacific View business. These employees must maintain adequate personal automobile liability insurance. Employees doing so should promptly submit an expense report detailing the number of miles driven on Pacific View business. Pacific View will pay mileage reimbursement in accordance with applicable reimbursement rates. Employees are expected to observe the above policies while on Pacific View business, even if driving their own personal vehicles.

#### **Use of Equipment**

All Pacific View property including but not limited to desks, storage areas, work areas, lockers, file cabinets, credenzas, computer systems, office telephones, cellular telephones, modems, facsimile machines, duplicating machines, and vehicles must be used properly and maintained in good working order. Employees who lose, steal, or misuse Pacific View property may be personally liable for replacing or fixing the item and may be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge.

Pacific View reserves the right, at all times and without prior notice, to inspect and search any and all of its property for the purpose of determining whether this policy or any other policy of Pacific View has been violated, or when an inspection and investigation is necessary for purposes of promoting safety in the workplace or compliance with state and federal laws. These inspections may be conducted during or after business hours and in the presence or absence of the employee.

Employees are otherwise permitted to use Pacific View's equipment for occasional, non-work purposes with permission from their Executive Director. Nevertheless, employees have no right or reasonable expectation of privacy as to any information or file maintained in or on Pacific View property or transmitted through Pacific View. For purposes of inspecting, investigating, or searching employees' files or documents, Pacific View may override any applicable passwords, codes, or locks in accordance with the best interests of Pacific View, its employees, or its students and/or parents or visitors. All bills and other documentation related to the use of Pacific View equipment or property are the property of Pacific View and may be reviewed and used for purposes that Pacific View considers appropriate.

Employees may access only files or documents that they have permission to enter. Unauthorized review, duplication, dissemination, removal, damage, or alteration of files, or other property of Pacific View, or improper use of information obtained by unauthorized means, may be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

#### Use of Stationery & Mail Services

All engraved or printed Pacific View stationery, envelopes, and other work materials are for Pacific View business only. All employees must receive prior approval from the Executive Director before the release of letterhead documents. These materials may not be used for personal correspondence or non-business matters. When signing business letters on Pacific View letterhead, the employee's name and title or position must be used.

Employees are requested not to send or receive personal mail using Pacific View's mail services. Employees will be asked to reimburse the cost of postage for non-business\_-related materials sent through Pacific View's mail services.

#### **Employee Property**

Employees should not bring valuables to work. If necessary to do so, all valuables should be kept in a secure location. Pacific View will provide employees with a storage area for employees to store their belongings while at work. Employees may not use their own locks or other devices to secure lockers or other storage facilities provided by Pacific View. Pacific View assumes no responsibility for the loss, theft, or damage of employees' personal property.

#### Solicitation & Distribution of Literature

Pacific View has established rules, applicable to all employees, to govern solicitation and distribution of written material during working time and entry onto the premises and work areas. All employees are expected to comply strictly with these rules.

- 1. <u>1.</u> No employee shall solicit or promote support for any cause or organization during histor her working time or during the working time of the employee or employees at whom the activity is directed;
- 2. No employee shall distribute or circulate any written or printed material in work areas at any time, during his or her working time, or during the working time of the employee or employees at whom the activity is directed; and
- 3. Non-employee visitors may be permitted to distribute written material on Pacific View property provided they identify themselves and follow Pacific View guidelines.

As used in this policy, "working time" includes all time for which an employee is paid and/or is scheduled to be performing services for Pacific View; it does not include break periods, meal periods, or periods in which an employee is not, and is not scheduled to be, performing services or work for Pacific View. Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with employees' ability to engage in protected activities per applicable law.

#### **Employee Parking**

Pacific View provides employees with parking on a first-come, first-served basis. Employees may park vehicles in a non-reserved space. Some parking areas, however, may be reserved for disabled drivers, vendors, students and/or parents, vehicles belonging to Pacific View, and others. Pacific View will not be responsible for any damage to your vehicle or the contents of your vehicle while parked on Pacific View property.

#### **Bulletin Boards**

Bulletin boards are reserved for use by Pacific View for posting work-related notices or notices that must be posted pursuant to local, state, and federal law. From time to time, special notices and information for employees will be posted on the bulletin boards. Please check the boards regularly for these notices. Employee postings are not permitted.

#### Work Schedule

Employee Handbook

**Formatted:** Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Page 18 of 55

Business hours are normally 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. The regular workday schedule for nonexempt employees is eight (8) hours scheduled between the hours of 7:15am -4:30pm; the regular workweek schedule is forty (40) hours.

Exempt employees are also generally expected to be present during business hours and to commitwhatever additional time is necessary to satisfactorily complete all job requirements. Exempt employees may elect to complete the last thirty (30) minutes of each workday from their home or another location, provided they are not otherwise required to be on campus to address School, student, parent, etc. needs. Employees must provide advance notice to the supervisor if they intend to leave campus for this purpose and must remain available by email and/or phone despite being off-campus until their scheduled workday is completed.

#### **Meal and Rest Periods**

Nonexempt employees working at least five (5) hours are provided with a thirty (30) minute unpaid meal period, to be taken approximately in the middle of the workday but by no later than the end of the 5<sup>th</sup> hour of work. An employee may waive this meal period if the day's work will be completed in no more than six (6) hours, provided the employee and Pacific View mutually consent to the waiver in writing.

Nonexempt employees are also provided with a ten (10) minute rest period for every four (4) hours worked which should be scheduled towards the middle of the four (4) hour work period as practicable. Employees are prohibited from combining meal and rest period time.

An employee's supervisor must be aware of and approve scheduled meal and rest periods. Employees must immediately inform their supervisor if they are prevented from taking their meal and/or rest periods. Employees are expected to observe assigned working hours and the time allowed for meal and rest periods.

#### Lactation Accommodation

Pacific View accommodates lactating employees by providing a reasonable amount of break time to any employee who desires to express breast milk for an infant child. The break time shall, if possible, run concurrently with any break time already provided to the employee. Any break time provided to express breast milk that does not run concurrently with break time already provided to the nonexempt employee shall be unpaid.

Pacific View will make reasonable efforts to provide employees who need a lactation accommodation with the use of a room or other private location that is located close to the employee's work area. Such room/location shall not be a bathroom, and shall have electricity. Employees shall also be given access to a sink with running water and a refrigerator. Employees with private offices will be required to use their offices to express breast milk. Employees who desire lactation accommodations should contact their supervisor to request accommodations.

#### Attendance and Tardiness

Formatted: Justified
All employees, whether exempt or nonexempt, are expected to arrive at work consistently and on time. Absenteeism and tardiness negatively affects the School's ability to implement its educational program and disrupts consistency in students' learning.

If it is necessary to be absent or late, employees are expected to telephone the Executive Director/designee as soon as possible but no later than one-half (1/2) hour before the start of the workday. If an employee is absent from work longer than one (1) day, he or she is expected to keep the Executive Director/designee sufficiently informed of the situation.

As noted in the section of this Handbook concerning prohibited conduct, excessive or unexcused absences or tardiness may result in disciplinary action up to and including release from at-will employment with the School. Absence for more than three (3) consecutive days without notifying the Executive Director will be considered a voluntary resignation from employment.

### Time<u>c</u>-Cards/Records

By law, the School is obligated to keep accurate records of the time worked by nonexempt employees. Such employees shall be required to utilize the School's time-card system.

Nonexempt employees must accurately clock in and out of their shifts as this is the only way the payroll department knows how many hours each employee has worked and how much each employee is owed. The time-card indicates when the employee arrived and when the employee departed. All nonexempt employees must clock in and out for arrival and departure, along with lunch and for absences like doctor or dentist appointments. All employees are required to keep the office advised of their departures from and returns to the school premises during the workday.

Nonexempt employees are solely responsible for ensuring accurate information on their time-cards and remembering to record time worked. If an employee forgets to mark their time-card or makes an error on the time-card, the employee must contact the Executive Director/Designee to make the correction and such correction must be initialed by both the employee and the Executive Director/Designee.

Nonexempt employees are prohibited from performing off-the-clock work, including but not limited to checking emails before/after work hours, performing work in the morning before logging in, and running School errands after logging out.

No one may record hours worked on another's worksheettimecard. Any employee who violates any aspect of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including release from at-will employment with the School.

#### Use of Email, Voicemail and Internet Access

The School will permit employees to use its email, voicemail systems and Internet access subject to the following:

1. Minimal personal use as long as it does not interfere with timely job performance and is consistent with law and appropriate protocols.

- 2. The email system and Internet access is not to be used in any way that may be disruptive, offensive to others, or harmful to morale. For example, sexually explicit images, ethnic slurs, racial epithets, or anything else that may be construed as harassment or disparagement of others based on their race, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, religious beliefs or political beliefs may not be displayed or transmitted.
- 3. Employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee's personal file or email or voicemail messages without the latter's express permission.
- 4. School staff will not enter an employee's personal email files or voicemail unless there is a business need to do so. The School retains a copy of all passwords; passwords unknown to the School may not be used. System security features, including passwords and delete functions, do not neutralize the School's ability to access any message at any time. Employees must be aware that the possibility of such access always exists.
- 5. Employees should not use personal devices or email accounts for School-related communications. Such communications should only take place using School-issued devices and via the employee's Pacific View email account.

### **Personal Business**

Pacific View's facilities for handling mail and telephone calls are designed to accommodate School business. Employees should have personal mail directed to their home address and limit personal telephone calls to an absolute minimum. Personal calls should not be made outside the immediate dialing area. Do not use School material, time or equipment for personal projects.

#### Social Media

If an employee decides to post information on the Internet (i.e., personal blog, Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, etc.) that discusses any aspect of his/her workplace activities, the following restrictions apply:

- School equipment, including School computers and electronics systems, may not be used for these purposes;
- Student and employee confidentiality policies must be strictly followed;
- Employees must make clear that the views expressed in their blogs are their own and not those of the School;
- Employees may not use the School's logos, trademarks and/or copyrighted material and are not authorized to speak on the School's behalf;
- Employees are not authorized to publish any confidential or proprietary information maintained by the School;
- Employees are prohibited from making discriminatory, defamatory, libelous or slanderous comments when discussing the School, the employee's supervisors, co-workers and competitors;
- Employees must comply with all School policies, including, but not limited to, rules against unlawful harassment and retaliation.

The School reserves the right to take disciplinary action against any employee whose social media postings violate this or other School policies.

#### Personal Appearance/Standards of Dress

Pacific View employees serve as role models to the School's students. All employees should therefore maintain professional standards of dress and grooming. Just as overall attitude and instructional competency contribute to a productive learning environment, so do appropriate dress and grooming.

Employees are encouraged to wear clothing that will add dignity to the educational profession, will present an image consistent with their job responsibilities, and will not interfere with the learning process. Accordingly, all employees shall adhere to the following standards of dress:

- 1) Clothing and jewelry must be safe and appropriate to the educational environment. All clothing must be clean and in good repair. Slits or tears in pants or other articles of clothing are not permitted except for modest slits in women's dresses or skirts that are no higher than three (3) inches above the knee.
- 2) Head coverings, including hats of any kind, except those worn for religious or safety reasons, are not to be worn inside school buildings including assemblies, classrooms, labs and offices. Hats may be worn outside for sun protection. All hats are to be removed upon entering school buildings. For exceptions to this policy, prior approval must be granted by the Executive Director.
- 3) Slacks and shorts are to be worn so that no portion of an undergarment showing. Shorts should be modest in length and should be no higher than three (3) inches above the knee. Sweatpants are not permitted. Leggings can be worn with proper coverage.
- 4) Skirts and dresses should be no higher than three (3) inches above the knee.
- 5) All tops must be appropriate to the work environment, and should be clean, neat, and provide proper coverage with no cleavage showing. Low cut tops, tops that show bare midriff, halter tops, spaghetti straps and tube tops are not permitted.
- 6) Clothing or jewelry with logos that depict and/or promote gangs, drugs, alcohol, tobacco, sex, violence, illegal activities, profanity, or obscenity are not permitted.
- 7) Appropriate shoes must be worn at all times. No flip flops (rubber beach wear).

### **Telework Policy**

Purpose

The School considers teleworking to be a viable alternative work arrangement in cases where the employee, the position, and the supervisor characteristics are best-suited to such an arrangement and

there is minimal school and employee performance impact. This Telework Policy will be used to guide the School's determinations with respect to telework assignments.

### **Definition**

Teleworking allows employees to work at home or in an appropriate location in California for all or part of their regular workweek. Teleworking is a voluntary work alternative that may be appropriate for some employees and some positions. All informal teleworking assignments are made on a caseby-case basis. Teleworking is not an entitlement, it is not a school-wide benefit, and it in no way changes the terms and conditions of employment with the School. This policy creates no employee rights in relation to telework. The School has the right to refuse to make telework available to an employee and to terminate a telework assignment without cause at any time in its sole and unreviewable discretion.

### General Requirements

Employees shall not telework unless they receive approval from their supervisor in writing. Employees shall make arrangements with their supervisor and co-workers for on-site job demands that arise on telework days, and shall be responsible for following all school policies and procedures when teleworking.

### Eligibility Considerations

Consideration will be given to employees who have demonstrated work habits and performance wellsuited to successful telework. The following guidelines should be considered:

- The employee has a position where communication can be accommodated electronically.
- The employee's telework assignment will not be detrimental to the productivity or work quality of other employees or effective operation of the School.
- The employee must be able to perform work from home without unnecessary risk to the security of data, networks, or confidentiality.
- The employee's equipment and software must meet the School's standards. The employee's needs for Information Technology ("IT") support must be minimal.
- Telework sites must be in California.
- The employee must be effective at working independently for extended periods.
- The employee demonstrates good time-management skills by completing tasks on time.
- The employee must maintain connections with the work group or team from a remote location.
- The employee has no recent or pending corrective or disciplinary actions.

## Supervisor Responsibilities

- Be familiar with the telework policy/guidelines.
- Take the downside of telework into consideration prior to approval (i.e. detrimental to team and the School culture, lack of accessibility, etc.).
- Be comfortable with remote supervision.
- Learn the technology and tools necessary for remote supervision.
- Establish communication protocols with telework employees.
- Include employees in office/department events to preserve teamwork.

- Review each employee periodically to ensure compliance with telework requirements, and address any work-related problems, including completing evaluations and disciplining as appropriate.
- Maintain records related to telework and assist with surveys, program evaluations, and reports.

### Work Schedule and Accessibility

- The School will determine the number of days of telecommuting allowed each week and the work schedule. The employee agrees to be accessible by phone and email during their work schedule.
- Telecommuting employees who are not exempt from overtime requirements of applicable laws will be required to record all hours worked as assigned by the School, and will be required to document that they took applicable meal/rest periods. The employee must get advance written approval from a supervisor for working overtime.
- The telework schedule needs to allow adequate time at the work site for meetings, access to facilities and supplies, and communication with other employees. Telework must not adversely affect students, employee productivity, or the progress of an individual or team assignment.

## Communication and Accessibility

- Employees and supervisors are expected to determine how communication between the teleworking employee and the worksite will be handled.
- Employees shall keep co-workers and support staff informed so they know how and when to reach them on telework days.
- Employees must be reachable, within reason, during agreed upon work hours.
- Employees must notify their supervisors if they leave their telework site during agreed upon hours.
- Employees must post their telework schedule on their calendar.
- Employees are expected to be flexible in their scheduling, and shall be available to attend staff meetings and other meetings onsite or virtually as required by their supervisor, even if meetings occur on a telework day.

## Telework Site

The telework space is considered an extension of the School's office space. Employees will have the same responsibility for safe practices, accident prevention, and accident reporting as in the regular worksite. The employee is responsible for establishing and maintaining a designated, adequate workspace at the alternate worksite. When the alternate site is the employee's home, the employee is responsible to maintain a designated workplace in a safe (free from hazards and other dangers to the employee or equipment), clean, professional, and free of distractions.

The employee will be responsible for all costs associated with remodeling, electrical modifications, or other permanent improvements to the home office workspace. Any school materials taken home must be kept in the designated work area at home and not be made accessible to others. The school will only reimburse the employee for home internet use if the employee is required to work from

home due to unforeseen circumstances. In this case, the employee will be reimbursed based on the Internet Use Reimbursement Scale.

In case of injury, accident, theft, loss, or tort liability related to telework, the employee must immediately report the event to his or her supervisor and allow the School to investigate and/or inspect the telework site.

### Supplies, Equipment, and Furniture

The School will not provide office furniture, or other equipment with the exception of a laptop, for the workspace at home. Equipment supplied by the employee, if deemed appropriate by the School, will be maintained by the employee. The School accepts no responsibility for damage or repairs to employee-owned equipment. Equipment supplied by the School is to be used for business purposes only. The employee agrees to take appropriate action to protect the items from damage or theft. Upon termination of employment, all school property will be returned to the School.

#### Information and Security

The employee must never provide any third parties access to the School network or share network access passwords and will follow all policies and procedures related to information security and network access.

Consistent with the School's expectations of information security for employees working at the office, telecommuting employees must ensure the protection of staff, parent, and student information accessible from their telework location. Steps include use of locked file cabinets and desks, regular password maintenance, shielding computer monitors, and any other steps appropriate for the job and the environment.

#### Performance Standards

The employee must maintain the same or an improved level of productivity and work quality while teleworking. If productivity and/or work quality begin to decline, the telework assignment will be reevaluated to determine if changes can be made or it will be terminated. Telework allows a high amount of flexibility for an employee to complete their work in a timely and proper manner, and it is expected that the employee will not abuse this opportunity by allowing their productivity or work quality to decline.

Employees must also maintain appropriate levels of professionalism when interacting remotely with families and other School stakeholders, and professional boundaries consistent with School policy when interacting remotely with students.

#### Conditions of Employment

Teleworking assignments do not change the conditions of employment or required compliance with policies and rules. Policies, rules and practices shall apply at the telework site, including but not limited to those governing communicating internally and with the public, employee rights and responsibilities, facilities and equipment management, financial management, information

management, and safety. A telework assignment does not constitute a promise of employment for a specified time or otherwise alter the at-will nature of employment with the School.

#### **Evaluation and Duration**

Evaluation of employee performance during the teleworking assignment shall include interaction by phone and email between the employee and the supervisor, and weekly meetings whenever possible to discuss work progress and problems.

Telework assignment may be modified and/or terminated at any time, for any reason, by the School. Although not required, the School shall endeavor to provide seven (7) days' notice of the modification and/or termination of the telework assignment whenever possible.

### Health and Safety Policy

The School is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safe work environment for all employees.

Employees are required to know and comply with the School's General Safety Rules and to follow safe and healthy work practices at all times. Employees are required to report immediately to the Executive Director/designee any potential health or safety hazards, and all injuries or accidents.

In compliance with Proposition 65, the School will inform employees of any known exposure to a chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity.

#### **Security Protocols**

The School has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. Employees are required to read and understand the Pacific View Comprehensive School Safety and Crisis Plan. Be aware of unknown persons loitering in parking areas, walkways, entrances and exits and service areas. Report any suspicious persons or activities to the Executive Director/designee. Employee desk or office should be secured at the end of the day. When an employee is called away from his or her work area for an extended length of time, valuable or personal articles should not be left around a work station that may be accessible. The security of facilities as well as the welfare of employees depends upon the alertness and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks. Employees should immediately notify the Executive Director/designee when keys are missing or if security access codes or passes have been breached.

#### **Occupational Safety**

The School is committed to the safety of its employees, vendors, contractors and the public and to providing a clear safety goal for management.

The prevention of accidents is the responsibility of every School supervisor. It is also the duty of all employees to accept and promote the established safety regulations and procedures. Every effort will be made to provide adequate safety training. If an employee is ever in doubt how to perform a job or task safely, assistance should be requested. Unsafe conditions must be reported immediately.

It is the policy of the School that accident prevention shall be considered of primary importance in all phases of operation and administration. The School's management is required to provide safe and healthy working conditions for all employees and to establish and require the use of safe practices at all times.

Failure to comply with or enforce School safety and health rules, practices and procedures could result in disciplinary action up to and including possible termination.

### Accident/Incident Reporting

It is the duty of every employee to immediately or as soon as is practical report any accident or injury occurring during work or on School premises so that arrangements can be made for medical or first aid treatment, as well as for investigation and follow-up purposes.

#### **Reporting Fires and Emergencies**

It is the duty of every employee to know how to report fires and other emergencies quickly and accurately. Employees should report any such emergency by calling management. In addition, all employees should know the local emergency numbers such as 911.

### EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HEALTH BENEFITS

#### **Payroll Withholdings**

As required by law, the School shall withhold Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax, Social Security (FICA) and State Disability Insurance from each employee's pay, as follows:

- 1. Federal Income Tax Withholding: The amount varies with the number of exemptions the employee claims and the gross pay amount.
- 2. State Income Tax Withholding: The same factors which apply to federal withholdings apply to state withholdings.
- 3. Social Security (FICA): The Federal Insurance Contribution Act requires that a certain percentage of employee earnings be deducted and forwarded to the federal government, together with an equal amount contributed by the School.
- 4. State Disability Insurance (SDI): This state fund is used to provide benefits to those out of work because of illness or disability.

Employees may also have deductions made to their paychecks when a wage overpayment occurs. The School will provide the employee with a written notice which describes the wage overpayment and will afford the employee an opportunity to respond before commencing any recoupment action. If the employee disputes the wage overpayment, the School shall initiate a legal action to validate the

overpayment before proceeding with recoupment. The School may require the employee to reimburse an overpayment through a mutually agreeable method, including through cash repayment or a deduction of the employee's payroll check, among other options. An employee who is separated from employment before full repayment of the overpayment amount shall have any remaining amounts withheld from their final check. The School also reserves the right to exercise any and all other legal means to recover any additional amounts owed. The School shall provide employees with advance written notice of the deduction prior to the pay period when it will go into effect.

Every deduction from an employee's paycheck is explained on the check voucher. If an employee does not understand the deductions, he or she should ask the Executive Director/Designee to explain them.

Employees may change the number of withholding allowances claimed for Federal Income Tax purposes at any time by filling out a new W-4 form and submitting it to the Executive Director/designee. The office maintains a supply of these forms.

All Federal, State, and Social Security taxes will be automatically deducted from paychecks. Federal Withholding Tax deduction is determined by the employee's W-4 form. The W-4 form should be completed upon hire and it is the employee's responsibility to report any changes in filing status to the Executive Director/designee and to fill out a new W-4 form.

At the end of the calendar year, a "withholding statement" (W-2) will be prepared and forwarded to each employee for use in connection with preparation of income tax returns. The W-2 shows Social Security information, taxes withheld and total wages.

#### **Overtime Pay**

Whether an employee is exempt from or subject to overtime pay will be determined on a case-bycase basis and will be indicated in the employee's job description. Generally, teachers and administrators are exempt. Nonexempt employees may be required to work beyond the regularly scheduled workday or workweek as necessary. Only actual hours worked in a given workday or workweek can apply in calculating overtime for nonexempt employees. The School will attempt to distribute overtime evenly and accommodate individual schedules. All overtime work must be previously authorized by the Executive Director/Designee. The School provides compensation for all overtime hours worked by nonexempt employees in accordance with state and federal law as follows:

For employees subject to overtime, all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in one workday or forty (40) hours in one workweek shall be treated as overtime. Compensation for hours in excess of forty (40) for the workweek or in excess of eight (8) and not more than twelve (12) for the workday, and for the first eight (8) hours on the seventh consecutive day in one workweek, shall be paid at a rate of one and one-half times the employee's regular rate of pay. Compensation for hours in excess of twelve (12) in one workday and an excess of eight (8) on the seventh consecutive workday of the workweek shall be paid at double the regular rate of pay. Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as work demands require. No overtime compensation will be paid to these exempt employees.

#### **Payment of Wages**

Paydays are on the last day of the month, or the last workday before the last day of the month, for the preceding pay periods. If a regular payday falls on a weekend or holiday, employees will be paid on the preceding workday.

Paychecks are normally available by 4:00 p.m. on a payday. If there is an error in an employee's check, they must report it immediately to the Executive Director/designee. No one other than the employee to whom the paycheck is written will be allowed to pick up a paycheck unless written authorization has been given for another person to do so.

Employee compensation will be subject to all state and federal withholding. Employees must complete a W-4 form when they are first hired and should report any changes in filing status to the Executive Director/designee.

### Wage Attachments and Garnishments

Under normal circumstances, the School will not assist creditors in the collection of personal debts from its employees. However, creditors may resort to certain legal procedures such as garnishments, levies or judgments that require the School, by law, to withhold part of an employee's earnings in their favor.

#### **Professional Growth**

Employees may be eligible for reimbursement for certain professional growth activities (e.g. conference registration, continuing education), in accordance with Pacific View fiscal policies and practices. The Executive Director/designee can give you additional information on this subject.

## **Medical Benefits**

### **Eligibility**

An employee is eligible for medical coverage if he or she is a regular employee working for the School at least thirty (30) hours per week.

Employees who go from part-time to full-time employment become eligible for full benefits on the first day of the month following the effective date of the change.

#### When Coverage Starts

Coverage will begin on the first day of employment or if hired mid-month it will start on the first day of the next month. An enrollment form must be submitted to the Business Office within thirty (30) days of the date an employee first becomes eligible. This form serves as a request for coverage, and authorizes any payroll deductions necessary to pay for coverage.

#### **COBRA Benefits**

When coverage under the School's medical and/or dental plans ends, employees or their dependents can continue coverage for eighteen (18) or thirty-six (36) months, depending upon the reason benefits ended. To continue coverage, an employee must pay the full cost of coverage – the employee contribution and the School's previous contribution plus a possible administrative charge.

Medical coverage for an employee, his/her spouse, and eligible dependent children can continue for up to eighteen (18) months if coverage ends because:

- Employment ends, voluntarily or involuntarily, for any reason other than gross misconduct; or
- Hours of employment are reduced below the amount required to be considered a full-time employee or part-time, making an employee ineligible for the plan.

This eighteen (18) month period may be extended an additional eleven (11) months in cases of disability subject to certain requirements. This eighteen (18) month period may also be extended an additional eighteen (18) months if other events (such as a divorce or death) occur subject to certain requirements.

An employee's spouse and eligible dependents can continue their health coverage for up to thirty-six (36) months if coverage ends because:

- The employee dies while covered by the plan;
- The employee and his/her spouse become divorced or legally separated;
- The employee becomes eligible for Medicare coverage, but his/her spouse has not yet reached age sixty-five (65); or
- The employee's dependent child reaches an age which makes him or her ineligible for coverage under the plan.

Rights similar to those described above may apply to retirees, spouses and dependents if the employer commences a bankruptcy proceeding and those individuals lose coverage.

The School will notify employees or their dependents if coverage ends due to termination or a reduction in work hours. If an employee becomes eligible for Medicare, divorced or legally separated, dies, or when a dependent child no longer meets the eligibility requirements, the employee or a family member are responsible for notifying the School within thirty (30) days of the event. The School will then notify the employee or his/her dependents of the employee's rights.

Health coverage continuation must be elected within sixty (60) days after receiving notice of the end of coverage, or within sixty (60) days after the event causing the loss, whichever is later.

There are certain circumstances under which coverage will end automatically. This happens if:

- Premiums for continued coverage are not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date;
- The employee (or his/her spouse or child) become covered under another group health plan which does not contain any exclusion or limitation with respect to any pre-existing condition the employee (or the employee's spouse or child, as applicable) may have;
- The School stops providing group health benefits;
- The employee (or the employee's spouse or child) become entitled to Medicare; or
- The employee extended coverage for up to twenty-nine (29) months due to disability and there has been a final determination that the employee is no longer disabled.

## PERSONNEL EVALUATION AND RECORD KEEPING

#### **Employee Reviews and Evaluations**

Each employee will receive periodic performance reviews conducted by the Executive Director or designee. The frequency of performance evaluations may vary depending upon length of service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties, or recurring performance problems.

Performance evaluations may review factors such as the quality and quantity of the work performed, knowledge of the job, initiative, work attitude, and attitude toward others. The performance evaluations are intended to make employees aware of their progress, areas for improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance. Favorable performance evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions. Salary increases and promotions are solely within the discretion of the School and depend upon many factors in addition to performance. After the review, an employee will be required to sign the evaluation report simply to acknowledge that it has been presented to them, that they have discussed it with the Executive Director/Designee, and that they are aware of its contents.

Newly hired employees may have their performance goals reviewed by the Executive Director/within the first ninety (90) days of employment.

Potential for advancement will be based largely upon job performance. On a periodic basis, the Executive Director/Designee will review employee job performance with an employee in order to establish goals for future performance and to discuss your current performance. The School's evaluation system will in no way alter the at-will employment relationship.

#### **Personnel Files and Record Keeping Protocols**

At the time of employment, a personnel file is established for each employee. Employees must keep the Executive Director/designee advised of changes that should be reflected in their personnel file. Such changes include: change in address, telephone number, marital status, number of dependents and person(s) to notify in case of emergency. Prompt notification of these changes is essential and will enable the School to contact employees should the change affect other records.

Employees have the right to inspect documents in their personnel file, as provided by law, in the presence of a School representative, at a mutually convenient time. Employees also have the right to obtain a copy of their personnel file as provided by law. Employees may add comments to any disputed item in the file. The School will restrict disclosure of personnel files to authorized individuals within the School. A request for information contained in the personnel file must be directed to the Executive Director/designee. Only the Executive Director or designee is authorized to release information about current or former employees. Disclosure of information to outside sources will be limited. However, the School will cooperate with requests from authorized law enforcement or local, state or federal agencies conducting official investigations or as otherwise legally required.

Credible complaints of substantiated investigations into or discipline for egregious misconduct will not be expunged from an employee's personnel file unless the complaint is heard by an arbitrator, administrative law judge, or the Board and the complaint is deemed to be false, not credible, unsubstantiated or a determination was made that discipline was not warranted.

### HOLIDAYS, VACATIONS AND LEAVES

#### Holidays

Pacific View calendar reflects any and all holidays observed by the School. The following holidays are generally observed by public entities, including public schools:

- New Year's Day
- Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday
- President's Day
- Memorial Day
- Juneteenth-Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day
- Veteran's Day
- Thanksgiving
- Friday after Thanksgiving
- Day before Christmas
- · Christmas Day

Other days during the school year, such as days during the School's calendared breaks, shall not be paid time for nonexempt employees in active status. Recognized religious holidays may be taken off by an employee whose religion requires observance of the particular day. Employees must request the day off in advance by written notice to the Executive Director/Designee. The employee will be paid if the religious holiday is taken as an earned paid leave day (i.e. vacation, personal necessity day, etc., as applicable). The employee will not be paid if the religious holiday is taken as a personal leave of absence day. Employees on any leave of absence do not earn holiday pay.

#### Vacation

Pacific View offers vacation to regular full-time employees that are hired under the Confidential Classified Salary Schedule (CCSS) or Executive Leadership Schedule (ELS) as a part of their

Employee Handbook

Formatted: Justified, Space After: 0 pt, Line spacing: single

compensation package. Vacation will be accrued annually based on years of service, beginning at a rate of twelve (13) days for CCSS employees and twenty-four (24) days for ELS employees.

Confidential Classified		Executive Leadership	
Years	Vacation Days	Years	Vacation Days
0-4	13	5	24
5	14	6-8	25
6-8	15	9-11	26
9-11	16	12-14	27
12-14	17	15 or more	28
15 or more	18		

The vacation policies apply exclusively to the aforementioned employee groups with the exception of contractual agreements voted on by the Board of Trustees.

The School recognizes the importance of vacation time as a period of rest and rejuvenation away from the job, vacations must be scheduled with due consideration for "peak traffic periods" at Pacific View. Vacation must be scheduled and approved by the immediate supervisor and Executive Director. Effort will be made to enable vacation to be taken at a time convenient to employees, consistent with the needs of their service obligations and the workload of the School. Any vacation denials may be reviewed by the Executive Director.

Accrued vacation carries over from year to year up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) days for CCSS employees and forty-six (46) days for ELS employees. There is no retroactive grant of vacation compensation for the period of time the accrued vacation compensation was at the cap. Pacific View reserves the right to "cash out" all or some of an employee's accrued vacation at any time. With the exception of the "cash out" policy, no employee shall be required to forfeit vacation accrued prior to the adoption of this policy.

Vacation accrual begins annually on July 1. Thereafter, vacation will be earned on the basis of a full month of employment or major portion thereof. Major portion of the month, as used here, is defined as at least eleven (11) days in paid status. Employees shall be paid for all accrued unused vacation at the time of separation.

#### Unpaid Leave of Absence

Pacific View recognizes that special situations may arise where an employee must leave his or her job temporarily. At its discretion, the School may grant employees leaves of absence. Any unpaid leave of absence must be approved in advance by the School.

The granting of a leave of absence always presumes the employee will return to active work by a designated date or within a specific period.

During a Family and Medical Leave Act, California Family Rights Act leave, and/or Pregnancy Disability Leave, the employee's medical and dental benefits will remain in force, provided the

employee pays the appropriate premiums. Otherwise, benefits are terminated the month any other type of leave begins. If an employee fails to return from a leave and is subsequently terminated, the employee is entitled to all earned but unused vacation pay, provided that the vacation pay was earned prior to the commencement of leave. No vacation time is accrued during any type of unpaid leave of absence.

#### Sick Leave

a. To help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by accident or illness, or by other emergencies, the School offers paid sick leave to its employees. Sick leave may be taken to receive preventive care (including annual physicals or flu shots) or to diagnose, treat, or care for an existing health condition. Employees may also use sick leave to assist a family member (i.e., children, parents, spouses/domestic partners, grandparents, grandchildren, or siblings) or a designated person (i.e., a person identified by the employee at the time the employee requests sick leave) who must receive preventative care or a diagnosis, treatment, or care for an existing health condition. A family member is defined as employee's child, parent, parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, state registered domestic partner or "designated person". In addition to biological relationships, a "child" and "parent" also include adoptive, foster, stepparent, and stepchild relationships, guardian and legal ward relationships, the child of an employee's domestic partner. A "sibling" is "a person related to another person by blood, adoption, or affinity through a common legal or biological parent." A "designated person" is defined as any individual related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. An employee may identify their "designated person" at the time the employee requests leave to care for that person. AB 1041 authorizes an employer to limit an employee to one "designated person" per 12-month period. Employees are limited to one (1) designated person per twelve (12) month period. Employees may also take paid sick leave to receive medical care or other assistance to address instances of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

Paid sick leave is available to all School employees who work at least thirty (30) days within the span of a single calendar year from the commencement of employment.

Employees cannot use paid sick leave until the ninetieth  $(90^{th})$  calendar day following the employee's start date. Sick leave must be taken by eligible employees in increments of <sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> (0.25) hours.

Salaried employees will accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) day per month worked allotted to each school year. Hourly employees will accrue paid sick leave at the rate of one (1) hour for every thirty (30) hours worked. Accrued sick leave carries over from year to year; however, no hourly employee may accrue more than forty-eight (48eighty (80))-hours of sick leave. Once an hourly employee reaches this accrual cap, no further paid sick leave shall accrue. The School does not pay employees in lieu of unused sick leave.

Employees absent longer than four (4) consecutive days due to illness may be required to provide medical evidence of illness and/or medical certification of fitness to return to work satisfactory to the School.

Once an employee has exhausted sick leave, the employee may continue on an unpaid medical leave depending upon the facts and circumstances of the employee's basis for leave beyond accrued sick leave. Employee requests for unpaid medical leave must be approved in advance by the School.

Employee Handbook

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", No bullets or numbering

Pacific View reserves the right to request a medical certification from an employee on an unpaid medical leave at any time.

#### Personal Necessity Leave

All salaried employees may use up to seven (7) days of sick leave for personal necessity leave per year. Employees may use up to five (5) days of personal necessity for personal business with prior approval. Uses of personal necessity leave may include, but are not limited to, death or serious illness of a member of the employee's immediate family (this is in addition to Bereavement Leave), an accident involving the employee's person or property, or the person or property of an immediate family member, adoption of a child, the birth of child making it necessary for an employee who is the parent of the child to be absent from their position during work hours. Final approval of leave shall be determined by the Executive Director. Employees must request leave at least one (1) week in advance unless an emergency situation occurs. Personal necessity and personal business leave are part of sick leave, do not accrue year to year, and are not paid out upon separation from employment.

#### **Catastrophic Illness Leave**

When a catastrophic illness or injury incapacitates an employee or a member of his/her family for an extended period of time and the employee has exhausted all paid leaves of absence, other employees may donate accrued sick leave to that employee in accordance with the following:

 "Catastrophic illness" or "injury" means an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate the employee for an extended period of time, or that incapacitates a member of the employee's family which incapacity requires the employee to take off from work for an extended period of time to care for that family member, and taking extended time off work creates a financial hardship for the employee because he/she has exhausted all of his/her sick leave and other paid time off.

"Member of the employee's family" shall be limited to mother, father, grandmother, grandfather or grandchild of the employee or of the spouse or domestic partner of the employee, and the spouse, domestic partner, son, son-in-law, daughter, daughter-in law, brother or sister of the employee or any relative living in the immediate house of the employee.

- 2. Upon requesting donations under this program, the employee shall provide verification of the catastrophic injury or illness. Verification shall be made by means of a letter, dated and signed by the sick or injured person's physician indicating the incapacitating nature and probable duration of the illness or injury. The School's Executive Director, or designees, shall determine that the employee is unable to work due to the employee's or his or her family member's catastrophic illness or injury.
- 3. On forms prepared and approved by the School, any employee may donate up to two (2) days member has suffered a catastrophic illness or injury and who has exhausted all fully paid leaves. (Current year sick leave days advanced, but not yet earned, may not be donated). The Pacific View Executive Director, or designee, shall approve the transfer of eligible leave.
- 4. The Pacific View Executive Director or designee shall determine:

- a. That the employee is unable to work due to the employee's or his/her family member's catastrophic illness or injury; and
- b. That the employee has exhausted all accrued paid leave.
- 5. When the above verification and determinations are made, the Pacific View Executive Director or designee may approve the transfer of sick leave.
- 6. The Pacific View Executive Director or designee shall inform employees of the means by which donations may be made in response to the employee's request.
- 7. Any employee, upon written notice to the School, may donate accrued sick leave to the requesting employee at a minimum of one (1) day, prorated per donating employee work day, and in one (1) hour increments thereafter. All transfers of eligible leave shall be irrevocable.
- 8. To ensure that employees retain sufficient accrued sick leave to meet their own needs, donors shall not reduce their accumulated sick leave to a level which would create a hardship on themselves. Employees cannot donate an amount of sick leave which would leave their own balance at less than ten (10) days.
- 9. An employee who receives paid leave pursuant to this program shall use any leave that he/she continues to accrue on a monthly basis before receiving paid leave pursuant to this program.
- 10. The employee who is recipient of the donated leave shall use such leave in compliance with their approved Catastrophic Leave Application.
- 11. The Pacific View Executive Director or designee shall ensure that all donations are confidential.

#### **General Information Regarding Leaves of Absence**

Pacific View may grant a leave of absence in certain circumstances. Employees must notify the Executive Director in writing as soon as they become aware that they may need a leave of absence. Pacific View will consider the request in accordance with applicable law and Pacific View's leave policies. Employees will be notified whether their leave request is granted or denied. If an employee is granted leave, the employee must comply with the terms and conditions of the leave, including keeping in touch with the Executive Director or designee during their leave, and giving prompt notice if there is any change in the employee's return date.

Employees must not accept other employment or apply for unemployment insurance while they are on a leave of absence. Acceptance of other employment while on leave will be treated as a voluntary resignation from employment at Pacific View. Benefits, such as sick leave, will not accrue while an employee is on a leave of absence. Upon return from a leave of absence, employees will be credited with the full employment status that existed prior to the start of the leave.

Pacific View may hold in abeyance or proceed with any counseling, performance review, or disciplinary action, including discharge, that was contemplated prior to any employee's request for or receipt of a leave of absence or that has come to Pacific View's attention during the leave. If any action is held in abeyance during the leave of absence, Pacific View reserves the right to proceed with the action upon the employee's return. Requesting or receiving a leave of absence in no way relieves

employees of their obligation while on the job to perform their job responsibilities capably and up to Pacific View's expectations and to observe all Pacific View policies, rules, and procedures.

#### Family Care and Medical Leave

This policy explains how the School complies with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") and the California Family Rights Act ("CFRA"), both of which require the School to permit each eligible employee to take up to twelve (12) workweeks (or twenty-six (26) workweeks where indicated) of FMLA/CFRA leave in any twelve (12) month period for the purposes enumerated below.

• Employee Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for FMLA/CFRA leave, the employee must have been employed by the School for a total of at least twelve (12) months, worked at least 1,250 hours during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding commencement of the leave, and work at a location where the School has at least fifty (50) employees within seventy-five (75) miles (except for purposes of CFRA where the School must only have at least five (5) employees).

Events That May Entitle an Employee To FMLA/CFRA Leave

The twelve (12) week (or twenty-six (26) workweeks where indicated) FMLA/<u>CFRA</u> allowance includes any time taken (with or without pay) for any of the following reasons:

2. Because of the employee's own serious health condition (including a serious health condition resulting from an on-the-job illness or injury) that makes the employee unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of his or her job (other than a disability caused by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions, which is covered by the School's separate pregnancy disability policy).

a. A "serious health condition" is an illness, injury (including, but not limited to, on-the-job injuries), impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or a child, parent, or spouse of the employee that involves either inpatient care or continuing treatment, including, but not limited to, treatment for substance abuse. of the employee or the employee's child, parent, parent in law, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, state registered domestic partner or a "designated person". In addition to biological relationships, a "child" and "parent" also include adoptive, foster, stepparent, and stepchild relationships, guardian and legal ward relationships, and the child of an employee's domestic partner. A "sibling" is "a person related to another person by blood, adoption, or affinity through a common legal or biological parent." A "designated person" is defined as any individual related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent of a family relationship. An employee may identify their

Employee Handbook

**Formatted:** List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 2 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent at: 2"

Page 37 of 55

"designated person" at the time the employee requests leave to care for that person. AB 1041 authorizes an employee to limit an employee to one "designated person" per 12-month period.

- b. "Inpatient care" means a stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care facility, any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or any period of incapacity. A person is considered an "inpatient" when a health care facility formally admits him/her to the facility with the expectation that he/she will remain at least overnight and occupy a bed, even if it later develops that such person can be discharged or transferred to another facility and does not actually remain overnight.
- c. "Incapacity" means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery that it requires.
- d. "Continuing treatment" means ongoing medical treatment or supervision by a health care provider.
  - 3. To care for a spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent with a serious health condition, a qualifying family member may also include a parent-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling, or designated person for CFRA purposes. "Designated person" refers to any individual related by blood or whose association with the employee is the equivalent to a family relationship. Employees are limited to one (1) designated person per twelve (12) month period.
  - 4. When an employee is providing care to a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin who is a covered Armed Forces service member with a serious injury or illness, the employee may take a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks of additional FMLA leave in a single twelve (12) month period to provide said care. CFRA does not provide leave specific to caring for a service member.
  - 5. For any "qualifying exigency" because the employee is the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of an individual on active military duty, or an individual notified of an impending call or order to active duty, in the Armed Forces. For CFRA purposes, this may also include a domestic partner.
- Amount of FMLA/CFRA Leave Which May Be Taken
  - FMLA/CFRA leave can be taken in one (1) or more periods, but may not exceed twelve (12) workweeks total for any purpose in any twelve (12) month period, as described below, for any one, or combination of the above-described situations. "Twelve workweeks" means the equivalent of twelve (12) of the employee's normally scheduled workweeks. For a full-time employee who works five (5) eight (8) hour days per week, "twelve workweeks" means sixty (60) working and/or paid eight (8) hour days.
  - 2. In addition to the twelve (12) workweeks of FMLA/CFRA leave that may be taken, an employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a covered Armed Forces service member may also be entitled to a total of twenty-six (26)

Employee Handbook

 $\label{eq:started} \begin{array}{l} \mbox{Formatted:} \ \mbox{List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.5" \end{array}$ 

workweeks of FMLA leave during a twelve (12) month period to care for the servicemember.

- 3. The "twelve-month period" in which twelve (12) weeks of FMLA and CFRA leave may be taken is the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the commencement of any FMLA/CFRA leave.
- 4. If a holiday falls within a week taken as FMLA/CFRA leave, the week is nevertheless counted as a week of FMLA/CFRA leave. If, however, the School's business activity has temporarily ceased for some reason and employees are generally not expected to report for work for one or more weeks, such as the Winter Break, Spring Break, or Summer Vacation, the days the School's activities have ceased do not count against the employee's FMLA or CFRA leave entitlement. Similarly, if an employee uses FMLA/CFRA leave in increments of less than one (1) week, the fact that a holiday may occur within a week in which an employee partially takes leave does not count against the employee's leave entitlement unless the employee was otherwise scheduled and expected to work during the holiday.
- Pay during FMLA/CFRA Leave
  - An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave because of his/her own serious health condition must use all accrued paid sick leave at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA/CFRA leave period. If an employee is receiving a partial wage replacement benefit during the FMLA/CFRA leave, the School and the employee may agree to have School-provided paid leave, such as vacation or sick time, supplement the partial wage replacement benefit unless otherwise prohibited by law.
  - 2. An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave for baby-bonding or to care for a qualifying family member with a serious health condition may use any or all accrued sick leave at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA/CFRA leave.
  - 3. If an employee has exhausted his/her sick leave, leave taken under FMLA/CFRA shall be unpaid leave.
  - 4. The receipt of sick leave pay or State Disability Insurance benefits will not extend the length of the FMLA or CFRA leave. Sick pay accrues during any period of unpaid FMLA or CFRA leave only until the end of the month in which unpaid leave began.
- Health Benefits

The provisions of the School's various employee benefit plans govern continuing eligibility during FMLA/CFRA leave, and these provisions may change from time to time. The health benefits of employees on FMLA/CFRA leave will be paid by the School during the leave at the same level and under the same conditions as coverage would have been provided if the employee had been continuously employed during the leave period. When a request for FMLA/CFRA leave is granted, the School will give the employee written confirmation of the arrangements made for the payment of insurance premiums during the leave period.

165

If an employee is required to pay premiums for any part of his/her group health coverage, the School will provide the employee with advance written notice of the terms and conditions under which premium payments must be made.

Pacific View may recover the health benefit costs paid on behalf of an employee during his/her FMLA/CFRA leave if:

- 1. The employee fails to return from leave after the period of leave to which the employee is entitled has expired. An employee is deemed to have "failed to return from leave" if he/she works less than thirty (30) days after returning from FMLA/CFRA leave; and
- 2. The employee's failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition that entitles the employee to FMLA/CFRA leave, or other circumstances beyond the control of the employee.
- Seniority

An employee on FMLA/CFRA leave remains an employee and the leave will not constitute a break in service. An employee who returns from FMLA/CFRA leave will return with the same seniority he/she had when the leave commenced.

- Medical Certifications
  - 1. An employee requesting FMLA/CFRA leave because of his/her own or a relative's serious health condition must provide medical certification from the appropriate health care provider on a form supplied by the School. Absent extenuating circumstances, failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within fifteen (15) days of the School's request for certification) may result in denial of the leave request until such certification is provided.
  - 2. The School will notify the employee in writing if the certification is incomplete or insufficient, and will advise the employee what additional information is necessary in order to make the certification complete and sufficient. The School may contact the employee's health care provider to authenticate a certification as needed.
  - 3. If the School has reason to doubt the medical certification supporting a leave because of the employee's own serious health condition, the School may request a second opinion by a health care provider of its choice (paid for by the School). If the second opinion differs from the first one, the School will pay for a third, mutually agreeable, health care provider to provide a final and binding opinion.
  - 4. Recertifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated by the health care provider. Failure to submit required recertifications can result in termination of the leave.
- Procedures for Requesting and Scheduling FMLA/CFRA Leave

- 1. An employee should request FMLA/CFRA leave by completing a Request for Leave form and submitting it to the Executive Director/designee. An employee asking for a Request for Leave form will be given a copy of the School's then-current FMLA/CFRA leave policy.
- 2. Employees should provide not less than thirty (30) days' notice for foreseeable childbirth, placement, or any planned medical treatment for the employee or his/her qualifying family member. Failure to provide such notice is grounds for denial of a leave request, except if the need for FMLA/CFRA leave was an emergency or was otherwise unforeseeable.
- 3. Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the School's operations.
- 4. If FMLA/CFRA leave is taken because of the employee's own serious health condition or the serious health condition of the employee's qualifying family member, the leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary, as determined by the health care provider of the person with the serious health condition.
- 5. If FMLA/CFRA leave is taken because of the birth of the employee's child or the placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care, the minimum duration of leave is two (2) weeks, except that the School will grant a request for FMLA/CFRA leave for this purpose of at least one day but less than two (2) weeks' duration on any two (2) occasions.
- 6. If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment for the employee or a family member, the employee may be transferred temporarily to an available alternative position for which he or she is qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits and that better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee's regular position.
- 7. The School will respond to an FMLA/CFRA leave request no later than five (5) business days of receiving the request. If an FMLA/CFRA leave request is granted, the School will notify the employee in writing that the leave will be counted against the employee's FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement. This notice will explain the employee's obligations and the consequences of failing to satisfy them.
- Return to Work
  - Upon timely return at the expiration of the FMLA/CFRA leave period, an employee is entitled to the same or a comparable position with the same or similar duties and virtually identical pay, benefits, and other terms and conditions of employment unless the same position and any comparable position(s) have ceased to exist because of legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee's FMLA/CFRA leave.

- 2. When a request for FMLA/CFRA leave is granted to an employee, the School will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the termination of the leave (with the limitations explained above).
- 3. Before an employee will be permitted to return from FMLA/CFRA leave taken because of his/her own serious health condition, the employee must obtain a certification from his/her health care provider that he/she is able to resume work.
- 4. If an employee can return to work with limitations, the School will evaluate those limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from the School.
- Employment during Leave

No employee, including employees on FMLA/CFRA leave, may accept employment with any other employer without the School's written permission. An employee who accepts such employment without the School's written permission will be deemed to have resigned from employment at the School.

## **Pregnancy Disability Leave**

This policy explains how the School complies with the California Pregnancy Disability Act, which requires the School to give each female employee an unpaid leave of absence of up to four (4) months per pregnancy, as needed, for the period(s) of time a woman is actually disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.

• Employee Eligibility Criteria

To be eligible for pregnancy disability leave, the employee must be disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition and must provide appropriate medical certification concerning the disability.

• Events That May Entitle an Employee to Pregnancy Disability Leave

The four (4) -month pregnancy disability leave allowance includes any time taken (with or without pay) for any of the following reasons:

- 1. The employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of her job without undue risk to herself, the successful completion of her pregnancy, or to other persons because of pregnancy or childbirth, or because of any medically recognized physical or mental condition that is related to pregnancy or childbirth (including severe morning sickness); or
- 2. The employee needs to take time off for prenatal care.
- Duration of Pregnancy Disability Leave

Employee Handbook

Page 42 of 55

Pregnancy disability leave may be taken in one or more periods, but not to exceed four months total. "Four months" means the number of days the employee would normally work within four months. For a full-time employee who works five (5) eight (8) hour days per week, four (4) months means 693 hours of leave (40 hours per week times  $17^{-1}/_{3}$  weeks).

For employees who work more or less than forty (40) hours per week, or who work on variable work schedules, the number of working days that constitutes four (4) months is calculated on a pro rata or proportional basis. For example, for an employee who works twenty (20) hours per week, "four months" means 346.5 hours of leave entitlement (20 hours per week times 17  $^{1}/_{3}$  weeks). For an employee who normally works forty-eight (48) hours per week, "four months" means 832 hours of leave entitlement (48 hours per week times 17  $^{1}/_{3}$  weeks).

At the end or depletion of an employee's pregnancy disability leave, an employee who has a physical or mental disability (which may or may not be due to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions) may be entitled to reasonable accommodation. Entitlement to additional leave must be determined on a case-by case basis, taking into account a number of considerations such as whether an extended leave is likely to be effective in allowing the employee to return to work at the end of the leave, with or without further reasonable accommodation, and whether or not additional leave would create an undue hardship for the School. The School is not required to provide an indefinite leave of absence as a reasonable accommodation.

- Pay during Pregnancy Disability Leave
  - 1. An employee on pregnancy disability leave must use all accrued paid sick leave and may use any or all accrued vacation time at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid leave period.
  - 2. The receipt of vacation pay, sick leave pay, or state disability insurance benefits, will not extend the length of pregnancy disability leave.
  - 3. Vacation and sick pay accrues during any period of unpaid pregnancy disability leave only until the end of the month in which the unpaid leave began.
- Health Benefits

The School shall provide continued health insurance coverage while an employee is on pregnancy disability leave consistent with applicable law. The continuation of health benefits is for a maximum of four (4) months in a twelve (12)-month period. The School can recover premiums that it already paid on behalf of an employee if both of the following conditions are met:

- 1. The employee fails to return from leave after the designated leave period expires.
- 2. The employee's failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the following:
  - The employee is taking leave under the California Family Rights Act.

- There is a continuation, recurrence or onset of a health condition that entitles the employee to pregnancy disability leave.
- There is a non-pregnancy related medical condition requiring further leave.
- Any other circumstance beyond the control of the employee.
- Seniority

An employee on pregnancy disability leave remains an employee of the School and a leave will not constitute a break in service. When an employee returns from pregnancy disability leave, she will return with the same seniority she had when the leave commenced.

- Medical Certifications
  - 1. An employee requesting a pregnancy disability leave must provide medical certification from her healthcare provider on a form supplied by the School. Failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within fifteen (15) days of the leave request) may result in a denial of the leave request until such certification is provided.
  - 2. Recertifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated by the healthcare provider. Failure to submit required recertifications can result in termination of the leave.
- Requesting and Scheduling Pregnancy Disability Leave
  - 1. An employee should request pregnancy disability leave by completing a Request for Leave form and submitting it to the Executive Director/Designee. An employee asking for a Request for Leave form will be referred to the School's then current pregnancy disability leave policy.
  - 2. Employee should provide not less than thirty (30) days' notice or as soon as is practicable, if the need for the leave is foreseeable. Failure to provide such notice is grounds for denial of the leave request, except if the need for pregnancy disability leave was an emergency and was otherwise unforeseeable.
  - 3. Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the School's operations.
  - 4. Pregnancy disability leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when medically advisable, as determined by the employee's healthcare provider.
  - 5. If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment, the employee may be transferred temporarily to an available alternative position for which he or she is qualified that has

equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee's regular position.

- 6. The School will respond to a pregnancy disability leave request within ten (10) days of receiving the request. If a pregnancy disability leave request is granted, the School will notify the employee in writing and leave will be counted against the employee's pregnancy disability leave entitlement. This notice will explain the employee's obligations and the consequences of failing to satisfy them.
- Return to Work
  - 1. Upon timely return at the expiration of the pregnancy disability leave period, an employee is entitled to the same position unless the employee would not otherwise have been employed in the same position at the time reinstatement is requested. If the employee is not reinstated to the same position, she must be reinstated to a comparable position unless one of the following is applicable:
    - a. The employer would not have offered a comparable position to the employee if she would have been continuously at work during the pregnancy disability leave.
    - b. There is no comparable position available, to which the employee is either qualified or entitled, on the employee's scheduled date of reinstatement or within sixty (60) calendar days thereafter. The School will take reasonable steps to provide notice to the employee if and when comparable positions become available during the sixty (60) day period.

A "comparable" position is a position that involves the same or similar duties and responsibilities and is virtually identical to the employee's original position in terms of pay, benefits, and working conditions.

- 2. When a request for pregnancy disability leave is granted to an employee, the School will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the end of the leave (with the limitations explained above).
- 3. In accordance with School policy, before an employee will be permitted to return from a pregnancy disability leave of three (3) days or more, the employee must obtain a certification from her healthcare provider that she is able to resume work.
- 4. If the employee can return to work with limitations, the School will evaluate those limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from the School.
- Employment during Leave

No employee, including employees on pregnancy disability leave, may accept employment with any other employer without the School's written permission. An employee who accepts such employment without written permission will be deemed to have resigned from employment.

#### Industrial Injury Leave (Workers' Compensation)

The School, in accordance with State law, provides insurance coverage for employees in case of work-related injuries. The workers' compensation benefits provided to injured employees may include:

- Medical care;
- · Cash benefits, tax-free to replace lost wages; and
- Vocational rehabilitation to help qualified injured employees return to suitable employment.

To ensure employees receive any worker's compensation benefits to which they may be entitled, employees will need to:

- Immediately report any work-related injury to the Executive Director/designee;
- Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required;
- Complete a written Employee's Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and return it to the Executive Director/designee; and
- Provide the School with a certification from a health care provider regarding the need for workers' compensation disability leave as well as the employee's eventual ability to return to work from the leave.

It is the School's policy that when there is a job-related injury, the first priority is to ensure that the injured employee receives appropriate medical attention. The School, with the help of its insurance carrier has selected medical centers to meet this need. Each medical center was selected for its ability to meet anticipated needs with high quality medical service and a location that is convenient to the School's operation.

- If an employee is injured on the job, he/she is to go or be taken to the approved medical center for treatment. If injuries are such that they require the use of emergency medical systems ("EMS") such as an ambulance, the choice by the EMS personnel for the most appropriate medical center or hospital for treatment will be recognized as an approved center.
- All accidents and injuries must be reported to the Executive Director/Designee and to the individual responsible for reporting to the School's insurance carrier. Failure by an employee to report a work-related injury by the end of his/her shift could result in loss of insurance coverage for the employee. An employee may choose to be treated by his/her personal physician at his/her own expense, but he/she is still required to go to the School's approved medical center for evaluation. All job-related injuries must be reported to the appropriate State Workers' Compensation Bureau and the insurance carrier.
- When there is a job-related injury that results in lost time, the employee must have a medical release from the School's approved medical facility before returning to work.

• Any time there is a job-related injury, the School's policy requires drug/alcohol testing along with any medical treatment provided to the employee.

#### Military and Military Spousal Leave of Absence

The School shall grant a military leave of absence to any employee who must be absent from work due to service in the uniformed services in accordance with the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-Employment Rights Act of 1994 ("USERRA"). All employees requesting military leave must provide advance written notice of the need for such leave, unless prevented from doing so by military necessity or if providing notice would be impossible or unreasonable.

If military leave is for thirty (30) or fewer days, Pacific View shall continue the employee's health benefits. For service of more than thirty (30) days, employee shall be permitted to continue their health benefits at their option through COBRA. Employees are entitled to use accrued vacation or paid time off as wage replacement during time served, provided such vacation/paid time off accrued prior to the leave.

Except for employees serving in the National Guard, Pacific View will reinstate those employees returning from military leave to their same position or one of comparable seniority, status, and pay if they have a certificate of satisfactory completion of service and apply within ninety (90) days after release from active duty or within such extended period, if any, as required by law. For those employees serving in the National Guard, if he or she left a full-time position, the employee must apply for reemployment within forty (40) days of being released from active duty, and if he or she left part-time employment, the employee must apply for reemployment within five (5) days of being released from active duty.

An employee who was absent from work while fulfilling his or her covered service obligation under the USERRA or California law shall be credited, upon his or her return to the School, with the hours of service that would have been performed but for the period of absence from work due to or necessitated by USERRA-covered service. Exceptions to this policy will occur wherever necessary to comply with applicable laws.

Pacific View shall grant up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave to employees who work more than twenty (20) hours per week and who are spouses of deployed military servicemen and servicewomen. The leave may be taken when the military spouse is on leave from deployment during a time of military conflict. To be eligible for leave, an employee must provide the School with (1) notice of intention to take military spousal leave within two (2) business days of receiving official notice that the employee's military spouse will be on leave from deployment, and (2) documentation certifying that the employee's military spouse will be on leave from deployment during the time that the employee requests leave.

#### **Bereavement Leave**

All employees who have worked for the School for at least thirty (30) days shall be eligible to take up to five (5) days of bereavement leave due to the death of a covered family member (spouse, child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, domestic partner, or parent-in-law). ExemptRegular (nonsubstitute or temporary) employees are entitled to up to three (3) days of pay during bereavement

leave. For all other employees, bereavement leave shall be unpaid unless an employee elects to use available accrued/unused paid leave. Bereavement leave must be utilized within three (3) months of the covered family member's date of death. Bereavement pay will not be used in computing overtime pay. Upon request, an employee may be required to provide documentation of the death of a covered family member.

Employees may also be granted up to one (1) full day of paid <u>funeral-bereavement</u> leave if an employee wishes to attend the funeral of a relative who is not in the employee's immediate family. Days off must be taken consecutively. Documentation verifying the loss must be presented to the Executive Director/Designee immediately upon return to work.

Pacific View provides time off to employees who experience a death within their family. All regular employees who experience a death within their family may take up to three (3) days off with pay to handle affairs related to the death. Effective January 1, 2023 an additional two (2) unpaid days will be available to all regular employees. For purposes of this policy, family is defined as mother, father, wife, husband, life partner, daughter, son, brother, sister, mother in law, father in law, sister in law, brother in law, grandson, granddaughter, and grandparent.

#### **Reproductive Loss Leave**

All employees who have worked for the School for at least thirty (30) days shall be eligible to take up to five (5) days of leave upon the employee experiencing a reproductive loss event. A reproductive loss event includes any failed adoption, failed surrogacy, miscarriage, stillbirth, or unsuccessful assisted reproduction. Reproductive loss leave must be used within three (3) months of a reproductive loss event. Employees may take up to twenty (20) days of leave due to qualifying reproductive loss events within a twelve (12) month period. Reproductive loss leave shall be unpaid unless the employee elects to use available accrued/unused paid leave. Reproductive loss leave shall not be used in computing overtime pay

#### Jury Duty or Witness Leave

For all exempt employees, the School will pay for time off if an employee is called to serve on a jury provided the employee continues to perform work duties as assigned. For all nonexempt employees, the School will pay for up to ten (10) days if an employee is called to serve on a jury.

#### Voting Time Off

If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an official statesanctioned election, the employee may take off enough working time to vote. Such time off shall be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever allows for more free time and the time taken off shall be combined with the voting time available outside of working hours to a maximum of two (2) hours combined. Under these circumstances, an employee will be allowed a maximum of two (2) hours of time off during an election day without loss of pay. When possible, an employee requesting time off to vote shall give the Executive Director/designee at least two (2) days' notice. Formatted: Normal

Formatted: Justified

#### **School Appearance and Activities Leave**

As required by law, Pacific View will permit an employee who is a parent or guardian (including a stepparent, foster parent, or grandparent) of school children, from kindergarten through grade twelve (12), or a child enrolled with a licensed child care provider, up to forty (40) hours of unpaid time off per school year (up to eight (8) hours in any calendar month of the school year) to participate in activities of a child's school or child care. If more than one (1) parent or guardian is an employee of Pacific View, the employee that first provides the leave request will be given the requested time off. Where necessary, additional time off will also be permitted where the school requires the employee(s) appearance.

The employee requesting school leave must provide reasonable advanced notice of the planned absence. The employee must use accrued but unused paid leave (e.g., vacation or sick leave) to be paid during the absence.

When requesting time off for school activities, the employee must provide verification of participation in an activity as soon as practicable. When requesting time off for a required appearance, the employee(s) must provide a copy of the notice from the child's school requesting the presence of the employee.

## **Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave**

As required by law, eligible employees who require time off to donate bone marrow to another person may receive up to five (5) workdays off in a <u>twelve (12)</u>-month period. Eligible employees who require time off to donate an organ to another person may receive up to sixty (60) workdays off in a twelve (12) month period.

To be eligible for bone marrow or organ donation leave ("Donor Leave"), the employee must have been employed by the School for at least ninety (90) days immediately preceding the Donor Leave.

An employee requesting Donor Leave must provide written verification to the School that he or she is a donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation of the organ or bone marrow.

Up to five (5) days of leave for bone marrow donation and up to thirty (30) days of leave for organ donation may be paid provided the employee uses five (5) days of accrued paid leave for bone marrow donation and two (2) weeks of accrued paid leave for organ donation. If the employee has an insufficient number of paid leave days available, the leave will otherwise be paid.

Employees returning from Donor Leave will be reinstated to the position held before the leave began, or to a position with equivalent status, benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of employment. The School may refuse to reinstate an employee if the reason is unrelated to taking a Donor Leave. A Donor Leave is not permitted to be taken concurrently with an FMLA/CFRA Leave.

#### Victims of Abuse Leave

Pacific View provides reasonable and necessary unpaid leave and other reasonable accommodations to employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking or other crimes. Such leave may be taken to attend legal proceedings or to obtain or attempt to obtain any relief necessary,

including a restraining order, to ensure the employee's own health, safety or welfare that of the employee's child or children or when a person whose immediate family member is deceased as the direct result of a crime. A crime includes a crime or public offense that would constitute a misdemeanor or felony if the crime had been committed in California by a competent adult, an act of terrorism against a resident of California (whether or not such act occurs within the state), and regardless of whether any person is arrested for, prosecuted for, or convicted of, committing the crime. Employees may also request unpaid leave for the following purposes:

- Seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center.
- Obtain psychological counseling for the domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- Participate in safety planning, such as relocation, to protect against future domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

To request leave under this policy, an employee should provide Pacific View with as much advance notice as practicable under the circumstances. If advance notice is not possible, the employee requesting leave under this policy should provide Pacific View one (1) of the following certifications upon returning back to work:

- 1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- 2. A court order protecting the employee from the perpetrator or other evidence from the court or prosecuting attorney that the employee appeared in court.
- 3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional, domestic violence or sexual assault counselor, licensed health care provider, or counselor showing that the employee's absence was due to treatment for injuries or abuse from domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
- 4. Any other form of documentation that reasonably verifies that the crime or abuse occurred, including but not limited to, a written statement signed by the employee, or an individual acting on the employee's behalf, certifying that the absence is for a purpose authorized under the law.

Employees requesting leave under this policy may choose to use accrued paid leave. In addition, Pacific View will provide reasonable accommodations to employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking for the employees' safety while at work. To request an accommodation under this policy, an employee should contact the Executive Director.

## **Returning From Leave of Absence**

Employees cannot return from a medical leave of absence without first providing a sufficient doctor's return to work authorization.

When business considerations require, the job of an employee on leave may be filled by a temporary or regular replacement. An employee should give the Executive Director/Designee thirty (30) days notice before returning from leave. Whenever the School is notified of an employee's intent to return from a leave, the School will attempt to place the employee in his former position or in a comparable position with regard to salary and other terms and conditions for which the employee is qualified. However, re-employment cannot always be guaranteed. If employees need further information regarding Leaves of Absence, they should be sure to consult the Executive Director or designee.

#### DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

## **Rules of Conduct**

The following conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by the School. This list of prohibited conduct is illustrative only and applies to all employees of the School; other types of conduct that threaten security, personal safety, employee welfare and the School's operations also may be prohibited. Further, the specification of this list of conduct in no way alters the at-will employment relationship as to at-will employees of the School. If an employee is working under a contract with the School which grants procedural rights prior to termination, the procedural terms in the contract shall apply.

- 1. Insubordination refusing to perform a task or duty assigned or act in accordance with instructions provided by an employee's manager or proper authority.
- 2. Unprofessional conduct.
- 3. Inefficiency including deliberate restriction of output, carelessness or unnecessary wastes of time or material, neglect of job, duties or responsibilities.
- 4. Unauthorized soliciting, collecting of contributions, distribution of literature, written or printed matter is strictly prohibited on School property by non-employees and by employees. This rule does not cover periods of time when employees are off their jobs, such as lunch periods and break times. However, employees properly off their jobs are prohibited from such activity with other employees who are performing their work tasks.
- 5. Damaging, defacing, unauthorized removal, destruction or theft of another employee's property or of School property.
- 6. Fighting or instigating a fight on School premises.
- 7. Violations of the drug and alcohol policy.
- 8. Using or possessing firearms, weapons or explosives of any kind on School premises.
- 9. Gambling on School premises.
- 10. Tampering with or falsifying any report or record including, but not limited to, personnel, absentee, sickness or production reports or records, specifically including applications for employment and time cards.
- 11. Recording the time sheet, when applicable, of another employee or permitting or arranging for another employee to record your time sheet.
- 12. Use of profane, abusive or threatening language in conversations with other employees and/or intimidating or interfering with other employees.
- 13. Conducting personal business during business hours and/or unauthorized use of telephone lines for personal calls.
- 14. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness excused or unexcused.
- 15. Posting any notices on School premises without prior written approval of management, unless posting is on a School bulletin board designated for employee postings.
- 16. Immoral or indecent conduct.
- 17. Conviction of a criminal act.
- 18. Engaging in sabotage or espionage (industrial or otherwise
- 19. Violations of the sexual harassment policy.
- 20. Failure to report a job-related accident to the employee's manager or failure to take or follow prescribed tests, procedures or treatment.
- 21. Sleeping during work hours.

Employee Handbook

Page 51 of 55

- 22. Release of confidential information without authorization.
- 23. Any other conduct detrimental to other employees or the School's interests or its efficient operations.
- 24. Refusal to speak to supervisors or other employees.
- 25. Dishonesty.
- 26. Failure to possess or maintain the credential/certificate required of the position.

For employees who possess an employment contract which provides for other than at-will employment, the procedures and process for termination during the contract shall be specified in the contract.

## **Off-Duty Conduct**

While the School does not seek to interfere with the off-duty and personal conduct of its employees, certain types of off-duty conduct may interfere with the School's legitimate business interests. For this reason, employees are expected to conduct their personal affairs in a manner that does not adversely affect the School or its own integrity, reputation, or credibility. Illegal or immoral off-duty conduct by an employee that adversely affects the School's legitimate business interests or the employee's ability to perform his or her work will not be tolerated.

While employed by the School, employees are expected to devote their energies to their jobs with the School. For this reason, second jobs are strongly discouraged. The following types of additional employment elsewhere are strictly prohibited:

- Additional employment that conflicts with an employee's work schedule, duties, and responsibilities at our School.
- Additional employment that creates a conflict of interest or is incompatible with the employee's position with our School.
- Additional employment that impairs or has a detrimental effect on the employee's work performance with our School.
- Additional employment that requires the employee to conduct work or related activities on the School's property during the employer's working hours or using our School's facilities and/or equipment; and
- Additional employment that directly or indirectly competes with the business or the interests of our School.

Employees who wish to engage in additional employment that may create a real or apparent conflict of interest must submit a written request to the School explaining the details of the additional employment. If the additional employment is authorized, the School assumes no responsibility for it. The School shall not provide workers' compensation coverage or any other benefit for injuries occurring from or arising out of additional employment. Authorization to engage in additional employment can be revoked at any time.

#### **Termination of Employment**

Should it become necessary for an employee to terminate their at-will employment with the School, employees should notify the Executive Director regarding their intention as far in advance as possible. At least two (2) weeks' notice is expected whenever possible.

When an employee terminates their at-will employment, they will be entitled to all earned but unused vacation pay. If an employee is participating in the medical and/or dental plan, they will be provided information on their rights under COBRA.

### INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW

The purpose of the "Internal Complaint Review Policy" is to afford all employees of the School the opportunity to seek internal resolution of their work-related concerns. All employees have free access to the Executive Director or Board of Trustees to express their work-related concerns.

Specific complaints of unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are addressed under the School's "Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation."

#### **Internal Complaints**

(Complaints by Employees Against Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a School employee raises a complaint or concern about a co-worker.

If reasonably possible, internal complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible level, including attempts to discuss/resolve concerns with the immediate supervisor. However, in the event an informal resolution may not be achieved or is not appropriate, the following steps will be followed by the Executive Director or designee:

- 1. The complainant will bring the matter to the attention of the Executive Director as soon as possible after attempts to resolve the complaint with the immediate supervisor have failed or if not appropriate; and
- 2. The complainant will reduce his or her complaint to writing, indicating all known and relevant facts. The Executive Director or designee will then investigate the facts and provide a solution or explanation;
- 3. If the complaint is about the Executive Director, the complainant may file his or her complaint in a signed writing to the HR Department who forwards on to the HR Consultant, who will then confer with the Board and may conduct a fact-finding or authorize a third-party investigator on behalf of the Board. The HR Consultant or investigator will report his or her findings to the Board for review and action, if necessary.

This policy cannot guarantee that every problem will be resolved to the employee's satisfaction. However, the School values each employee's ability to express concerns and the need for resolution without fear of adverse consequence to employment.

### **Policy for Complaints Against Employees** (Complaints by Third Parties Against Employees)

This section of the policy is for use when a non-employee raises a complaint or concern about a School employee.

If complaints cannot be resolved informally, complainants may file a written complaint, as soon as possible, after the events that give rise to the complainant's concerns with the office of the Executive Director or (if the complaint concerns the Executive Director) the HR Department who will forward it on to the HR Consultant consistent with the process outlined above. The written complaint should set forth in detail the factual basis for the complaint.

In processing the complaint, Executive Director (or designee) shall abide by the following process:

- 1. The Executive Director or designee shall use his or her best efforts to talk with the parties identified in the complaint and to ascertain the facts relating to the complaint.
- 2. In the event that the Executive Director (or designee) finds that a complaint against an employee is valid, the Executive Director (or designee) may take appropriate disciplinary action against the employee. As appropriate, the Executive Director (or designee) may also simply counsel/reprimand employees as to their conduct without initiating formal disciplinary measures.
- 3. The Executive Director's (or designee's) decision relating to the complaint shall be final unless it is appealed to the Board of Trustees of the School. The decision of the Board of Trustees shall be final.

## **General Requirements**

- 1. <u>Confidentiality</u>: All complainants will be notified that information obtained from the complainants and thereafter gathered will be maintained in a manner as confidential as possible, but in some circumstances absolute confidentiality cannot be assured.
- 2. <u>Non-Retaliation</u>: All complainants will be advised that they will be protected against retaliation as a result of the filing of any complaints or participation in any complaint process.
- 3. <u>Resolution</u>: The Board (if a complaint is about the Executive Director) or the Executive Director or designee will investigate complaints appropriately under the circumstances and pursuant to the applicable procedures, and if necessary, take appropriate remedial measures to ensure effective resolution of any complaint.

# AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

This Employee Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of the School in effect at the time of publication.

The School reserves the right to amend, delete or otherwise modify this Handbook at any time provided that such modifications are in writing and duly approved by the employer.

Any written changes to the Handbook will be distributed to all employees. No oral statements can in any way alter the provisions of this Handbook.
#### APPENDIX A

#### HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION/RETALIATION COMPLAINT FORM

It is the policy of the School that all of its employees be free from harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. This form is provided for you to report what you believe to be harassment, discrimination, or retaliation so that the School may investigate and take appropriate disciplinary or other action when the facts show that there has been harassment, discrimination, or retaliation.

If you are an employee of the School, you may file this form with the Executive Director or Human Resources Representative.

Please review the School's policies concerning harassment, discrimination, and retaliation for a definition of such unlawful conduct and a description of the types of conduct that are considered unlawful.

The School will undertake every effort to handle the investigation of your complaint in a confidential manner. In that regard, the School will disclose the contents of your complaint only to those persons having a need to know. For example, to conduct its investigation, the School will need to disclose portions of your factual allegations to potential witnesses, including anyone you have identified as having knowledge of the facts on which you are basing your complaint, as well as the alleged offender.

In signing this form below, you authorize the School to disclose to others the information you have provided herein, and information you may provide in the future. Please note that the more detailed information you provide, the more likely it is that the School will be able to address your complaint to your satisfaction.

Charges of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are taken very seriously by the School both because of the harm caused by such unlawful conduct, and because of the potential sanctions that may be taken against the offender. It is therefore very important that you report the facts as accurately and completely as possible and that you cooperate fully with the person or persons designated to investigate your complaint.

Your Name:

\_\_\_\_ Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Date of Alleged Incident(s): \_\_\_\_\_

Name of Person(s) you believe harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against, you or someone else:

List any witnesses that were present

Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the above statements. I hereby authorize the School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation.

I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Complainant

Date

Print Name

Received by:\_\_\_\_\_

Date

### APPENDIX B

INTERNAL COMPLAINT FORM Prior to filing this form, you are required to engage in a good faith meeting with the party involved to attempt to resolve your concern informally.

Your Name:	Date:
Date of Alleged Incident(s):	
Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:	
List any witnesses that were present:	
Where did the incident(s) occur?	
Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):	
I hereby authorize the School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation. I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further understand providing false information in this regard could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.	
Signature of Complainant	Date:
Print Name	
To be completed by School:	

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Received by 4857-2271-5538, v. 2

Formatted: Left, Line spacing: Exactly 9 pt



# Confidential Classified – **Exempt** Job Description: **Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator**

# Description of Position:

The Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator is directly responsible to the Executive Director Fiscal & Operations Coordinator for a variety of complex accounting and statistical business office related functions. Areas of responsibility include, but are not limited to payroll, employee benefits, personnel, risk management, workers compensation, budget reconciliation and other general business and related functions of the school. The Human Resources & Business Services Coordinator will be expected to attend safety committee and board meetings.

# Essential Duties and Responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following:

- Perform a variety of Certificated and Classified Personnel processing responsibilities, including employee transactions, HR systems, maintenance of personnel and benefit files, employee onboarding, and personnel action forms.
- Place recruitment postings, screen applicants for employment eligibility and arrange the interview process.
- Serves as point of contact for human resource audits, subpoenas, public records requests, and human resource/benefit issues.
- Credential processing
- Responsible for the review, maintenance and submission of CTC California Statewide Assignment Accountability System (CalSAAS) Annual Report. Resolving exceptions with appropriate determinations.
- CTC misconduct submissions.
- Prepare and submit annual State Controller's Government Compensation Report
- STRS/PERS audit administration.
- Oversight of hourly payroll and school-wide leave processing
- In conjunction with the Fiscal & Operations Coordinator, facilitate annual review of employee benefits and renewal rate negotiations
- Process and maintain benefits, COBRA, unemployment and leave administration Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), California Family Rights Act (CFRA), and Pregnancy Disability Leave PDL
- Coordinate Employee Benefits Open Enrollment, maintain employee benefits changes, reconcile monthly benefits vendor billings, and prepare annual IRS compliance reporting for Cafeteria 125 account.
- Assure Affordable Care Act (ACA) compliance
- Process, submit and monitor risk management loss claims, workers compensation claims, and student injury reports.
- Process employee injury reports, assist with appropriate follow up, documentation and care of employee.

- Serves as School's Representative for SDCOE JPA Risk Management, Fringe Benefit Consortium, Payroll, Workers' Compensation, Benefits, and Credentialing, PeopleSoft HCM & FSCM User's Groups meetings, and other meeting as assigned by Executive Director and/or Fiscal & Operations Coordinator.
- Prepare Annual Staff Retention Report
- Audit and reconcile budget adjustments
- Work closely with the Fiscal & Operations Coordinator to reconcile budget with personnel information.
- Responsible for bank statement reconciliations of all Non-General Fund bank accounts.
- Assist in the completion of the school's Annual Audit.
- Cross train on FSCM PeopleSoft processing including but not limited to Accounts Payable, Buyer, Supplier Administration, General Ledger to assure continued processing and prevention of work stoppage.
- Prepare miscellaneous reports; maintain meeting records, and perform a variety of high-level accounting and statistical record keeping functions.
- Document, process, and maintain multiple databases for monthly payroll, benefits, and personnel records
- Serves on the Safety Committee
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Executive Director and/or Fiscal & Operations Coordinator
- Work toward team and school goals.

# **Requirements:**

# Education and Experience:

Any combination of education, training and/or experience, equivalent to an Associate's degree with emphasis in accounting, economics or finance or five (5) years of experience which include at least three (3) years of payroll experience.

# Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

Experience in use of technology for preparation and maintenance of accounting, data, and other business related information.

An ability to plan, organize, write with clarity and correctness and work cooperatively with fellow employees, staff, administrators, and parents.

Perform a variety of difficult financial and statistical record keeping. Maintain complex, confidential or sensitive information and files.

Perform in situations requiring specialized knowledge, using tact and good judgment.

# Physical Demands:

Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard.

Sitting or standing for extended periods of time.

Hearing and speaking to exchange information and making presentations.

Seeing to read a variety of materials.

Moderate physical exertion.

Ability to lift 20 pounds maximum and carrying any object weighing up to 15 pounds.

The amount of time for each activity varies depending on daily work load and priority schedules. Some days, sitting could occur more frequently, and on other days standing and walking could occur

throughout the workday.

### Work Environment:

School office environment Constant interruptions Deadlines, meetings, and reports are constant Evening or variable hours

# License:

Possession of a valid California Driver's License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles. Supervisor: Work Year: 248 Work Days Executive Director Fiscal & Operations Coordinator

Board Approved: February 18, 2014

Revised:

February 17, 2015 May 18, 2021 April 20, 2022 March 21, 2023 effective 7/1/2023 September 14, 2023 *July 1, 2024* 



# **Classified Position – Non-Exempt**

# Job Description: Business Services Assistant II

### **Description:**

The Business Services Assistant II position is directly responsible to the Director of Business and Operations *Fiscal and Operations Coordinator*. The Business Services Assistant II position shall perform highly technical clerical accounting and record keeping work related to the school's business functions which include, but are not limited to, student records, state reporting, personnel, payroll, employee benefits, training records and absence reporting.

### Essential Duties and Responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following:

- *Maintains attendance recordkeeping.* Receives, reviews, and verifies all attendance information; reviews absences and percentage of attendance with the assistance of certificated staff when necessary.
- Research discrepancies of attendance information and/or documentation for the purpose of ensuring accuracy of attendance data before processing.
- Assists certificated staff with attendance change authorization codes when requested.
- Create, verify and submit attendance reports to Director of Business and Operations Fiscal and Operations Coordinator for State Attendance Reporting
- Upload and verify multiple data files to CalPads, resolving any data error issues
- Request and obtain student SSIDs from CalPads. Input and maintain SSIDs in PVC student information system.
- Responsible for resolving data errors and monitoring the certification status of state reporting in CALPADS.
- Perform general clerical duties that are related, but not limited to the Business Office and Administrative Services.
- Work closely with the Director of Business and Operations Fiscal and Operations Coordinator in order to maintain accurate student cumulative records and forms.
- Maintain confidential student records.
- Responsible for the annual Corodata offsite storage project, including processing and maintaining recordkeeping system.
- Maintain accounts payable information including master vendor files and records
- Responsible for the set-up and maintenance of all supplier records
- Responsible for the conversion of all approved requisitions to purchase orders.
- Creation of budget approved Purchase Orders.
- Responsible for full charge Accounts Payable payment processing, including supplier verifications/updates, invoice verification, warrant processing, and verification of the budget status on purchase orders and warrants.
- Processes all supplier tax reporting 1099s, DE542s, W9 and California Form 590
- Maintain employee in-service payment and trip conference files, verify and audit expenses, and process mileage claims.
- Provide purchase records/warrant information to Fiscal and Operations Coordinator to create inventory records
- Assist Human Resources and Business Services Coordinator with confidential personnel, payroll and benefits records
- Responsible for processing and posting monthly hourly payroll.
- Assist with Employee/Vendor Benefit Reconciliations

- Assist with Employee Benefit Open Enrollment and Tax Reporting
- Maintain an employee LMS Training and Recordkeeping System
- Maintain Personnel files including I9s, HIPPA confidential documents, and employee clearance documentation
- Maintain Employee Absence Reports including processing, posting and reconciling
- Maintain a variety of business records, reports, schedules, and files (manual and computer) for the purpose of documenting personnel, marketing, and safety information.
- In conjunction with Chair of the School's Safety Committee maintain and update School's Safety documentation
- Assisted with receiving of merchandise.
- Participate in the annual student registration process.
- Responsible for front desk coverage when necessary.
- Other duties as assigned.

### **Requirements:**

### **Education and Experience:**

- A minimum of-2 3 years of previous professional office Accounts Payable, Pupil Attendance or CalPads Reporting experience.
- High School Diploma or equivalent.

### Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

- Through knowledge of the Student Information System, as utilized for attendance accounting and enrollment.
- General Knowledge of state rules and regulations governing attendance accounting and automated recordkeeping systems.
- Strong Accounting and Human Resource procedure skills.
- Ability to maintain highly confidential employee personnel and benefit records.
- Thorough understanding of professional office practices, procedures and equipment.
- An ability to plan, organize and write with clarity and correctness
- Prioritize, organize and multi-task
- Ability to work independently and cooperatively with fellow employees, staff, administrators, and parents.
- Timely and accurate preparation and maintenance of personnel, payroll, employee benefit and student records.
- Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures in regard to employee absences, time reporting, benefits, and personnel matters.
- Knowledge and application of applicable labor, tax and education code.

### **Physical Demands:**

- Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard
- Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
- Hearing and speaking to exchange information and making presentations
- Seeing to read a variety of materials
- Moderate physical exertion. Ability to lift 20 pounds maximum and carrying any object weighing up to 15 pounds.

The amount of time for each activity varies depending on daily work load and priority schedules. Some days, sitting could occur more frequently, and on other days standing and walking could occur

throughout the workday. May sit for prolonged time when completing projects; however, standing breaks are encouraged. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

Work Environment:

School office environment Constant interruptions Deadlines, meetings and reports are constant

Work Year: 233 Days Supervisor: Director of Business and Operations Fiscal & Operations Coordinator

Board Approved: September 12, 2019

Board Revised: April 20, 2022 December xx, 2023



### Classified Position – Non-Exempt Job Description - Office Clerk – Bilingual

### **Description of Position:**

Under general supervision, to perform any of a variety of clerical record keeping, record checking, filing, copying, compiling, keyboarding/typing duties and to perform a variety of supportive tasks to support the learning experiences for students in an instructional and office environment; and to do related work as required.

### Essential Duties and responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- Maintains cumulative records.
- Inputs registration information into SIS.
- Keeps track of supplies and order as needed.
- Provides translation services during registrations, parent/teacher meetings and Special Education meetings, as needed.
- Performs a variety of clerical duties, such as filing, typing, keeping records, and duplicating materials for staff.
- Posts information to forms, accounts, and records into database.
- Sorts and files papers, student records, and a variety of documents; searches files for specified information.
- Track, copy and file pacing guides, assignments, and other student work documents.
- May assist in the development of a variety of instructional materials.
- Operates a variety of office machines.
- Copy take-home tests as needed.
- Check-in and check-out textbooks to students and teachers.
- Assist in maintaining textbook inventory.
- Maintains alphabetical and numerical records and files.
- Operates a computer, calculator, and other office equipment.
- Performs other duties as assigned.

### Training and Experience:

Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth grade; no experience is required; however, character references may be checked; or any combination of training and/or experience that could likely provide the desired knowledge and abilities.

### **Physical Demands:**

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; reach with hands and arms; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawl, and smell. Specific vision abilities are required for this job. The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and occasionally lift and/or move up to 20 pounds.

### Work Environment:

The employee will work in a deadline driven office environment with constant interruptions.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.

The position requires constant public interaction including one-on-one student/parent communication and staff meetings – both formal and informal.

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

### Knowledge of:

Correct English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Standard office methods, procedures, and equipment, including receptionist and telephone techniques.

Basic arithmetic, filing, and record keeping practices.

Acceptable student behavior and characteristics

Positive student motivation and front office decorum.

Basic pupil record keeping principles including FERPA and HIPPA .

### Ability to:

Perform a variety of clerical work with accuracy and speed.

Learn to operate standard office equipment.

Make basic arithmetical calculations with accuracy and speed.

Post information, check records, file and alphabetize rapidly and accurately.

Understand and carry out oral and written instructions.

Assume responsibility of supervising students.

Maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with children and adults.

Understand and apply laws, regulations and policies.

Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

Accurately compute a variety of Mathematical problems.

Understand routine cash accounting procedures.

Reconcile differences within the record keeping system.

Follow oral and written instructions.

Work with minimum supervision.

Establish effective working relationships.

Work under pressure.

Proofread alphabetical and numerical material accurately and make necessary corrections.

Complete routine tasks thoroughly.

**Language Requirements:** This position requires oral competency and literacy in Spanish and English and the ability to translate spoken and written English to Spanish and Spanish to English.

### License:

Possession of a valid California Driver's License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles.

Supervisor: Director of Business and Operations

*Fiscal & Operations Coordinator* Work Year: 233 Work Days EMPLOYEE ASSIGNED TO MORENO VALLEY – Site Supervisor

Board Approved: August 19, 2014

Board Amended:

May 18, 2021 April 20, 2022 November xx,2023



# Stipend Description: Severely Disabled Premium Stipend for Special Education Instructional Aide

# **Description of Assignment:**

Under the general supervision of the Supervisory Teacher, Education Specialist and/or Special Education Coordinator the Special Education Instructional Aide assists one student at the school site with required personal hygiene and care needs.

# Essential Duties and Responsibilities include but are not limited to the following:

- Assist with personal hygiene and care routines, including diapering, lifting, transitioning of student in/out of wheelchair, etc.
- Assist with daily feedings.
- Monitor and clear student's feeding tube to prevent choking.
- Administer routine First Aid.
- Complete and maintain advanced medical training from a Registered Nurse.
- Implement any necessary health or safety procedures to respond to student's needs.
- Perform other duties as assigned by the Supervisory Teacher, Education Specialist and/or Special Education Coordinator
- ٠

# Annual Stipend Amount: \$3,500

Paid monthly at a rate \$291.67 for each month work is performed on a full-time basis. *A full-time employee performing duties in a temporary, part-time capacity will receive the hourly equivalent of stipend (paid on a monthly basis) for each hour stipend duties are performed.* 

Board Approved: September 28, 2022 Effective Date: September 1, 2022 Board Revised: November 29, 2022 December xx, 2023



# Classified - Non Exempt Job Description – Administrative Assistant

# **Description of Position:**

An Administrative Assistant performs complex administrative level office responsibilities including, but not limited to, planning, organizing, and participating in the clerical operations related to the assigned functions of the position.

This position is distinguished by the scope and complexity of work, level of technical skills and, significance of duties assigned. The work is identified as confidential and sensitive, requiring independent judgment and the ability to organize and expedite the flow of work through the office.

# Essential Duties and Responsibilities include but are not limited to the following:

- Perform challenging clerical and secretarial work using considerable independent judgment and an understanding of departmental functions and procedures.
- Deadlines, meetings, and reports are constant
- Compile, verify and distribute attendance forms.
- Input, verify and correct attendance submitted by teachers.
- Input and/or oversee Student Registration using multiple Student Information System (SIS) databases.
- Audit and verify student work folders for state reporting compliance of the Master Agreements, student attendance, credits attempted/earned, signatures, and dates.
- Maintain the permanent cumulative records of PVCS students per state and federal requirements.
- Oversee incoming and outgoing student cumulative records.
- Maintain confidential student files including Special Education, 504 and Expulsion.
- Familiarity and knowledge of expulsion and IEP laws and procedures.
- Maintain the PVCS archive system of student records in compliance with state destruction guidelines.
- Prepare general correspondence, memos and directives for distribution.
- Learn rules, regulations, laws, and policies governing the school.
- Compile reports and statements requiring the use of independent judgment.
- Meet with outside agencies police, cps, and probation officers, as needed.
- Maintain the confidential school log of staff alarm codes, as well as, coordinating staff access to buildings and scanning equipment.
- Perform other duties related to the position.

# Education and Experience:

Four years of professional office experience, preferably including experience in a school setting; or any combination of training and/or experience that could likely provide the desired knowledge and abilities. Equivalent to completion of the twelfth grade.

# Knowledge, skill, and Abilities:

- Perform a variety of confidential secretarial work that involves a high level of administrative detail and accuracy.
- Independently compose correspondence.
- Perform in situations requiring specialized knowledge, using tact and good judgment.
- Read, understand, explain and apply complex policies and material.
- Understand and carry out oral and written instructions.
- Ability to plan, organize, write with clarity and correctness
- Work cooperatively with fellow employees, staff, administrators, and parents.
- Working knowledge of rules, regulations, laws, and policies as they relate to charter schools.
- Obtain, interpret, and provide information to various parties concerning office functions, policies, and procedures.
- Understand and operate standard office equipment, including the use of advanced computer applications.

# Physical Demands:

- Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard
- Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
- Hearing and speaking to exchange information and making presentations
- Seeing to read a variety of materials

The amount of time for each activity varies depending on daily work load and priority schedules. Some days, sitting could occur more frequently, and on other days standing and walking could occur throughout the workday. May sit for prolonged time when completing projects; however, standing breaks are encouraged. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

# Work Environment:

- School office environment
- Constant interruptions and a moderate to loud noise level

# License:

Possession of a valid California Driver's License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles.

Supervisor: Director of Business and Operations Fiscal & Operations Coordinator EMPLOYEE ASSIGNED TO MORENO VALLEY – Site Supervisor

WORK YEAR: 233

Board Approved: March 5, 2019

Amended: May 18, 2021 April 20, 2022 December xx, 2023



### Classified Position – Non Exempt Job Description - Office Clerk

### **Description of Position:**

Under general supervision, to perform any of a variety of clerical record keeping, record checking, filing, copying, compiling, keyboarding/typing duties and to perform a variety of supportive tasks to support the learning experiences for students in an instructional and office environment; and to do related work as required.

### Essential Duties and responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- Performs a variety of clerical duties, such as filing, typing, keeping records, and duplicating materials for staff.
- Posts information to forms, accounts, and records into database.
- Sorts and files papers, student records, and a variety of documents; searches files for specified information.
- Track, copy and file pacing guides, assignments, and other student work documents.
- May assist in the development of a variety of instructional materials.
- Operates a variety of office machines.
- Inputs registration information into SIS.
- Keeps track of supplies and order as needed.
- Maintains cumulative records.
- Copy take-home tests as needed.
- Check-in and check-out textbooks to students and teachers.
- Assist in maintaining textbook inventory.
- Maintains alphabetical and numerical records and files.
- Operates a computer, calculator, and other office equipment.
- Performs other duties as assigned.

### Training and Experience:

Equivalent to the completion of the twelfth grade; no experience is required; however, character references may be checked; or any combination of training and/or experience that could likely provide the desired knowledge and abilities.

### **Physical Demands:**

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to sit; use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; reach with hands and arms; climb or balance; stoop, kneel, crouch or crawl, and smell. Specific vision abilities are required for this job. The employee must regularly lift and/or move up to 10 pounds and occasionally lift and/or move up to 20 pounds.

### Work Environment:

The employee will work in a deadline driven office environment with constant interruptions.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.

The position requires constant public interaction including one-on-one student/parent communication and staff meetings – both formal and informal.

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

# Knowledge of:

Correct English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.

Standard office methods, procedures, and equipment, including receptionist and telephone techniques.

Basic arithmetic, filing, and record keeping practices.

Acceptable student behavior and characteristics

Positive student motivation and front office decorum.

Basic pupil record keeping principles including FERPA and HIPPA .

# Ability to:

Perform a variety of clerical work with accuracy and speed.

Learn to operate standard office equipment.

Make basic arithmetical calculations with accuracy and speed.

Post information, check records, file and alphabetize rapidly and accurately.

Understand and carry out oral and written instructions.

Assume responsibility of supervising students.

Maintain cooperative and effective working relationships with children and adults.

Understand and apply laws, regulations and policies.

Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

Accurately compute a variety of Mathematical problems.

Understand routine cash accounting procedures.

Reconcile differences within the record keeping system.

Follow oral and written instructions.

Work with minimum supervision.

Establish effective working relationships.

Work under pressure.

Proofread alphabetical and numerical material accurately and make necessary corrections. Complete routine tasks thoroughly.

# License:

Possession of a valid California Driver's License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles.

# Supervisor:

Work Year: 233 Work Days

Director of Business & Operations Fiscal & Operations Coordinator EMPLOYEE ASSIGNED TO MORENO VALLEY – Site Supervisor

Board Approved: August 16, 2005

Amended: February 21, 2006 November 19, 2013 May 18, 2021 April 20, 2022 **December xx, 2023** 



# **Classified Position – Non Exempt**

# Job Description: Business Services Assistant I

# Description of the Position:

The Business Services Assistant I position is directly responsible to the Director of Business and Operations. The Business Services Assistant I position shall, under limited supervision, perform clerical accounting and general office work related to the school's operation and accounting functions, which include, but are not limited to accounts payable, supplier setup, supplier tax reporting, employee travel processing, attendance processing, supply ordering and mail processing. **Essential Duties and Responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following:** 

# • Maintain a variety of business records, schedules, and files (manual and computer) for accounts payable records.

- Maintain accounts payable information including master vendor files and records
- Responsible for the set-up and maintenance of all supplier records
- Responsible for the conversion of all approved requisitions to purchase orders.
- Creation of budget approved Purchase Orders.
- Full charge responsibility for all supplier invoice verification and warrant processing including tracking of budget status of purchase orders and warrants
- Processes all supplier tax reporting 1099s, DE542s, W9 and California Form 590
- Maintain employee in-service payment and trip conference files, verify and audit expenses, and process mileage claims.
- Process field trip payments, receipts and permission slips.
- Review and verify attendance information; reviews absences and percentage of attendance with the assistance of certificated staff when necessary.
- Research discrepancies of attendance information and/or documentation for the purpose of ensuring accuracy of attendance data before processing.
- Maintain confidential student records.
- Provide purchase records/warrant information to HR and Business Services Coordinator to create inventory records
- Responsible for supply ordering
- Perform general clerical duties that are related, but not limited to the Business Office, Front Office and Administrative Services.
- Participate in the annual student registration process.
- Responsible for front desk coverage when necessary.
- Other duties as assigned.

### Requirements:

### Education and Experience:

- A minimum of 2 years of previous professional office experience.
- High School Diploma or equivalent

### Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:

- Basic accounting principles and procedures.
- Modern office practices, procedures and equipment.
- An ability to plan, organize, write with clarity and correctness
- Prioritize, organize and multi-task
- Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures in regard to payables processing
- Ability to work independently and cooperatively with fellow employees, staff, administrators,
- and parents.
- Preparation and maintenance of current and accurate financial, and student records.
- Correct English usage, spelling, grammar, and punctuation.
- Understand and carry out oral and written instructions.
- Basic arithmetic, filing, and record keeping practices.

### Physical Demands:

- Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard
- Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
- Hearing and speaking to exchange information and making presentations
- Seeing to read a variety of materials
- Moderate physical exertion. Ability to lift 20 pounds maximum and carrying any object weighing up to 15 pounds.

The amount of time for each activity varies depending on daily work load and priority schedules. Some days, sitting could occur more frequently, and on other days standing and walking could occur throughout the workday.

May sit for prolonged time when completing projects; however, standing breaks are encouraged. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

### Work Environment:

- School office environment
- Constant interruptions
- Deadlines, meetings and reports are constant

#### License:

Possession of a valid California Driver's License issued by the Department of Motor Vehicles.

Work Year: 233 Days
Supervisor: Director of Business and Operations Fiscal & Operations Coordinator
Board Approved: November 14, 2017
Board Amended:September 12, 2019
April 20, 2022

November xx, 2023

# **Pacific View Charter School Course Outline**

Course Title: SBAC Prep Course Department: Electives Credits: 1.0 Course #: 1359 Prerequisite: None

**Course Description:** This course is designed to prepare students for the CAASPP Smarter Balanced State Assessments for Math and ELA (SBAC) during their 11th grade year. Students are required to complete all the activities and participate and complete the SBAC ELA and Math state tests. This course will conclude with the completion of the state SBAC tests.

### **Student Outcome:**

The student will:

- 1) login into test session successfully and complete a practice exam
- 2) use the tools embedded in the testing platform successfully
- 3) complete prep activities for SBAC ELA and MATH exams
- 4) Successfully complete the SBAC ELA and MATH state exams

**Assessment:** Completion of activities to prepare and participate in the SBAC ELA and Math for the CAASPP.

**Instructional Materials:** Teacher created test prep activities and/or presentations participation. State provided practice materials.

**Board Approval:** 

Amended: